
 

Lloyd White 
Head of Democratic Services 
London Borough of Hillingdon, 
3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 
www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

   

Central & South 
Planning 
Committee 

 

   

Date: TUESDAY, 25 JANUARY 
2011 
 

Time: 7.00 PM 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 - 
CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH 
STREET, UXBRIDGE UB8 
1UW 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 

 
To Councillors on the Committee 
 
John Hensley (Chairman) 
Judith Cooper (Vice-Chairman) 

Janet Duncan (Labour Lead) 
Paul Buttivant  
Peter Curling  
Dominic Gilham  
Brian Stead 
 

  
Published: Monday, 17 January 2011 

 
 
This agenda and associated 
reports can be made available 
in other languages, in braille, 
large print or on audio tape on 
request.  Please contact us for 
further information.  
 

 Contact: Nadia Williams 
Tel: 01895 250693 
Fax: 01895 277373 
nwilliams@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 
This Agenda is available online at:  
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=123&MId=720&Ver=4 

Public Document Pack



Useful information 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services 
 
Please enter from the Council’s main reception 
where you will be directed to the Committee 
Room. An Induction Loop System is available for 
use in the various meeting rooms. Please contact 
us for further information.  
 
Please switch off any mobile telephones and 
BlackBerries™ before the meeting. Any 
recording of the meeting is not allowed, either 
using electronic, mobile or visual devices.  
 
If there is a FIRE in the building the alarm will 
sound continuously. If there is a BOMB ALERT 
the alarm sounds intermittently. Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.    
 

 



 

A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings 

 
 

Security and Safety information 
Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the 
fire alarm will sound continuously.  If there is a 
BOMB ALERT the alarm sounds intermittently.  
Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.  
Recording of meetings – This is not allowed, 
either using electronic, mobile or visual devices.  
Mobile telephones – Please switch off any mobile 
telephones and BlackBerries before the meeting.  
 

Petitions and Councillors 
Petitions – Those who have organised a petition of 
20 or more borough residents can speak at a 
Planning Committee in support of or against an 
application.  Petitions must be submitted in 
writing to the Council in advance of the meeting.  
Where there is a petition opposing a planning 
application there is also the right for the 
applicant or their agent to address the meeting 
for up to 5 minutes.   
Ward Councillors – There is a right for local 
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about 
applications in their Ward.  
Committee Members – The planning committee is 
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet 
in public every three weeks to make decisions on 
applications. 
 
 

How the Committee meeting works 
The Planning Committees consider the most 
complex and controversial proposals for 
development or enforcement action.  
Applications for smaller developments such as 
householder extensions are generally dealt with 
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated 
powers.  
An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which 
comprises reports on each application 
Reports with petitions will normally be taken at 
the beginning of the meeting.   
The procedure will be as follows:-  
1. The Chairman will announce the report;  
2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a 
presentation of plans and photographs;  

3. If there is a petition(s),the petition organiser 
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant 

 

followed by any Ward Councillors; 
4. The Committee may ask questions of the 
petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;  

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek 
clarification from officers;  

6. The Committee will vote on the 
recommendation in the report, or on an 
alternative recommendation put forward by a 
Member of the Committee, which has been 
seconded. 

 

About the Committee’s decision 
The Committee must make its decisions by 
having regard to legislation, policies laid down 
by National Government, by the Greater London 
Authority – under ‘The London Plan’ and 
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained 
in the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and 
supporting guidance.  The Committee must also 
make its decision based on material planning 
considerations and case law and material 
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s 
report and any representations received.  
Guidance on how Members of the Committee 
must conduct themselves when dealing with 
planning matters and when making their 
decisions is contained in the ‘Planning Code of 
Conduct’, which is part of the Council’s 
Constitution.  
When making their decision, the Committee 
cannot take into account issues which are not 
planning considerations such as the effect of a 
development upon the value of surrounding 
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself 
is not sufficient ground for refusal of 
permission), nor a subjective opinion relating to 
the design of the property.  When making a 
decision to refuse an application, the Committee 
will be asked to provide detailed reasons for 
refusal based on material planning 
considerations.   
If a decision is made to refuse an application, 
the applicant has the right of appeal against the 
decision.  A Planning Inspector appointed by the 
Government will then consider the appeal.  
There is no third party right of appeal, although 
a third party can apply to the High Court for 
Judicial Review, which must be done within 3 
months of the date of the decision.  
 



 

 

Agenda 
 

 

1 Apologies for Absence 

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting 

3 To sign and receive the minutes of the meeting held on 6 January 2011 

4 Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent 

5 To confirm that the items of business marked Part I will be considered in Public and 
that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private 

Reports - Part 1 - Members, Public and the Press 
 
Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the 
Chairman may vary this. Reports are split into ‘major’ and ‘minor’ applications. The 
name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the address of the premises or 
land concerned. 

 
Major Applications without a Petition 
 

 Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page 

6 Underground 
Operations Room, 
RAF Uxbridge, 
Hillingdon Road, 
Uxbridge - 
585/APP/2010/2902 
 
 

Uxbridge 
North; 
 

Erection of a 2.4m high metal 
railing fence around historic 
bunker 
 
Recommendation: Delegated 
Powers subject to no objections 
being received before 3 
February 2011 

15 - 24 

7 70 Station Road, West 
Drayton - 
2954/APP/2010/1810 
 
 

West 
Drayton; 
 

Erection of a residential building to 
accommodate 35 flats (consisting 
of 12 one-bedroom units, 21 two-
bedroom units and 2 three-
bedroom units) with associated 
parking and landscaping 
 
Recommendation: Legal 
Agreement 
 

25 - 62 

 
 
 
 
 



 

Non Major Application with a Petition 
 

 Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page 

8 43 - 47 and rear of 35 
- 43 Yeading Lane, 
Hayes - 
34799/APP/2009/2800 
 
 

Barnhill; 
 

2 three-bedroom two storey semi-
detached dwellings and 3 three-
bedroom two storey terraced 
dwellings with amenity and parking 
space, involving the demolition of 
outbuildings to rear of existing 
dwelling No.47 and rear 
extensions from No.43 and 
installation of new crossover 
 
Recommendation: Approval 

63 - 88 

9 51 Chiltern View 
Road, Uxbridge - 
64176/APP/2010/2097 
 
 

Uxbridge 
North; 
 

Change of use from Class A4 
(Drinking Establishment) to Class 
C3 (Residential Units) for use as 2 
one-bedroom and 1 two-bedroom, 
two storey terraced dwellings with 
associated parking and amenity 
space, including a two storey rear 
extension, alterations to existing 
front and side elevations, 
repositioning of vehicular access 
to side and alterations to existing 
vehicular crossover to front with 
demolition of existing single storey 
rear extensions and outbuildings 
to rear 
 
Recommendation: Approval  

89 - 112 

 
Non Major Application without a Petition 
 

 Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page 

10 Ground floor, Old Post 
Office, Station Road, 
Hayes - 
35807/APP/2009/2363 
 
 

Botwell; 
 

Change of use from Class A1 
(Retail) to Class D1 (Non-
Residential Institutions) for use as 
a Health Centre, with associated 
internal alterations 
 
Recommendation: S106 
Agreement 

113 - 130 



 

11 The Arena, Stockley 
Park, Stockley Road, 
West Drayton - 
37800/APP/2010/1669 
 
 

Botwell; 
 

Change of use from Class B1 
(Office) to Class D1 (Non-
residential institutions) for use as 
further education college and 
management training premises 
 
Recommendation: Refusal 

131 - 148 

12 Brunel University, 
Kingston Lane, 
Hillingdon - 
532/APP/2010/1964 
 

Brunel; 
 

Erection of a galvanised/ timber 
framed compound to house 2 
external chillers 
 
Recommendation: Approval 

149 - 156 

13 20 Pield Heath Road, 
Hillingdon - 
21661/APP/2010/1716 
 
 

Brunel; 
 

Change of use from Class C3 
(residential) to Class D1 for use as 
medical centre and single storey 
rear/side extension 
 
Recommendation: Approval 

157 - 186 

14 103 Park Road, 
Uxbridge - 
32648/APP/2010/1408 
 
 

Uxbridge 
North; 
 

Change of use from Class A1 
(Shops) to Class A5 (Hot food 
takeaway) and installation of 
extraction flue to rear 
 
Recommendation: Approval 

187 - 202 

15 Grass Verge rear of 
109 and 111 
Sweetcroft Lane, 
Hercies Road (close 
to Bus Stop), 
Hillingdon - 
67517/APP/2010/2930 
 
 

Uxbridge 
North; 
 

Installation of 12.5m high imitation 
telegraph pole mobile phone mast 
and ancillary equipment cabinet 
(Consultation under Schedule 2, 
Part 24 of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted 
Development) Order 1995) 
 
Recommendation: Refusal 

203 - 210 

16 1 Derby Road, 
Uxbridge - 
60777/APP/2010/2713 
 
 

Uxbridge 
South; 
 

Alterations and extension to 
existing roof to create habitable 
roofspace to include 2 gable end 
windows and 4 side rooflights 
 
Recommendation: Refusal 

211 - 218 

17 Tesco Stores Ltd, 
Glencoe Road, 
Yeading - 
36999/APP/2010/2512 
 

Yeading; 
 

Rear extension to bulk storage 
area 
 
Recommendation: Approval 
 

219 - 244 



 

PART II - MEMBERS ONLY 
 
The reports listed below are not made public because they contain confidential or 
exempt information under paragraph 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12 A to the Local 
Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended. 
 

18 Enforcement Report       Page 245 - 252 

19 Enforcement Report       Page 253 - 260 

20 Enforcement Report       Page 261 - 271 

21 Enforcement Report       Page 273 - 283 

 
Any Items transferred from Part 1 
 
Any Other Business in Part 2 
 

 
Plans for Central and South Planning Committee Page 285 - 375 



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes 
 
CENTRAL & SOUTH PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
6 January 2011 
 
Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, 
High Street, Uxbridge UB8 1UW 
 

 

 Committee Members Present:  
Councillors John Hensley (Chairman) 
Judith Cooper (Vice-Chairman) 
Paul Buttivant 
Peter Curling 
Janet Duncan 
Dominic Gilham 
Brian Stead  
 
LBH Officers Present:  
 
James Rodger, Matt Duigan, Manmohan Ranger, Sarah White and Gill Brice  
 

147. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  (Agenda Item 1) 
 

 

 Apologies had been received from Councillor Peter Curling there was 
no substitute. 
 

 

148. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE 
THIS MEETING  (Agenda Item 2) 
 

 

 There were no declarations of interests notified.  
 

 

149. TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS 
MEETING (TO FOLLOW)  (Agenda Item 3) 
 

 

 The minutes of the meetings held on 1 and 16 December 2010 were 
agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

 

150. MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR 
URGENT  (Agenda Item 4) 
 

 

 There were no items notified as urgent.  
 

 

151. TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS OF BUSINESS MARKED PART I 
WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PUBLIC AND THAT THE ITEMS 
MARKED PART 2 WILL BE CONSIDERED IN PRIVATE  (Agenda 
Item 5) 
 

 

 It was confirmed that all items marked Part 1 would be heard in public 
and all items marked Part 2 would be heard in private.  
 

 

 
 
 

Public Document PackAgenda Item 3

Page 1



  
152. CRANFORD PARK PRIMARY SCHOOL, PHELPS WAY, HAYES - 

11211/APP/2010/2245  (Agenda Item 6) 
 

 

 Alterations and additions to existing school to create a single 
storey extension to existing hall, demolition of an existing 
temporary building (at south east end of the school) and 
replacement with a two storey extension accommodating 8 class 
rooms, play space, group rooms, new lift, stairs, toilets and 
storage and circulation space (total additional floor space 
972sqm). 
 
11211/APP/2010/2245 
 
A member stated that on the plans the new block was sited close to the 
existing building, would there be any loss of light to the existing building 
as a result of this extension being built.  
 
Officers advised that the design had been changed to achieve light to 
the existing hall. Light levels had been checked and would meet the 
required standards.  
 
A member asked for an informative to be added to underpin the Green 
Travel Plan condition.  This was a low PTAL area and as a result of the 
extension the catchment area would increase.  It was suggested that 
the informative should include suggestions for the Travel Plan e.g. 
walking bus and a drop and go system.   The addition of the 
informative was agreed by the committee.  
 
Concerns were raised in relation to the effectiveness of the Travel 
Plans and how it would be monitored. 
 
Officers advised that travel plans are monitored and information was 
provided by the school to ensure that they are meeting the required 
targets.   
 
The Legal Adviser advised that as members had specific concerns 
about the Green Travel plan and the requirements required to be put in 
place, an informative could be added to ensure that monitoring was 
highlighted.  
 
The committee agreed to the additional informative being added as 
suggested. 
 
A member suggested that condition 18 should be amended to ensure 
that no antennas were erected on any part of the school building 
without permission.  It was suggested that condition 18 be amended by 
deleting ‘atop’ and inserting ‘on’.  This amendment was agreed by the 
committee.  
 
Members asked for a condition to be added to ensure that if any 
external lighting was to be considered this could be controlled to 
ensure that it did not affect surrounding properties.  An additional 
condition was agreed by the committee.    
 

 

Page 2



  
Officers advised members that a correction needed to be made to add 
the word 'Bank' between the words 'on' and 'public' in the hours limiting 
condition on page 2 of the addendum sheet circulated at the meeting . 
The recommendation for approval with the amendments made by the 
committee was moved, seconded and on being put to the vote was 
agreed.  
 
Resolved – 
 
1.  That the application be approved subject to the conditions 

and informatives set out in the officer’s report and 
addendum circulated at the meeting and an additional 
informative as follows: 

 
Informative  
 
You are advised that in discharging the travel plan 
condition the council will expect the following initiatives to 
be investigated and implemented if appropriate: 
 

• Walking bus  
• Drop and go 

 
2. That subject to no further objections being received from 

local residents before 05/01/2011 which raise any new 
material planning issues not covered in the report, 
delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning and 
Enforcement to grant planning permission subject to the 
following conditions, and any additional conditions and/or 
informatives which may be required.   

 
Add the word 'Bank' between the words 'on' and 'public' in the 
hours limiting condition at page 2 of the of the addendum. 
 
Amend condition 18 by replacing the word 'atop' with the word 
'on' 
 
Additional Condition 
 
No floodlighting or other form of external lighting shall be 
installed unless it is in accordance with details which have 
previously bee submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Such details shall include location, height, 
type and direction of light sources and intensity of illumination. 
Any lighting that is so installed shall not thereafter be altered 
without the prior consent in writing of the Local Planning 
Authority other than for routine maintenance which does not 
change its details. 
 
REASON 
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding properties in 
accordance with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary 
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and in the 
interests of highway safety. 

Page 3



  
153. FORMER NATIONAL AIR TRAFFIC SERVICES (NATS) 

HEADQUARTERS, PORTERS WAY, WEST DRAYTON - 
5107/APP/2009/2348  (Agenda Item 7) 
 

Action by 

 Proposed mixed-use redevelopment comprising: 773 dwellings 
comprising 12 no. studios, 152 no. 1-bedroom flats, 316 no. 2-
bedroom flats, 21no. 2-bedroom houses, 23no. 3-bedroom flats, 
181no. 3-bedroom houses, 59no.  4-bedroom houses and 9 no. 5-
bedroom houses; Class D1 Primary Healthcare facility including 
room for joint community use (up to 1085sqm gea); Class C2 
Nursing Home (up to 3630sqm gea); Classes A1-A3 Shop units to 
complement Mulberry Parade (up to 185sqm gea, depending on 
size of Primary Healthcare facility); Class B1 Business units 
including site management office (up to 185sqm gea); Energy 
Centre (up to 220sqm gea) with combined heat and power unit; 
foul water pumping station; associated access roads from Porters 
Way (and excluding all access including pedestrian and bicycle 
access from Rutters Close); 1085 car parking spaces; cycle 
parking; public open space areas; cycle ways and footpaths; and 
landscaping works. 
 
5107/APP/2009/2348 
 
In answer to an issue raised in regards to whether there was an in built 
year on year increase in relation to the financial contributions officers 
advised that all contributions in the S106 were index linked.   
 
A member raised concerns that there may be a long wait for the 
community facility to be provided.  Was there anyway that could ensure 
it would be provided within a reasonable timescale.  
 
The committee were informed that if the committee was too 
prescriptive in the timescale for implementation of the community 
facility, if appealed an Inspector may not see this as a favourable step 
in the current financial climate.   
 
The Legal adviser informed the committee that the S106 set out that 
the phases had to be carried out consecutively, which would not allow 
other phases to be implemented before phase 3.   It was felt that this 
should mitigate the concerns members had raised.  
 
A member raised concern about approving the application without a 
limited timescale for the community facility as it could mean that it may 
not be built. 
 
Officers advised the committee that the number of properties being 
built as part of Phase 1 and 2 was a consideration in the timescale for 
building the Community facility.  Also recommendation A required that 
the Education financial contribution was paid on the implementation of 
Phase 1 & 2.  
 
It was asked how robust the S106 was as if the applicant had cash flow 
problem and had consideration been given to Director Guarantees.  
 

James Rodger 
Matt Duigan  

Page 4



  
The Legal adviser informed the committee that failure to comply with 
the terms of the agreement would be pursued through either a breach 
of the terms of the S106 agreement or as a debt.  All s106 agreements 
are also registered against the title of the land on the local land 
charges register.  In regard to the issue raised in relation to Director 
guarantees this was something that was not undertaken by Hillingdon.  
This was something that could be looked into by officers.  
 
The recommendation in the report was moved, seconded and on being 
put to the vote was agreed.  
 
Resolved  
 
A. That schedule 1 of the S106 legal agreement (which relates to 
the education contribution) be varied to require: 
 
1. To pay to the Council the Education Contribution of three 
million nine hundred and ninety eight thousand four hundred and 
twelve pounds (£3,998,412.00) as follows:- 
 
1.1 one million pounds (£1,000,000.00) payable upon 
Implementation of Phase 1.  
 
1.2 one million pounds (£1,000,000.00) on the date being six 
months after Implementation of Phase 2. 
 
1.3 one million pounds (£1,000,000.00) payable on Implementation 
of Phase 3. 
 
1.4 nine hundred and ninety eight thousand four hundred and 
twelve pounds (£998,412.00) payable on Implementation of Phase 
4. 
 
B. That schedule 15 of the S106 legal agreement (which relates to 
the on site community facility) be varied to require: 
 
1. Prior to Implementation of Phase 2 of the Development to 
submit to the Council a draft specification for the Community 
Facility for the written approval of the Council; 
 
2. Prior to Implementation of Phase 2 of the Development the 
Owner must obtain written approval from the Council that the final 
specification for the Community Facility is acceptable (such 
approval not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed); 
 
3. Prior to Implementation of Phase 3 to complete the provision 
construction and laying out of the Community Facility and make 
the same ready for Occupation in accordance with the approved 
final specification and the Owner will invite the Council to inspect 
the completed Community Facility to determine whether the 
works have been completed to the reasonable satisfaction of the 
Council. 
 

Page 5



  
154. BROOKSIDE PRIMARY SCHOOL, PERTH AVENUE, HAYES - 

3739/APP/2010/2213  (Agenda Item 8) 
 

Action by 

 Alterations and extensions to existing school building to create 
additional classrooms and staff room facilities and enhanced 
kitchen facilities, construction of new two storey school building 
(south west of existing school buildings) accommodating a 
nursery, classrooms and ancillary toilet areas, office, storage and 
circulation space and an all-weather rooftop play area, alterations 
to external play areas (including new external hard and soft 
playground areas), changes to boundary treatment, landscaping, 
access and parking arrangements, including new emergency 
vehicle access and relocated entrance to nursery (total additional 
floor space 940 sq.m.). 
 
3739/APP/2010/2213 
 
Officers advised the committee that the informative added in regards to 
the Green Travel Plan on Item 6 also needed to be added to this 
application.  The addition of the informative was agreed by the 
committee.  
 
A member suggested that as there was no information given on the 
community use that condition 27 be amended to address the concerns 
about no information being provided.  This condition should also be 
referred back to committee for a decision if the standardised hours 
used borough wide were exceeded.   This was agreed by the 
committee.  
 
It was also suggested that an additional condition be added to restrict 
the use of the all weather roof top area to school hours only and that 
there be no amplified sound at any time.   The committee agreed to the 
additional condition, the wording of this to be agreed with the Chairman 
and Labour Lead.    
 
Clarification of the number of parking spaces was sought, as there was 
conflicting information in the report. 
 
Officers advised that there were 22 parking spaces being provided, it 
was suggested that an informative be added to advise the applicant 
that 22 parking spaces was the correct number of parking spaces to be 
provided.  This additional informative was agreed by the committee.  
 
Concerns were raised on the existing hazardous parking and traffic 
problems in the area.  Officers were asked for reassurance that 
sufficient arrangements had been made in regard to the additional 
traffic in an already difficult area.  
 
Officers advised that there was a condition requiring a Green Travel 
Plan.  The school would have to provide information on how they had 
met the requirements of the plan.  In regard to an issue raised in 
relation to provision of a safer drop off area this was not something that 
could be provided due to the width of the highway.    
 

James Rodger 
Matt Duigan 

Page 6



  
The report made reference to a suggestion that a Warden be provided 
at drop off and pick up times.  Can clarification be given of what a 
Warden was. 
 
Officers advised that in other schools a member of staff acts as a 
warden for a drop and go area to enable pupils to get into school 
safely.   
 
As previously raised in Item 6 members raised concerns relation to the 
effectiveness of the Travel Plans and how they were monitored.  It was 
suggested and agreed that an informative be added to ensure that the 
implementation of the Green Travel Plan was monitored.  
 
An amendment to condition 23 by adding ‘not’ after was agreed by the 
committee.  
 
Members asked for a condition to be added in relation to external 
lighting to ensure that this would not impact on surrounding properties, 
as added to Item 6.   The addition of this condition was agreed by the 
committee. 
 
The recommendation with the amendments and additions was moved, 
seconded and on being put to the vote was agreed.  
 
Resolved - That subject to no additional letters of objection being 
received before 07/01/2011, which raise any new planning issues, 
the application be determined by the Head of Planning and 
Enforcement under delegated powers, subject to the conditions 
and informatives set out in the officer’s report and the addendum 
sheet circulated at the meeting.  Conditions 7 & 23 were amended, 
condition 27 was amended and was to come back to committee if 
the hours of use exceeded the standardised hours of use, used 
across the borough and an additional 2 conditions and 3 
informatives added as follows: 
 
Amend condition 7 by inserting the word public between ‘and’ & 
‘Bank’ 
 
Amend condition 23 by inserting the word not between the words 
‘in’ & ‘use’ 
 
Condition 27 - Replace the wording of text (not the reason) as 
follows 
 
The development hereby approved shall not be used other than in 
direct relationship with the use of the site as a primary school, 
and shall not be used by the wider community at any time 
including out of school hours, until such time as full details of the 
proposed community use of the development (including hours of 
use and the nature of activities)and a revised transport statement 
(which addresses the traffic and parking related impacts 
associated with the use of the development by the wider 
community) have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority.   

Page 7



  
Add the following condition  
 
No floodlighting or other form of external lighting shall be 
installed unless it is in accordance with details which have 
previously bee submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Such details shall include location, height, 
type and direction of light sources and intensity of illumination. 
Any lighting that is so installed shall not thereafter be altered 
without the prior consent in writing of the Local Planning 
Authority other than for routine maintenance which does not 
change its details. 
 
REASON 
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding properties in 
accordance with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary 
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and in the 
interests of highway safety. 
 
Add the following condition 
 
The upper level outdoor area of the new 2 storey building, hereby 
approved, shall only be used in association with the Primary 
School, during school hours, and shall not be made available for 
use by the wider community, nor shall any amplified music, 
sounds or audible recording be played out side of the building at 
the upper level at any time. 
 
REASON 
To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding 
properties in accordance with policy OE1of the Hillingdon Unitary 
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007). 
 
Add the following Informatives  
 
You are advised that in discharging the travel plan condition the 
council will expect the following initiatives to be investigated and 
implemented if appropriate: 
 

• Walking Bus 
• Drop & Go 

 
You are advised that the Council requires 22 car parking spaces 
to be provided on the site, in accordance with plan AP (BR) 10 
Rev F.   
 
You are advised that the London Borough of Hillingdon monitors 
Travel Plans. 
 
 
  
 

 
 
 

Page 8



  
155. LEGION HOUSE, 854-864 UXBRIDGE ROAD, HAYES - 

927/APP/2010/1238  (Agenda Item 9) 
 

Action by 

 Change of first floor use from Class B1 (office) to Class D1 (non-
residential institution). 
 
1927/APP/2010/1238 
 
A member asked whether officers were satisfied that the means of 
escape could cope with the 200 people that the facility can 
accommodate. 
 
Officers advised that Building Control had been consulted and there 
concern was not with the numbers but the routes.  Building Control 
would look at the escape route when the building regulation application 
was submitted. A fire certificate would also be required. 
 
A member asked whether the hours of operation were too restrictive. 
 
Officers advised that the hours of operation were what the applicant 
had applied for and if they found them restrictive they could apply to 
vary the condition.  Members were advised that Informative 7 needed 
to be amended to include Bank Holidays.  
 
The recommendation was moved, seconded and on being put to the 
vote was agreed.  
 
Resolved - That delegated powers be given to the Director of 
Planning and Community Services to grant planning permission, 
subject to the following: 
 
A. That the Council enter into a legal agreement with the applicant 
under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as 
amended) to secure the following: 
 
(i)  The provision of 14 of the 37 parking spaces at the rear of 

the building to be provided for the proposed use at all 
times. 

(ii)  The use of all 37 parking spaces at the rear of the building 
on Sundays between 0800 hours and 1400 hours and on 
Wednesday evenings from 19.00 hours to 21.00 hours to be 
provided for the proposed use. 

 
B. That the applicant meets the Council's reasonable costs in the 
preparation of the Section 106 agreement and any abortive work 
as a result of the agreement not being completed. 
 
C. That the officers be authorised to negotiate the terms of the 
proposed agreement.  
 
D. That, if the S106 agreement is not completed within 6 months 
of the date of this resolution that, under the discretion of the 
Director of Planning and Community Services, the application is 
refused under delegated powers on the basis that the applicant 
has refused to address planning obligation requirements. 

James Rodger 
Matt Duigan 

Page 9



  
E. That if the application is approved, the conditions and 
informatives set out in the officer’s report and addendum sheet 
circulated at the meeting be attached. 
 
Amend informative 7 as follows:- 
 
Insert the word 'Public' between 'and' and 'Bank' 
 

156. THE ARENA, STOCKLEY PARK, WEST DRAYTON - 
37800/APP/2010/1669  (Agenda Item 10) 
 

Action by 

 Change of use from Class B1 (Office) to Class D1 (Non-residential 
institutions) for use as further education college and management 
training premises. 
 
37800/APP/2010/1669 
 
This application was withdrawn from the agenda by the Head of 
Planning and Enforcement.  
 

James Rodger 
Matt Duigan 

157. ST DUNSTANS CHURCH HALL, CARFAX ROAD, HAYES - 
64608/APP/2010/2229  (Agenda Item 11) 
 

Action by 

 Two storey building for use as church hall with associated 
parking and amenity space, involving demolition of existing 
building and alterations to existing vehicular crossover to front. 
 
64608/APP/2010/2229 
 
Officers in their introduction asked the committee to agree an additional 
condition in relation to the use of the bookshop that had been added for 
Item 9.  The addition of the condition was agreed by the committee.  
 
The condition in relation to the gate on the addendum needed to be 
amended by deleting ‘school’ and inserting ‘development’.  
 
A member asked whether this application was over intensification of 
the use within the Green Belt. 
 
Officers advised that the footprint of the proposed building was not a 
large increase so it was not felt that it would cause harm to the Green 
Belt. 
 
The recommendation with the additional condition was moved, 
seconded and on being put to the vote was agreed.  
 
Resolved – That the application be approved, subject to the 
conditions and informatives set out in the officer’s report and the 
addendum circulated at the meeting and an additional condition 
as follows:- 
 
 
 
 

James Rodger 
Matt Duigan 

Page 10



  
Add the following condition 
  
The floorspace hereby permitted to be used as a book shop shall 
be used only for purposes ancillary to the use of the premises as 
a church and shall not be expanded, nor shall the book shop be 
made open to members of the general public. 
 
REASON  
To ensure that the retail component remain ancillary to the main 
use of the premises as a church, and to prevent any 
unacceptable traffic or car parking impacts that may be generated 
by having a larger retail component as part of the scheme and to 
accord with policy AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Unitary 
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007). 
 
Replace the wording of the gate condition at page 7 of the 
addendum as follows: 
 
The sliding gate at the entrance to the site shall be kept shut and 
locked at all times when the development is not in use. 
 
 

158. 301 LONG LANE, HILLINGDON - 568/APP/2010/1741  (Agenda Item 
12) 
 

Action by 

 Change of use from Class A1 (Retail) to Class A2 (Financial and 
Professional Services) for use as Betting Shop. 
 
568/APP/2010/1741 
 
The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being 
put to the vote was agreed.  
 
Resolved – That the application be approved, subject to the 
conditions and informatives set out in the officer’s report and the 
addendum circulated at the meeting.  
 

James Rodger 
Matt Duigan 

159. CROWNE PLAZA HOTEL, STOCKLEY ROAD, WEST DRAYTON - 
359/APP/2010/2672  (Agenda Item 13) 
 

Action by 

 Replacement of 4 existing Vodafone antennas with 2 Vodafone 
antennas and 2 O2 antennas, together with relocation of an 
existing Vodafone pole, with 2 antennas, and replacement of the 
antennas with 1 Vodafone antenna and 1 O2 antenna. 
 
359/APP/2010/2672 
 
The recommendation for approval was moved, seconded and on being 
put to the vote was agreed. 
 
Resolved – That the application be approved, subject to the 
conditions and informatives set out in the officer’s report and 
addendum sheet circulated at the meeting.  

James Rodger 
Matt Duigan 

Page 11



  
160. B & Q WAREHOUSE, GLENCOE ROAD, HAYES - 

56099/APP/2010/1411  (Agenda Item 14) 
 

Action by 

 Creation of a temporary/seasonal display area for horticultural 
products to front (Retrospective application.) 
 
56099/APP/2010/1411 
 
It was asked that condition 4 be amended to include Public Holidays.  
This was agreed by the committee.  
 
Concerns were raised in relation to pedestrian safety as the path was 
to be moved on to the access road, which led to the parking area for 
the store.  It was also suggested that a substantial barrier would be 
required if the application was approved.  
 
Officers suggested that an informative be added to ensure that a good 
quality barrier was provided.   
 
It was asked whether consideration had been given to the reduction of 
the width of the display being provided to ensure that the footpath 
could be retained. 
 
Officers advised that it would not be possible to retain the footpath due 
to the size of the pallets that were to be used to display the horticultural 
products.  
 
Members felt that it would be safer to provide a permanent display area 
and the provision of a permanent raised kerb and barrier to ensure 
pedestrian safety.    
 
Officers advised that discussion had already taken place with the 
applicant on the provision of a permanent display area.  The applicant 
wanted to re-instate the parking that would be lost as part of this 
application from September to December.  
 
A member suggested that the application should be deferred to enable 
further negotiations with the applicant on the concerns raised in relation 
to pedestrian safety and to enable members to make a site visit. 
 
It was moved and seconded that the application be deferred.  On being 
put to the vote was agreed.  
 
Resolved – That the application be deferred for further 
negotiations with the applicant on the concerns raised by 
members in relation to pedestrian safety and to enable the 
committee to undertake a site visit.   
 

James Rodger 
Matt Duigan 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



  
161. S106 QUARTERLY MONITORING REPORT  (Agenda Item 15) 

 
Action by 

 S106 Quarterly Monitoring Report - Up to 30 September 2010   
 
Members received a report updating them on the current position in 
relation to S106 agreements. 
 
Resolved – That the report be noted. 
 

 

162. ENFORCEMENT REPORT  (Agenda Item 16) 
 

Action by 

 Officers advised the committee that 1.3 in the report needed to be 
amended to reflect correctly the steps required.  Members gave 
Delegated authority to  the Head of Planning, Trading Standards and 
Environmental Protection to Amend section 1.3 (i), (ii), (iii) of the 
resolution to better reflect the detailed layout of the scheme. 
 
Resolved 
 
1. That enforcement action as recommended in the officer’s 

report as amended was agreed.  
2.  That the decision and the reasons for it outlined in the 

report as amended be released into the public domain, 
solely for the purposes of issuing the formal enforcement 
notice to the individual concerned. 

 

James Rodger 
Matt Duigan 

  
The meeting, which commenced at 7.00 pm, closed at 9.05 pm. 
 

  
These are the minutes of the above meeting.  For more information on any of the 
resolutions please contact Gill Brice on 01895 250693.  Circulation of these minutes is to 
Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public. 
 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

UNDERGROUND OPERATIONS ROOM, RAF UXBRIDGE  HILLINGDON
ROAD UXBRIDGE 

Erection of a 2.4m high metal railing fence around historic bunker.

16/12/2010

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 585/APP/2010/2902

Drawing Nos: 11 GP Operations Room Enclave - Notes to Accompany Planning
Application
Location Plan
Uxbridge - Bunker Enclave
TangoRail Fence Details (6 sheets)

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a 2.4 metre high metal railing fence
around the Grade I listed bunker at RAF Uxbridge. The fence is required to provide
greater security to the listed structure when the wider site is vacated and handed over to
VSM Estates Limited to take forward the sale of the land.

The design of the proposed fence is considered appropriate in relation to the visual
amenity of the Green Belt and the impact on the listed structure. As the period for
representations in response to the requisite press advertisement and site notice will not
expire until 2 February 2011 it is recommended that delegated power be given to the
Head of Planning, Trading Standards and Environmental Protection to determine the
application, subject to no objections being received during this period and subject to
appropriate conditions.

T8

NONSC

Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

Details of gates to be submitted

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

No development shall commence until details of the proposed pedestrian and vehicular
gates, including their dimensions and detailed design, have been submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The development shall thereafter
only be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

1

2

2. RECOMMENDATION

06/01/2011Date Application Valid:

That the application be determined by the Head of Planning, Trading Standards
and Environmental Protection under delegated powers, subject to no objections
being received before 3 February 2011 and subject to the following conditions:

Agenda Item 6

Page 15



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

M1

NONSC

Details of colour of proposed fence

Fence not to be attached to listed wall

REASON
To ensure that the design of the gates is appropriate to the setting of the listed bunker in
accordance with Policy BE8 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007). 

No development shall take place until details of the external finish and colour of the
proposed fence (with reference to the BS or RAL number) have been submitted to, and
approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority and the development shall thereafter
only be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the external appearance of the proposed fence is appropriate to its Green
Belt location and to the setting of the listed bunker in accordance with Policies OL1 and
BE8 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

No part of the fence hereby approved shall be attached to the adjacent listed wall.

REASON
To ensure that no damage is caused to the adjacent listed wall in accordance with Policy
BE8 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

3

4

I52

I53

I45

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

Discharge of Conditions

1

2

3

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The design of the proposed fence is considered appropriate in relation to the visual
amenity of the Green Belt and the impact on the listed structure. The decision to GRANT
planning permission has been taken having regard to the policies and proposals in the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) set out below,
including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all relevant material considerations,
including the London Plan (February 2008) and national guidance.

Your attention is drawn to conditions 2 and 3 which must be discharged prior to the
commencement of works. You will be in breach of planning control should you

OL1

OL2
BE13

Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development
Green Belt -landscaping improvements
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Page 16



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3.1 Site and Locality

The site has an area of approximately 1.49 ha and comprises an open area around the
underground bunker and ancillary buildings at RAF Uxbridge. The bunker comprises the
former underground operations room and was the secret location from where 11 Group's
involvement in the Battle of Britain was controlled. It is Grade I listed. The area around the
bunker comprises service roads, close-mown grass, areas of long grassland and
woodland on the southern slopes.

As part of the redevelopment of the MOD estate in London, RAF Uxbridge has now
closed. By March 2011 the site will be vacated and handed over to VSM Estates Limited
to take forward the sale of the site. The 11 (Fighter) Group Operations Room enclave is to
be retained by MOD.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a 2.4 metre high security fence around
the bunker and adjacent land. The new fence would be provided on the northern and
western side of the bunker with the existing security fence to the south and garden wall to
the rear of properties in Patch Close and Vincent Drive remaining. The fence would be a
park-style railing with tubular steel rails braced with horizontal bars at the top and bottom,
painted black and incorporate two sets of vehicular gates and a pedestrian gate. The
applicant has advised that it is required to protect the site which is of considerable
historical value and designed to occupy as small a footprint as possible in order to
maximise access to the wider site and in particular the banks of the River Pinn.

commence these works prior to the discharge of these conditions. The Council may
consider taking enforcement action to rectify the breach of these conditions. For further
information and advice contact - Planning, Environment & Community Services, Civic
Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel: 01895 250230).

585/APP/2009/2752 Raf Uxbridge Hillingdon Road Uxbridge 

1. Outline application (all matters reserved, except for access): Demolition of some existing
buildings; A) Creation of up to 1,296 residential dwellings (Class C3) of between 2 to 6
residential storeys; B) Creation of up to 77 one-bedroom assisted living retirement
accommodation of between 3 to 4 storeys; C) Creation of a three-form entry primary school of 2
storeys; D) Creation of a hotel (Class C1) of 5 storeys of up to 90 beds; E) Creation of a 1,200
seat theatre with ancillary café (Sui Generis); office (Class B1a) of up to 13,860sq.m; energy
centre (Sui Generis) of up to 1,200sq.m; and retail (Class A1, A2, A3, A4, A5) of up to 2,850sq
m; in buildings of between 4 to 6 storeys as well as a tower element associated with the theatre
of up to 30m; F) Creation of a local centre to provide up to 150sq.m of retail (Class A1 and
A2) and 225sq.m GP surgery (Class D1); Means of access and improvements to pedestrian
linkages to the Uxbridge Town centre; car parking; provision of public open space including a
district park; landscaping; sustainable infrastructure and servicing.
2. In addition to the above, full planning permission is sought for: A) Change of use of the Grade
II listed former cinema building to provide 600sq.m Class D1/2 use (no building works
proposed); B) Change of use and alterations to the Grade II listed Hillingdon House to provide
600sq.m for a restaurant (Class A3) on the ground floor and 1,500sq.m of office (Class B1) on
the ground, first and second floors; C) Change of use and alterations to the Carpenters building

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Page 17



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The above part outline, part full application for the redevelopment of the site (Ref.
585/APP/2009/2752) was deferred at the meeting of the Central & South Planning
Committee on 1 December 2010 to enable officers to provide full information on the
application and updated plans to be provided to the Committee.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Planning Policy Statement 1 (Delivering Sustainable Development) (January 2005)
Planning Policy Guidance Note 2 (Green Belts) (January 1995)
Planning Policy Statement 5 (Planning for the Historic Environment) (March 2010)
The London Plan (February 2008)
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)

The relevant policies of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) and London Plan (February 2008) are referenced in the relevant
section below.

PT1.1

PT1.9

PT1.10

To maintain the Green Belt for uses which preserve or enhance the open nature
of the area.

To seek to preserve statutory Listed Buildings and buildings on the Local List.

To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenity and
the character of the area.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

OL1

OL2

BE13

Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

Green Belt -landscaping improvements

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Part 2 Policies:

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

to provide 1 residential dwelling (Class C3); Creation of 29 residential dwellings (Class C3) to
the north of Hillingdon House of between 2 to 3 storeys as well as associated amenity space
and car parking; Change of use of Lawrence House (Building No. 109) to provide 4 dwellings
(Class C3), associated amenity space and car parking including a separate freestanding
garage; D) Change of use and alterations to the Sick Quarters (Building No. 91) to provide 4
dwellings (Class C3) as well as associated amenity space and car parking; E) Change of use of
Mons barrack block (Building No. 146A) to provide 7 dwellings (Class C3) as well as associated
amenity space and car parking.

Decision:

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 18



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Not applicable27th January 20115.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

Internal Consultees

TREES AND LANDSCAPE OFFICER

BACKGROUND:
The site is the land around the underground bunker and ancillary buildings at RAF Uxbridge,
comprised of service roads, close-mown grass, areas of long grassland and woodland on the
southern slopes.
There are no significant landscape features on the site which constitute a constraint on
development.
There are no Tree Preservation Orders on, or close to, the site, nor does it fall within a designated
Conservation Area.

PROPOSAL:
The proposal is to erect a 2.4 metre high security fence around the bunker and the adjacent land.
The product is a park-style railing with tubular steel rails braced with horizontal bars at the top and
bottom, by 'Tango Rail'.

LANDSCAPE CONSIDERATIONS:
Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of
merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.
* This product has the advantage that the panels can be 'cranked' between the heavy duty support
posts to accommodate sloping land, without the need to 'step' the panels down the hill. 
* The product selected has been the subject of pre-application advice, as a result of which the
height of the fence has been reduced and the appearance significantly improved compared with the
MoD's initial requirement for a more industrial looking fence.
* Pre-application advice included a recommendation that the fence be powder-coated in black or
'invisible green' in order to ensure that the structure sits discreetly within the landscape and is as
visually permeable as possible - while providing the level of security appropriate to the site. There
does not appear to be any reference to the colour, or finish, in the specification.

RECOMMENDATIONS:
No objection subject to confirmation of the finished colour (with reference to the BS, or RAL,
number).

PRINCIPAL CONSERVATION AND URBAN DESIGN OFFICER

External Consultees

The application was advertised as major development and as development affecting the setting of
a listed building. In addition, 18 neighbouring occupiers together with North Uxbridge Residents
Association, Uxbridge Local History and Archive Society and Ickenham Residents Association were
notified of the application. No replies have been received at the time of writing. 

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY

Advises that it has no comments to make on the application.

Page 19



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

The site is located within the Green Belt. Policy OL1 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) states that within the Green Belt, as
defined on the Proposala Map, the following open land uses will be acceptable:

(i)     Agriculture, horticulture, forestry and nature conservation;

(ii)    Open air recreaional facilities;

(iii)   Cemeteries

The proposed fence is required to provide security around the historic bunker. No new
buildings are proposed and the land would remain open. As such, the proposal is
considered to be in compliance with the above Policy and as such no objection is raised to
the principle of the development.

Not relevant to the application.

The Principal Conservation and Urban Design Officer has raised no objection the impact
of the proposed fence on the existing Grade I listed bunker subject to a condition requiring
details of the various gates in respect of dimensions and final design. This can be secured
by an appropriate planning condition.

Not relevant to the application.

The proposed fence would comprise a park-style railing with the panels 'cranked' between
heavy duty support posts to accommodate the slope of the land to avoid the need to 'step'
the panels down the hill. As such, it is considered that its impact on the visual amenity of
the Green Belt would be minimised. Subject to a condition requiring details of the external
finish and colour of the fence to be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local
Planning Authority, no objection is raised to its visual impact on the Green Belt.

Considered in Section 7.05 above.

The nearest residential properties are in Patch Close and Vincent Drive to the east of the
site. The existing garden wall is to be retained on this boundary and the proposed fence
would be sufficiently distant away to avoid any loss of visual amenity to the occupiers of
these properties.

This proposal has been subject to pre-application discussions and the submission addresses the
issues raised during this process. It is important that the fence is not attached to the listed wall and
a condition should be imposed requiring details of the dimensions and final design of the various
gates. Subject to the above, there is no objection to the proposal.

HIGHWAYS ENGINEER

No objection.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 20



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Not relevant to the application.

Not relevant to the application as public access to the site would be prohibited.

The design of the proposed fence is considered appropriate having regard to its location
in the Green Belt. 

Vehicular and pedestrian access to the bunker enclave is to be maintained by the
provision of pedestrian and vehicular gates within the fence.

The security of the bunker enclave would be significantly improved by the erection of the
proposed fence.

Not relevant to the application as public access to the site would be prohibited.

Not relevant to the application.

Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of merit and
the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.

The proposed fence would have no significant impact on existing landscaping features on
the site and the Trees and Landscape Officer considers its design to be appropriate
having regard to the location of the site within the Green Belt, subject to details of the
external finish and colour of the fence being submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority. This can be secured by an appropriate planning condition. It is
not considered that additional planting would be appropriate in this instance. As such, it is
considered that the scheme would be in accordance with the above Policy.

Not relevant to the application.

Not relevant to the application.

The applicant has confirmed that no changes are proposed to the drainage system as part
of the scheme. The Environment Agency has advised that it has no comments on the
application in view of this and the scheme therefore has no flooding or drainage
implications.

Not relevant to the application.

No replies have been received.

Not relevant to the application.

Page 21



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.21

7.22

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues
Not applicable.

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need to be aware
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The design of the proposed fence is considered appropriate in relation to the visual
amenity of the Green Belt and the impact on the listed structure. As the period for
representations in response to the requisite press advertisement and site notice will not
expire until 2 February 2011 it is recommended that delegated power be given to the
Head of Planning, Trading Standards and Environmental Protection to determine the
application, subject to no objections being received during this period and subject to
appropriate conditions.

11. Reference Documents

Planning Policy Statement 1 (Delivering Sustainable Development) (January 2005)
Planning Policy Guidance Note 2 (Green Belts) (January 1995)

Page 22



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Planning Policy Statement 5 (Planning for the Historic Environment) (March 2010)
The London Plan (February 2008)
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)

Mark Smith 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 23



L

L

L

L

E

LL

L

E

³

L
L

L

L L

L

L

L

L

L

L

R

R

R

L

L

³
³

L

³

R

L

E

L

L

L
R

L

L

L

L

L LL L

L

C

C

L

L

L
L

L

L

E

LL
L

L

L

E

C

L

L

L

L

L

³
L

L
L

C

L

L

L L L
L

L

L

R

L

L

L
L

L

L

L
L

E

L

E

LL

L

L

³

L
L ³

L

L

L

L

C

L
E

_

G

G

_

_G

A

A

A

_

_
_

A

_

Sports Ground

23

Lighting Towers

15
4

1

5

Playground

9

9

12

Constantine Place

8

B
IR

C
H

 C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

BAND

Weir

8

7

4

13

10

Leigh Mallory Bridge

17
8

House

44.8m

43.0m

294

The Cottage

16

LB

88

4

54.3m

CLOSE

6

Y
E

W
 T

R
E

E
 R

O
A

D

1

1

96b
94a

BIRCH CRESCENT

5

48.5m

Ameri

16
4

15
2

Playground

FB

45.4m

2
4

8

96a

53.9m

7

F Station

Sports Ground

16
6

FB

Path

Monument

5

8

P
A

T
C

H
C

L
O

S
E

3

1

11

94

4

18
8

17
6

Drain

Hillingdon

Pa
th

46.0m

290

VINCENT DRIVE

RAF Station

4

1

B
O

Y
L

E 
C

L
O

S
E

3

2

5

76

15

R
iv

er
 P

in
n

Drain

Path

44.5m

7

B
O

W
L

IN
G

RAF Station

8

2

96

15

VIN
E

 LA
N

E

PIK
E C

LO
SE

1

6

´

January
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283  2011

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

Underground Operations Room
RAF Uxbridge, Hillingdon Road

Uxbridge

585/APP/2010/2902

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:2,500

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Page 24



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

70 STATION ROAD WEST DRAYTON

Erection of a residential building to accommodate 35 flats (consisting of 12
one-bedroom units, 21 two-bedroom units and 2 three-bedroom units) with
associated parking and landscaping.

04/08/2010

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 2954/APP/2010/1810

Drawing Nos: Design and Access Statement
Air Quality Assessment
Arboricultural Report
Energy Statement
Envirocheck Report
Environmental Noise Survey
Environmental Site Assessment
Ground Investigation Report
Transport Statement
Tree Schedule
Perspective
PO1 REV J
PO5 REV A
PO2 REV L
PO4 REV F
PO3 REV G

Date Plans Received: 12/01/2010
04/08/2010
07/10/2010
06/12/2010
16/12/2010

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

Full planning permission is sought for the redevelopment of the site for a residential
development comprising of 35 residential units associated amenity space and parking.

The proposed development is acceptable in principle and the density of development
accords with the recommendations of the London Plan.

The site has an extensive planning history, including a recent appeal decision. 

Having regard to the Inspector's decision on the previous application it is considered that
the proposal would attain an acceptable appearance within the street scene, would not
have a detrimental impact on neighbouring occupiers and would provide an appropriate
residential environment for future occupiers.

The proposal is considered acceptable in terms of parking provision and highways
impacts.

Subject to conditions an appropriate level of sustainable design could be achieved.

08/10/2010Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 7

Page 25



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The proposal would provide 3 x one-bedroom and 3 x two-bedroom units as affordable
housing.  This level of provision has been fully justified by way of a Financial Viability
Assessment as the maximum level which the development can viably provide. The
applicant has also agreed to meet all other necessary planning obligations by way of a
legal agreement.

Subject to a S106 agreement and conditions, the application is recommended for
approval.

2. RECOMMENDATION

a) That the Council enters into an agreement with the applicant under Section 106
of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) and/or Section 278 of
the Highways Act 1980 (as amended) and/ or other appropriate legislation to
secure:

i)   The provision of 3 x one bedroom and 3 x two bedroom units as affordable
housing.

ii)  The provision of a contribution of £102,323 toward educational facilities.

ii)  The provision of a contribution of £13,682.71 toward healthcare facilities.

iii) The provision of a contribution of £30,000 toward community facilities.

iv)  The provision of a contribution of £20,000 toward Town Centre Improvements.

v)   The provision of a contribution of £1,452.45 toward Local Library Facilities.

vi)  The provision of construction training either as a formula based financial
contribution or in-kind.

vi) A cash contribution equal to 5% of the total cash contribution to enable the
management and monitoring of the requirements of the legal agreement.

b) That in respect of the application for planning permission, the applicant meets
the Council's reasonable costs in preparation of the Section 106 Agreement and
any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being completed.

c) That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement.

d) That if within 6 months, the S106 Agreement has not been finalised, delegated
powers be given to the Director of Planning and Community Services to refuse
planning permission for the following reasons: 

1. The development is not considered to have made adequate provision, through
planning obligations, for contributions towards educational facilities, healthcare
facilities, community facilities, town centre improvements, library facilities and
monitoring. Given that a legal agreement or unilateral undertaking has not been
secured to address this issue, the proposal is considered to be contrary to Policy
R17 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document for Planning Obligations
(Adopted July 2008).

Page 26



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

T8

OM1

MCD10

OM2

M1

Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

Development in accordance with Approved Plans

Refuse Facilities

Levels

Details/Samples to be Submitted

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

No development shall take place until details of facilities to be provided for the covered,
appropriately sign posted, secure and screened storage of refuse at the premises have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No part of the
development shall be occupied until the facilities have been provided in accordance with
the approved details and thereafter the facilities shall be permanently retained. 

REASON
In order to safeguard the amenities of the area, in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and London Plan
(February 2008) Policy 4B.1.

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in
accordance with policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

No development shall take place until details and/or samples of all materials, colours and
finishes to be used on all external surfaces have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

1

2

3

4

5

e) That subject to the above, the application be deferred for determination by the
Director of Planning and Community Services under delegated powers, subject to
the completion of legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 and other appropriate powers to the applicant.

f) That if the application is approved, the following conditions be attached:-

Page 27



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

M5

H1

H13

H14

Means of Enclosure - Bespoke

Traffic Arrangements - submission of details

Installation of gates onto a highway

Cycle Storage - details to be submitted

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

Before the development is commenced, details of boundary fencing or other means of
enclosure shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The details shall not include the provision of close boarded fencing adjacent to the road
frontages facing Station Road or Drayton Gardens. The approved means of enclosure
shall be erected before the development is occupied and shall be permanently retained
thereafter.

REASON
To safeguard privacy to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Development shall not begin until details of all traffic arrangements (including where
appropriate carriageways, footways, turning space, safety strips, sight lines at road
junctions, kerb radii, car parking areas and marking out of spaces, loading facilities,
closure of existing access and means of surfacing) have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved development shall not be
occupied until all such works have been constructed in accordance with the approved
details.  Thereafter, the parking areas, sight lines and loading areas must be
permanently retained and used for no other purpose at any time. Disabled parking bays
shall be a minimum of 4.8m long by 3.6m wide, or at least 3.0m wide where two adjacent
bays may share an unloading area.

REASON
To ensure pedestrian and vehicular safety and convenience and to ensure adequate off-
street parking, and loading facilities in compliance with Policy AM14 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Chapter 3C
of the London Plan . (February 2008).

No gates shall be installed which open outwards over the highway/footway.

REASON
To ensure that pedestrian and vehicular safety is not prejudiced in accordance with
Policies AM3 and AM8 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) and Chapter 3C of the London Plan. (February 2008).

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until details of 35
covered and secure cycle storage spaces have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter, the development shall not be
occupied or brought into use until the approved cycling facilities have been implemented
in accordance with the approved plan, with the facilities being permanently retained for
use by cyclists.

REASON
To ensure the provision and retention of facilities for cyclists to the development and

6

7

8

9

Page 28



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

TL1

TL2

TL3

Existing Trees - Survey

Trees to be retained

Protection of trees during site clearance and development

hence the availability of sustainable forms of transport to the site in accordance with
Policy AM9 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and Chapter 3C of the London Plan. (February 2008).

Prior to any work commencing on site, an accurate survey plan at a scale of not less than
1:200 shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
plan must show:-
 (i) Species, position, height, condition, vigour, age-class, branch spread and stem
diameter of all existing trees, shrubs and hedges on and immediately adjoining the site.
 (ii) A clear indication of trees, hedges and shrubs to be retained and removed.
 (iii) Existing and proposed site levels.
 (iv) Routes of any existing or proposed underground works and overhead lines including
their manner of construction.
 (v) Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees and other vegetation to be retained during construction
work.

REASON
To enable the Local Planning Authority to assess the amenity value of existing trees,
hedges and shrubs and the impact of the proposed development on them and to ensure
that the development conforms with Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority. 

If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged during construction,
or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or shrub shall be
planted at the same place and shall be of a size and species to be agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the first planting season following the
completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the
earlier.

Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the
effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with
the Local Planning Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery
Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'. Remedial work should be carried out
to BS 3998 (1989)  'Recommendations for Tree Work' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of
Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work
shall be completed in the first planting season following the completion of the
development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON
To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and to comply with Section 197 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Prior to the commencement of any site clearance or construction work, detailed drawings

10

11

12

Page 29



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

TL5

TL6

Landscaping Scheme - (full apps where details are reserved)

Landscaping Scheme - implementation

showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root areas/crown spread of
trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or development shall be
commenced until these drawings have been approved and the fencing has been erected
in accordance with the details approved.  Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height of 1.5 metres. The fencing
shall be retained in position until development is completed. The area within the
approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the course of the works and
in particular in these areas: 
1. There shall be no changes in ground levels; 
2. No materials or plant shall be stored; 
3. No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed. 
4. No materials or waste shall be burnt; and. 
5. No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority. 

REASON
To ensure that trees and other vegetation to be retained are not damaged during
construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with policy BE38 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme providing full details of hard
and soft landscaping works has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved. The scheme shall
include: -
· Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),
· Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,
· Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate,
· Implementation programme.
The scheme shall also include details of the following: -
· Proposed finishing levels or contours,
· Means of enclosure,
· Car parking layouts,
- Other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas,
- Hard surfacing materials proposed,
· Minor artefacts and structures (such as play equipment, furniture, refuse storage, signs,
or lighting),
· Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage,
power cables or communications equipment, indicating lines, manholes or associated
structures),
· Retained historic landscape features and proposals for their restoration where relevant.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality in compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

All hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
landscaping scheme and shall be completed within the first planting and seeding
seasons following the completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings,

13

14

Page 30



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

TL7

TL20

TL21

Maintenance of Landscaped Areas

Amenity Areas (Residential Developments)

Tree Protection, Building & Demolition Method Statement

whichever is the earlier period. 

The new planting and landscape operations should comply with the requirements
specified in BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'
and in BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding
Hard Surfaces)'. Thereafter, the areas of hard and soft landscaping shall be permanently
retained.

Any tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding shown on the approved landscaping scheme
which within a period of 5 years from the completion of development dies, is removed or
in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously damaged or diseased
shall be replaced in the same place in the next planting season with another such tree,
shrub or area of turfing or seeding of similar size and species unless the Local Planning
Authority first gives written consent to any variation.

REASON
To ensure that the landscaped areas are laid out and retained in accordance with the
approved plans in order to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality in
compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

No development shall take place until a schedule of landscape maintenance for a
minimum period of 5 years has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.  The scheme shall include details of the arrangements for its
implementation.  Maintenance shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
schedule.

REASON
To ensure that the approved landscaping is properly maintained in accordance with
policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (September 2007).

None of the dwellings hereby permitted shall be occupied, until the outdoor amenity area
serving the dwellings as shown on the approved plans (including balconies where these
are shown to be provided) has been made available for the use of residents of the
development. Thereafter, the amenity areas shall so be retained.

REASON
To ensure the continued availability of external amenity space for residents of the
development, in the interests of their amenity and the character of the area in
accordance with policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) and London Plan (February 2008) Policy 4B.1.

Prior to development commencing on site, a method statement outlining the sequence of
development on the site including demolition, building works and tree protection shall be
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, and the scheme thereafter
implemented in accordance with the approved method statement.

REASON
To ensure that trees can be satisfactorily retained on the site in accordance with Policy
BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

15

16

17

Page 31



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

Contamination

Noise

The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a scheme to deal with
contamination has been submitted in accordance with the Supplementary Planning
Guidance on Land Contamination and approved by the Local Planning Authority (LPA).
All works which form part of the remediation scheme shall be completed before any part
of the development is occupied or brought into use unless the LPA dispenses with any
such requirement specifically and in writing.

The scheme shall include all of the following measures unless the LPA dispenses with
any such requirement specifically and in writing:
(i) A desk-top study carried out by a competent person to characterise the site and
provide information on the history of the site/surrounding area and to identify and
evaluate all potential sources of contamination and impacts on land and water and all
other identified receptors relevant to the site;
(ii) A site investigation, including where relevant soil, soil gas, surface and groundwater
sampling, together with the results of analysis and risk assessment shall be carried out
by a suitably qualified and accredited consultant/contractor. The report should also
clearly identify all risks, limitations and recommendations for remedial measures to make
the site suitable for the proposed use;
(iii) (a) A written method statement providing details of the remediation scheme and how
the completion of the remedial works will be verified shall be agreed in writing with the
LPA prior to commencement and all requirements shall be implemented and completed
to the satisfaction of the LPA by a competent person. No deviation shall be made from
this scheme without the express written agreement of the LPA prior to its implementation.
(b) If during remedial or development works contamination not addressed in the
submitted remediation scheme is identified, an addendum to the remediation scheme
must be agreed with the LPA prior to implementation; and
(iv) Upon completion of the remedial works, this condition will not be discharged until a
verification report has been submitted to and approved by the LPA. The report shall
include details of the final remediation works and their verification to show that the works
have been carried out in full and in accordance with the approved methodology.

Note: The Environmental Protection Unit (EPU) must be consulted at each stage for their
advice when using this condition. The Environment Agency (EA) should be consulted
when using this condition.

REASON
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems and the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable
risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors policy OE11 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Development shall not begin until a scheme for protecting the proposed development
from road traffic noise, has been submitted to and approved by, the Local Planning
Authority.  The noise protection scheme shall meet acceptable noise design criteria both
indoors and outdoors.   The scheme shall include such combination of sound insulation,
acoustic ventilation and other measures as may be approved by the LPA.  The approved
scheme shall be implemented in full prior to first occupation of the development and
thereafter be retained and maintained for the life of the development.

REASON

18

19

Page 32



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

OM19

Ventilation

Air Quality - Protecting future residents

Construction Management Plan

To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of the proposed development is not
adversely affected by road traffic noise in accordance with policy OE5 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Mechanical ventilation, air-conditioning or air handling plant and/or machinery shall not
be used on the premises until a scheme which specifies the provisions to be made for
the control of noise emanating from the site or to other parts of the building, has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme shall
include such combination of measures as may be approved by the LPA.  Thereafter, the
scheme shall be implemented and maintained in full compliance with the approved
measures.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

The development shall not commence until details of a scheme designed to minimise the
ingress of polluted air has been submitted and approved by the LPA.  The said scheme
shall include such secure provision as to ensure it endures for so long as the
development is available for use.

REASON
In areas where there the air pollution levels are above, or close to, the national and
European limits, this is designed to safeguard the future residents from the ingress of the
poor outdoor air quality in accordance with Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007), Policy 4A.17 of the London Plan
and the Council's Air Quality SPG. The design must take into account climate change
pollutants and ensure there are no trade-offs between local and global pollutant
emissions.
Suitable ventilation systems will need to: 
o Take air from a clean location or treat the air and remove pollutants;
o Designed to minimise energy usage; 
o Be sufficient to prevent summer overheating;
o Have robust arrangements for maintenance.

Prior to development commencing, the applicant shall submit a demolition and
construction management plan to the Local Planning Authority for its approval.  The plan
shall detail:

(i)  The phasing of development works
(ii) The hours during which development works will occur (please refer to informative I15
for maximum permitted working hours).
(iii) A programme to demonstrate that the most valuable or potentially contaminating
materials and fittings can be removed safely and intact for later re-use or processing.
(iv)Measures to prevent mud and dirt tracking onto footways and adjoining roads
(including wheel washing facilities).
(v) Traffic management and access arrangements (vehicular and pedestrian) and
parking provisions for contractors during the development process (including measures

20

21

22

Page 33



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

DIS5

SUS2

SUS5

Lifetime Homes & Wheelchair Standards - Details

Energy Efficiency Major Applications (outline where energy s

Sustainable Urban Drainage

to reduce the numbers of construction vehicles accessing the site during peak hours).
(vi) Measures to reduce the impact of the development on local air quality and dust
through minimising emissions throughout the demolition and construction process.
(vii) The storage of demolition/construction materials on site.

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of
the demolition and construction process.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies 2007).

No development shall commence until details have been submitted to, and approved in
writing to the Local Planning Authority demonstrating that all residential units within the
development hereby approved shall be built in accordance with 'Lifetime Homes'
Standards. In addition 4 units shall be constructed as full wheelchair accessible units in
full accordance with the details shown on drawing PO5 Rev A.  Thereafter all units on
site shall be constructed in full accordance with the approved details and/or drawing PO5
Rev A.

REASON
To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (February 2008) Policies 3A.5, 4B.1 &
4B.5 and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'.

No development shall take place on site until an energy efficiency report has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The energy
efficiency report shall demonstrate how the Mayors Energy Hierarchy will be integrated
into the development, including a full assessment of the site's energy demand and
carbon dioxide emissions, measures to reduce this demand and the provision of 20% of
the sites energy needs through on site renewable energy generation. The methods
identified within the approved report shall be integrated within the development and
thereafter permanently retained and maintained.

REASON
To ensure that the development incorporates appropriate energy efficiency measures in
accordance with policies 4A.1, 4A.3, 4A.4, 4A.6, 4A.7, 4A.9, and 4A.10 of the London
Plan (February 2008).

No development shall take place on site until details of the incorporation of sustainable
urban drainage have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved details shall thereafter be installed on site and thereafter
permanently retained and maintained.

REASON
To ensure that surface water run off is handled as close to its source as possible in
compliance with policy 4A.14 of the London Plan (February 2008) and to ensure the
development does not increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy OE8 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007), polices 4A.12
and 4A.13 of the London Plan (February 2008) and PPS25.

23

24

25

Page 34



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

SUS8

NON2

OM14

NONSC

NONSC

Electric Charging Points

Roof Terrace Privacy & Safety

Secured by Design

CCTV & Lighting

Archaeology

Before development commences, plans and details of 2 electric vehicle charging point(s),
serving the development and capable of charging multiple vehicles simultaneously, shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To encourage sustainable travel and to comply with London Plan Policy 4A.3.

No development shall take place until details of measures to prevent overlooking arising
from the roof terrace and to prevent future occupants from falling from the roof structure
have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.  The
measures will be implemented in accordance with the approved details prior to
occupation of the development and thereafter permanently retained.

REASON
To ensure the appearance of the balconies and roof terrace screening is appropriate and
to prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policies BE13 and BE24
of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

The development hereby approved shall incorporate measures to minimise the risk of
crime and to meet the specific security needs of the application site and the
development. Details of security measures shall be submitted and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority before development commences. Any security measures to
be implemented in compliance with this condition shall reach the standard necessary to
achieve the 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon Metropolitan
Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the Association of Chief
Police Officers (ACPO).

REASON
In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with policies 4B.1 and 4B.6 of the London Plan.

Prior to development commencing, the applicant shall submit details of CCTV and
lighting systems for the site.  These shall demonstrate a number of cameras and
coverage commensurate with that shown on the details at application stage.  The
approved details shall be installed prior to first occupation of any part of the development
hereby approved and thereafter permanently maintained.

REASON
In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, and to reflect the guidance contained in Circular 5/94
'Planning Out Crime' and the Council's SPG on Community Safety By Design.

26

27

28

29

30

Page 35



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Vehicular access gate

No Satellite Dishes/Antennae

Details of Fenestration

Details of Spiral Staircase

No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation of a
programme of archaeological work, in accordance with a written scheme of investigation
which has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development does not disturb archaeological remains of
importance in accordance with policy BE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved details of the access
gate to the undercroft car park, incorporating facilities for its operation by disabled
persons, and capable of being manually operated in the event of a power failure shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
access gate shall be installed in accordance with the approved details and maintained for
so long as the development remains on site.

REASON
In order to ensure the development achieves an appropriate level of accessibility in
accordance with Policy 3A.5 of the London Plan and the HDAS - Residential Layouts.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 25 of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting
that Order with or without modification), no satellite dishes or antennae shall be installed
on the building hereby approved.

REASON
To enable the Local Planning Authority to assess all the implications of the development
and in accordance with policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

No development shall commence on site until full details of all fenestration, including
details of any angled windows and samples of any obscure glazing, have been submitted
to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter the development
shall be constructed in full accordance with the approved details.

REASON
In order to ensure that both neighbouring and future occupiers benefit from an
acceptable level of privacy in accordance with Policy BE24 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

No development shall commence on site until full details of the external spiral staircase
have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.  The
submitted details shall include elevations, details of ballustrades/handrails, materials and
colours.  Thereafter the development shall be implemented in full accordance with the
approved details.

REASON
In order to ensure the escape stairs maintain an appropriate visual appearance in
keeping with the character of the area in accordance with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon

31

32

33

34

Page 36



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

Rainwater Recycling

Evacuation Management Plan

Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

No phase of the development hereby approved shall take place until details of water
efficiency measures for that phase, including grey water recycling, have been submitted
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be
used until the approved measures have been implemented and shall thereafter be
permanently retained and maintained unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To safeguard water resources in accordance with Policy 4A.16 of the London Plan

No development shall take place until a management plan, setting out details of how
disabled persons are to be evacuated from the buildings in the event of emergencies,
including fires, and defining a protocol for evacuation using the new lift, as well as
practices and procedures to be used in the event that disabled people are on the first
floor and the lift is unreachable due to fire. 

REASON
TO ensure that people with disabilities have adequate access to the development in
accordance with Policy R16 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) and London Plan Policies (February 2008) Policies 3A.17 and 4B.5.

35

36

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

BE13
OE1

BE24

AM14
AM3
AM8

AM9

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
New development and car parking standards.
Proposals for new roads or widening of existing roads
Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and
implementation of road construction and traffic management
schemes
Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking

Page 37



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I1

I12

I15

Building to Approved Drawing

Notification to Building Contractors

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

3

4

5

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

The applicant/developer should ensure that the site constructor receives copies of all
drawings approved and conditions/informatives attached to this planning permission.
During building construction the name, address and telephone number of the contractor
(including an emergency telephone number) should be clearly displayed on a hoarding
visible from outside the site.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank and
Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public health
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by

BE38

BE23
OE11

OE5
LPP 4B.1
LPP 3A.5
LPP 4B.5
LPP 4A.3
LPP 4A.7
OE8

LPP 4B.6
BE1

facilities
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated
land - requirement for ameliorative measures
Siting of noise-sensitive developments
London Plan Policy 4B.1 - Design principles for a compact city.
London Plan Policy 3A.5 - Housing Choice
London Plan Policy 4B.5 - Creating an inclusive environment.
London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.
London Plan Policy 4A.7 - Renewable Energy
Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Development within archaeological priority areas

Page 38



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I17

I23

I3

I31

I43

I47

I49

Communal Amenity Space

Works affecting the Public Highway - Vehicle Crossover

Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Sites of Archaeological Interest

Keeping Highways and Pavements free from mud etc

Damage to Verge

Secured by Design

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

Where it is possible to convey communal areas of landscaping to individual
householders, the applicant is requested to conclude a clause in the contract of the sale
of the properties reminding owners of their responsibilities to maintain landscaped areas
in their ownership and drawing to their attention the fact that a condition has been
imposed to this effect in this planning permission.

The development requires the formation of a vehicular crossover, which will be
constructed by the Council.  This work is also subject to the issuing of a separate licence
to obstruct or open up the public highway.  For further information and advice contact: -
Highways Maintenance Operations, 4W/07, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

The application falls within an area in which archaeological finds of importance might be
uncovered and while the scale of the works does not necessitate a full archaeological
evaluation, a 'watching brief' may be required. Before commencement of the proposed
works, you are therefore requested to send a copy of the approved drawings to English
Heritage to allow them the opportunity to keep a watching brief during the course of the
works. Contact - English Heritage, 23 Savile Row, London, W1S 2ET (Tel. 020 7973
3000).

You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the pavement or public
highway. You are further advised that failure to take appropriate steps to avoid spillage or
adequately clear it away could result in action being taken under the Highways Act 1980.

You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles
delivering materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to the public
footway. Any damage will require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and
at the applicant's expense. For further information and advice contact - Highways
Maintenance Operations, Central Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128
Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Page 39



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I58 Opportunities for Work Experience13

14

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site has an area of approximately 0.26ha and a disused garage building,
formerly used as a car showroom and vehicle workshop. The existing building on site
comprises a largely single storey structure, with a part two storey projection located over
the middle of the site. The remainder of the site is covered by hard standing.  The site has
recently been fenced off with hoardings.

The site is bounded by Station Road to the north, to the east by Drayton Gardens and to
the west and south by residential properties. The site has an overall frontage to Station
Road of approximately 59 metres and extends around the corner to partially front Drayton
Gardens by approximately 16 metres. The site, while located within a Town Centre
location is located within an area that reflects a predominant scale of two to three storey
residential and mixed use development. The application site is bounded by two storey
detached residential dwellings to the south and east, and to the west is a larger scale
three storey flatted development and on the north side of Station Road, there is a mix of
two and three storey office and mixed use development.

Station Road is designated as a Local Distributor Road on the Proposals Map of the
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan. The site is located approximately 300
metres from West Drayton Rail Station and has a Public Transport Accessibility Level
(PTAL) score of 3 on a scale of 1 to 6 where 6 represents the highest level of

The Council has identified the specific security needs of the application site to be:
Appropriate boundary treatment, including provision of defensive spaces adjacent to the
ground floor units;
Full access control to the car parking area;
CCTV coverage of the site, in particular the car parking area and cycle parking.

You are advised to submit details to overcome the specified security need(s) in order to
comply with condition 28 of this planning permission.

(Please Note: This Informative must accompany Condition OM14).

The developer is requested to maximise the opportunities to provide high quality work
experience for young people (particularly the 14 - 19 age group) from the London
Borough of Hillingdon, in such areas as bricklaying, plastering, painting and decorating,
electrical installation, carpentry and landscaping in conjunction with the Hillingdon
Education and Business Partnership. 

Please contace: Mr Peter Sale, Chief Executive Officer, Hillingdon Training Ltd:  contact
details - c/o Hillingdon Training Ltd, Unit A, Eagle Office Centre, The Runway, South
Ruislip, HA4 6SE  Tel: 01895 671 976 email: petersale@hillingdontraining.co.uk

The applicant is encouraged to discuss with Council officers in conjunction with the
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Officer whether on site CCTV cameras can be
linked to the Councils central CCTV system.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 40



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

accessibility.

The site has three existing vehicle access points, two off Station Road and one (an egress
only) off Drayton Gardens.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Full planning permission is sought for the redevelopment of the site for a residential
development comprising of 35 residential units associated amenity space and parking.

The proposal provides for a residential mix comprising 12 one bedroom units, 21 two
bedroom units and 2 three bedroom units.  The scheme proposes 10% of the units to be
designed to wheelchair accessible standards (units 4, 16, 22 and 29) all of which are on
floors serviced by two lifts.

The development provides for a part two, part three storey development, supported by an
undercroft parking area with 35 spaces (four of which are designed to standards
appropriate for disabled occupiers).

The development is supported by approximately 840sq.m of communal amenity space
comprising two areas of ground floor communal amenity space and a communal roof
terrace.  A children's play area is proposed, located in the centre of the site well away
from the road frontage.  Additionally five of the ground floor units would be provided with
private amenity areas or terraces.

The scheme represents a resubmission of an application previously dismissed at appeal
(Appeal Ref: APP/R5510/A/10/2120328/NWF)in an attempt to overcome the Inspectors
concerns.  A summary of the amendments is:
* reduction in height to a maximum of three storey
* reduction in the number of proposed units;
* replacement of undercroft amenity area with 3 units; and
* additional information relating to security of the undercroft parking area.

2954/APP/2007/2344

2954/APP/2008/1160

2954/APP/2009/118

70 Station Road West Drayton

70 Station Road West Drayton

70 Station Road West Drayton

ERECTION OF A PART TWO, PART THREE, PART FOUR, PART FIVE STOREY
RESIDENTIAL BUILDING TO ACCOMMODATE 66 FLATS WITH ASSOCIATED BASEMENT
PARKING AND LANDSCAPING.

ERECTION OF A RESIDENTIAL BUILDING TO ACCOMMODATE 59 FLATS WITH
ASSOCIATED BASEMENT PARKING AND LANDSCAPING CONDITIONS.

Mixed-use development consisting of a single retail unit (internal floorspace of 310 sq metres),
and 41 residential dwellings with associated parking.

30-10-2007

08-09-2008

Decision:

Decision:

Refused

Refused

3.3 Relevant Planning History

WithdrawnAppeal: 27-02-2008

Page 41



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The application site has an extensive history of 4 previous applications for residential
redevelopment, each of which has been refused for individual reasons.

The most relevant planning history is application 2954/APP/2009/1488 which was refused
on the 30 November 2009 for the following reasons:

1. The proposed development, by reason of its density, design, layout and scale,
represents an over-development of the site, which fails to harmonise with the existing
street scene and is out of keeping with the character and appearance of the surrounding
area. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE13 and BE19 of the London
Borough of Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (adopted 1998) Saved Policies 27th
September 2007 and Policy 3A.3, and 4B.1 of the London Plan.

2. The proposed development will have a detrimental impact upon the outlook, visual
amenity and privacy currently enjoyed by occupiers of neighbouring residential properties,
in particular No 2 Drayton Gardens, contrary to Policies BE21 and BE24 of the London
Borough of Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007 and
Hillingdon's HDAS Residential Layouts SPD.

3. The proposed development by reason of its design and layout fails to provide for both a
high quality and safe external living environment for future occupiers, in particular the
scheme provides for a poor quality design response for all ground level communal
amenity areas within the site that immediately adjoin the proposed undercroft parking
areas and access road. The proposal fails to incorporate measures to minimise the risk of
crime and meet the specific security needs of the application site, including the proposals
lack of access controls into the site and inadequate levels of natural surveillance over the
main communal amenity spaces. As such, the development is contrary to Policy BE23 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies 2007, and Policies 3A.3, 4B.1
and 4B.6 of the London Plan 2004 and the design principles contained within the adopted
Hillingdon Design and Access Statement (HDAS): Residential Layouts.'

4. The development fails to reserve appropriate space on the road frontage to enable the
establishment of tree planting which would be of an appropriate scale alongside the
proposed building. Without the provision of appropriate tree planting the development as a
whole would fail to achieve an appropriate appearance within the street scene contrary to
policies BE13, BE19 and BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

5. The applicant has failed to provide contributions towards the improvements of services
and facilities as a consequence of demands created by the proposed development (in

2954/APP/2009/1488 70 Station Road West Drayton

43 residential dwellings (consisting of 14 one- bedroom units, 26 two-bedroom units, 3 three-
bedroom units) with associated parking and landscaping.

05-05-2009

30-11-2009

Decision:

Decision:

Refused

Refused

Comment on Relevant Planning History

DismissedAppeal: 18-05-2010

Page 42



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

respect of education, health, community facilities, town centre improvements and open
space facilities). The scheme therefore conflicts with Policy R17 of the London Borough of
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (adopted 1998) Saved Policies 27th September
2007.

6. The applicant has failed to provide, through an appropriate legal agreement, an
adequate provision of on site affordable housing. The proposal is therefore contrary to
Policy Pt1.17 of the London Borough of Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies September 2007, Policies 3A.10 and 3A.11 of the London Plan (February 2008)
and the London Borough of Hillingdon's Supplementary Planning Document on Planning
Obligations.

An appeal; supported by a unilateral undertaking securing affordable housing and
contributions towards education, health, library, public realm and community facilities; was
subsequently lodged with the Planning Inspectorate.

The appeal was dismissed on the 18 May 2010, with only limited aspects of the Council's
refusal reasons upheld. The Inspectors conclusion on each of the Council's concerns and
where appropriate officer comment are provided below for reference.

1. CHARACTER AND APPEARANCE
Inspectors conclusion - 'On this issue I conclude that, whilst the acceptability of the
proposals would not depend on trees and that it has not been shown that the flats would
constitute over-development, neither of these points would outweigh the harm to the
character and appearance of the area as a result of the uncharacteristic height.  The
proposals would therefore conflict with current adopted Policies BE13 and BE19 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (UDP) which require the appearance of development
to harmonise with the existing streetscene and for new development within residential
areas to complement the character of the area.'

Officer comment - It is noted that the Inspector found harm only by way of the
developments height.

2. LIVING CONDITIONS OF NEIGHBOURING OCCUPIERS
Inspectors conclusion - 'For all these reasons I find that the proposals would not lead to
an unacceptable loss of privacy to No.2 Drayton Gardens.  I therefore find that the living
conditions for neighbouring residents would be acceptable and would accord with UDP
Policies BE21 and BE24 which do not permit a significant loss of residential amenity and
require privacy to be protected.'

3a.AMENITY SPACE
Inspectors conclusion - 'A small part of the proposed amenity space would be under the
building adjoining the proposed parking area.  While this arrangement might keep rain off
a barbecue I consider it would otherwise be unsuitable as an amenity space.  However,
this area does not need to be included as part of the overall calculations for the proposed
amenity spaces to satisfy the Council's Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) titled
Hillingdon Design and Access Statement: 'Residential Layouts' (HDAS).  While a larger
area would be alongside the parking, conditions could require screening to separate these
areas.  On this issue I find that the proposals would accord with UDP Policy BE23 which
requires new residential buildings to provide sufficient external amenity space.'

3b. CRIME

Page 43



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Inspectors conclusion - 'Given the extent of access and the lack of supervision from
adjacent flats I consider that the parking area would be likely to attract criminal activity.
For these reasons I find that the proposals would be poorly designed with regard to the
need to minimise crime. The proposals would therefore conflict with the need to minimise
crime.  The proposals would therefore conflict with the design principles in the adopted
HDAS which aims to 'design out' crime.'

4. FRONTAGE LANDSCAPING
The Inspectors conclusion on reason for refusal 1 incorporated consideration of this
matter.

5. & 6.UNILATERAL UNDERTAKING
Inspectors conclusions - 'The undertaking would provide for 20% of the flats to be
affordable housing.  While this would be below the normal expectation the Council
confirmed that, in light of the submitted Financial Viability Assessment, this would be
acceptable.  I agree and find that this provision would satisfy Local Plan Policy Pt1.17 and
meets the tests in Regulation 122.'; and
'The financial contributions would be in accordance with the adopted formulae in the
Council's SPD on Planning Obligations.  However, other than generalised claims at the
Hearing that these would be local projects, I have little information on how they would be
related to the proposed development.  Consequently I am not persuaded that these
contributions would accord with the tests in Regulation 122 and I am therefore unable to
take them into account in determining this appeal.'

Officer comment - The Inspectors conclusion is a material consideration, however the
conclusion in relation to planning obligations relates to the information before the
Inspector at the time.  Officers are of the view that the contributions are robust and can be
fully justified. 

GENERAL
In addition it is noted that the Inspector acknowledged that the proposals would be
acceptable with regard to the loss of the existing garages, sustainability, the use of
brownfield land, the mix of housing, traffic and parking, proximity to facilities and transport
link, and offer benefit to regeneration.

The current application is a resubmission, which is very similar in layout and design to the
proposal considered at appeal, however the applicant has made amendments to key
aspects of the scheme such as height, in an attempt to overcome the Inspectors
concerns.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Planning Policy Statement 1 (Delivering Sustainable Development)
Planning Policy Statement Planning and Climate Change
Planning Policy Statement 3 (Housing)
Planning Policy Guidance Note 13 (Transport)
The London Plan (2008)
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement - New Residential Layouts
Accessible Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document, Planning Obligations

Page 44



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.10 To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenity and
the character of the area.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE13

OE1

BE24

AM14

AM3

AM8

AM9

BE38

BE23

OE11

OE5

LPP 4B.1

LPP 3A.5

LPP 4B.5

LPP 4A.3

LPP 4A.7

OE8

LPP 4B.6

BE1

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

New development and car parking standards.

Proposals for new roads or widening of existing roads

Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking facilities

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated land -
requirement for ameliorative measures

Siting of noise-sensitive developments

London Plan Policy 4B.1 - Design principles for a compact city.

London Plan Policy 3A.5 - Housing Choice

London Plan Policy 4B.5 - Creating an inclusive environment.

London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.

London Plan Policy 4A.7 - Renewable Energy

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Development within archaeological priority areas

Part 2 Policies:

Not applicable16th November 2010

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

The application was advertised in accordance with the statutory requirements and 98 nearby
owner/occupiers consulted including the Yiewlsey & West Drayton Town Centre Action Group and
the Yiewsley Community Involvement Group.

Page 45



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

POLICY
No objection, as per previous applications.

HIGHWAYS
No objection.

URBAN DESIGN
Background:
This application, on a site currently occupied by a garage, lies on the edge of the commercial area
in West Drayton.  The proposal has been refused permission on four previous occasions, and on
the last occasion it was dismissed on appeal.

Whilst the principle of a modern flatted development would be quite acceptable in an area such as
this, and the overall height has been reduced to two and three storeys to fit better with its context,
there are aspects of the proposed design which give rise to concern.   These include the rolled zinc
hipped, crown roofs (flat roofs are considered preferable), the bland, undercroft parking at
pavement level and the lack of adequate planting space along the Station Road frontage.

Both the concern at the design and the inadequacy of the planting, were aired in full at the recent
appeal hearing, but the Inspector, in his report, found these elements satisfactory and registered

4 letters of objection have been received raising concerns regarding:
(i)   Construction impacts;
(ii)  Traffic and congestion implications;
(iii) Adequacy of infrastructure (plumbing etc.);
(iv)  Loss of privacy;
(v)   Potential damage to property arising from proposed landscaping;
(vi)  Adequacy of proposed parking arrangements; and
(vii) Adequacy of infrastructure (schools, healthcare etc.)

ENGLISH HERITAGE
I do not consider that any further work need be undertaken prior to determination of this planning
application but that the archaeological position should be reserved by attaching a condition to any
consent granted under this application.

THAMES WATER
No objections, but would seek to provide advice to the applicant by way of informatives should
approval be granted.

DEFENCE ESTATES
No objection.

BAA
No objection.

NATS
No objection.

CRIME PREVENTION DESIGN ADVISER
No objection, subject to conditions to ensure:
(i)  Achievement of Secure by Design Standards; and
(ii) The provision of the CCTV system which has been previously discussed with the applicant.

Page 46



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

concern only at the overall height of the scheme.  Given that the height has now been lowered,
there is not considered to be room for manoeuvre on other matters.  In the circumstances, the
scheme is considered acceptable.

Recommendations:
Acceptable

TREES AND LANDSCAPE
There are several trees close to the site, but none on it. 

The application includes an arboricultural (tree) survey and report (from 2009). The report confirms
that there are no trees on the site, but there is a group of trees (off-site) close to the southern
boundary of the site, which includes one significant tree, a Sycamore (tree 5), in the group. Tree 5
affords some screening of the site and is a constraint on the development of the site.

The report refers to proposed layout and confirms that, subject to a detailed methodology of works
about 5-6m from the Sycamore, the scheme makes provision for the long-term retention of the
existing trees of merit. Tree-related matters can be dealt with by conditions TL1 (levels and
services), TL2, TL3 (referring to the submitted/approved tree protection drawing), and TL21 (tree
protection and construction method statement).

There is very limited space for landscaping on the road frontage of the site and for trees close to
the front wall of the building. However, this matter was considered by the Inspector, who dismissed
the appeal against the Council's refusal to grant permission previously. The Inspector found that,
whilst such trees might either be unsuccessful or may have to be pruned, the lack of planting would
not in itself harm the character or appearance of the street scene.

In the light of the Inspector's decision, and subject to conditions TL1, TL2, TL3, TL5, TL6, TL7 and
TL21, the application is acceptable in terms of Saved Policy BE38 of the UDP.

ACCESS OFFICER
The amended plans address all of my previous comments with the exception of the following:
1. The bathrooms/ensuite facilities should be designed in accordance with Lifetime Home
standards.  At least 700mm should be provided to one side of the WC, with 1100 mm provided
between the front edge of the toilet pan and a door or wall opposite.

No objection, subject to the above point being addressed.

S106 OFFICER
The applicant has submitted a Financial Viability Assessment which demonstrates that the scheme
is able to provide a maximum of 3 x one bedroom and 3 x two bedroom units as affordable housing
alongside the planning obligations required.  This assessment has been independently verified and
accordingly affordable housing is not sought in relation to the development.

The proposed development of 43 residential units would therefore necessitate the following
contributions in line with the Council's Supplementary Planning document for Planning Obligations:

Affordable Housing: 3 x one bedroom units and 3 x two bedroom units;
Education: a contribution in the sum of £102,323;
Health: a contribution in the sum of £13,682.71;
Community facilities: a contribution in the sum of £30,000;
Town centre: a contribution in the sum of £20,000;
Libraries: a contribution in the sum of £1,452.45;

Page 47



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Construction Training: either a contribution in accordance with the adopted formula or in-kind; and
Project Management and Monitoring fee: 5% of total cash contributions.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT - CONTAMINATION
I refer to the new planning application for the above development and my previous e-mail to Nigel
Bryce of 26 June 2008 regarding the previous application for 59 Flats (2954/APP/2008/1160). 

The information submitted with the new application is the same information considered previously
for the last application. There is no separate detailed remediation strategy yet for the site.
Therefore the comments in my previous e-mail still apply. 

Briefly the two reports in the new application are:  A summary report (Phase 1) by Arcadis
Consultants dated November 2001 provides details on the 1997 decommissioning of the petrol
station by the removal of underground fuel tanks and contaminated soil found near the tanks. A
second report by GEA Consultants dated June 2007 provides a new site investigation, and advice
on contamination levels and remediation issues. 

There will likely be some significant remediation necessary at this site. However it may be that the
proposed large car basement will account for the removal of much contaminated soil. I would
advise adding out contaminated land condition to any permission as below.

Recommendation: Should permission be granted the Council's standard contamination and
remediation condition be imposed.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT - NOISE & AIR QUALITY

Noise:
I confirm that the environmental noise survey and PPG24 assessment report has been received.
The front facade of the building falls within category C of PPG24 Noise Exposure Categories for
Dwellings.

PPG24 NEC Category C states that: - 

  Planning permission should not normally be granted. Where it is considered that permission
should be given, for example because there are no alternative quieter sites available, conditions
should be imposed to ensure a commensurate level of protection against noise

A condition requiring a scheme for noise mitigation measures is therefore required.

Air Quality:
The proposed development will introduce a number of residential units to an area 
that falls within APEC-B. The London Councils Guidance states that :-
  where a site falls within APEC   B consideration should be given to mitigation 
measures aimed at reducing the exposure of future occupants to elevated 
pollution levels.

As indicated in the submitted Air Quality Assessment, consideration should be 
given to additional measures such as the use of non-opening windows for ground
floor units, the internal design of each unit, locating habitable rooms away from
the front  facade facing onto Station Road and the installation of 
mechanical ventilation, which would provide further protection against exposure
to elevated pollution concentrations. The most appropriate measures need to
be discussed and agreed with LBH.

Page 48



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Policy LE4 considers proposals that involve the loss of existing industrial floorspace or
land outside designated industrial and business areas.

Whilst the garage is a Sui Generis use, the workshop type functions would bring it within
industrial floorspace consideration. The site has been vacant for two years, however it is
noted that recently limited use has been reintroduced on site. The site is immediately
adjacent to a residential area. There are other vacant sites in nearby designated
employment locations which are considered more appropriate for industrial and
warehousing activities. The site has the potential to contribute to the regeneration of
Yiewsley and West Drayton town centre. As a result Policy LE4's requirements are met in
terms of the re-use.

Policy H4 states that a mix of housing units of different sizes should be provided in
residential developments and in particular one and two bedroom units within Town Centre
locations will be preferable. The supporting text states: 'The Council recognises the
importance of residential accommodation in town centres as a part of the overall mix of
uses which is necessary to ensure their vitality and attractiveness. Such housing offers
particular advantages in terms of accessibility to town centre facilities, employment
opportunities and public  transport. In order to maximise the residential potential of town
centre sites, residential development within them should comprise predominantly one or
two-bedroom units.

The scheme provides for a percentage mix of 35% 1-bed and 60% 2-bed 5% 3 bed units.
This mix is considered to be acceptable with respect to Policy H4.

Policy H5 states that the Council will encourage the provision of dwellings suitable for
large families. However, the proposal will promote an appropriate mix of 1, 2 and 3 bed
units within this Town Centre location and provides for an increase in the number of units
which would meet other forms of housing need in the Borough.

On the basis that there is an established need and that the re-use of brownfield land is
encouraged, provided site specific issues are addressed, the principle for the re-use of the
site for residential can be established.

London Plan Policy 3A.3 seeks to maximise the potential of sites. The site is in a District
centre with an urban character with a PTAL of 3. The London Plan (2008) provides for a
density range between 70-170u/ha or 200-450hr/ha for sites with a PTAL 3 in an urban
location and with an indicative average unit size of 2.7hr-3.0hr/unit.

The scheme would result in a density of 131 units per hectare or 363 habitable rooms per
hectare.

The proposed scheme therefore falls within the London Plan table 3A.2 Density matrix
indicative guidelines in terms of number of units and habitable room guidelines. Subject to
the scheme achieving an appropriate design in relation to other planning policies and
other material considerations the proposed density is considered acceptable.

Ideally , we would want to be seeing ventilation systems that minimise polluted 
air from outside being drawn into residential dwellings.  This could be secured by way of condition.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 49



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.04

7.05

7.07

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The site is located within an Archaeological Priority Area, being an area where
archaeological remains may be anticipated. English Heritage has requested that an
archaeological condition be carried through in the event that the scheme is approved.

Defence Estates Safeguarding, BAA and NATS (En Route) Limited have no safeguarding
objections to the proposal.

The proposal is not located within the Green Belt and therefore no Green Belt policies are
relevant to the consideration of this scheme.

The design and layout of the scheme remain consistent with those previously considered
under application 2954/APP/2009/1488, in particular the roof form, fenestration and
materials are consistent with the previous proposal.  However the density of the
development has been reduced by 8 units and this has enabled the development to be
accommodated with a maximum height of 3 storeys, as opposed to the 4 storey height
which was sought previously.

The Council's first and fourth reasons for refusal on the previous application stated:
'The proposed development, by reason of its density, design, layout and scale, represents
an over-development of the site, which fails to harmonise with the existing street scene
and is out of keeping with the character and appearance of the surrounding area.  The
proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE13 and BE19 of the London Borough of
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (adopted 1998) Saved Policies 27th September
2007 and Policy 3A.3, and 4B.1 of the London Plan.'; and

'The development fails to reserve appropriate space on the road frontage to enable the
establishment of tree planting which would be of an appropriate scale alongside the
proposed building.  Without the provision of appropriate tree planting the development as
a whole would fail to achieve an appropriate appearance within the street scene contrary
to policies BE13, BE19 and BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).'

Accordingly, these issues were subject to deliberation by the Inspector under the
Secretary of State's appeal decision (Ref: APP/R5510/A/10/2120328) finding that:

'The flats would be in a contemporary style with relatively low pitched roofs and varied
materials which would help to break up the street fa§ade. Nonetheless, simply on account
of its height, I find that the proposed block would stand out as uncharacteristic in the
street scene. I have noted that there is a 4 storey development in nearby Swan Road but
also that the substantial fall in ground level means that this does not rise significantly
higher than the 3 storey buildings along Station Road. I have considered the claim that the
block of flats would be a landmark building. However, not only is the site away from any
significant junction but its fragmented design seems to me to aim to blend in rather than
stand out. For the above reasons I find that the increased height would create an
unwelcome rise in roof levels and be significantly out of keeping not only with most of the
adjacent residential streets but also with the nearby commercial buildings.';

'The street elevation would include a number of trees which might further break up and
soften the facade. The trees would be narrow specimens to fit into the limited space
behind the footway and minimise the likelihood that they would block light to windows. The
Council has argued that there would be inadequate space for these trees. I accept that
the trees might either be unsuccessful or that, if they did grow well, they might lead to

Page 50



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08 Impact on neighbours

requests for pruning which would lessen their effect. Nonetheless, I saw few appreciable
areas of planting in front of nearby buildings and conclude that, while important as part of
the elevational composition, lack of significant planting would not in itself harm the
character or appearance of the street scene.'; and

'On this issue I conclude that, whilst the acceptability of the proposals would not depend
on trees and that it has not been shown that the flats would constitute over-development,
neither of these points would outweigh the harm to the character and appearance of the
area as a result of the uncharacteristic height. The proposals would therefore conflict with
current adopted Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
(UDP) which require the appearance of development to harmonise with the existing
streetscene and for new development within residential areas to complement the
character of the area.'

It is clear from the Inspectors conclusion that the density, layout and design approach
were considered acceptable and that the Inspector did not consider the acceptability of
the scheme to fail on the landscaping proposals along the frontage.  In fact the only
concern raised by the Inspector in dismissing the appeal was that the height of the 4
storey element was considered uncharacteristic in the street scene.

The height of the current proposal at three storeys dropping to two storeys adjacent to
no.2 Drayton Gardens, has been reduced from that considered by the Inspector and is
considered to provide an appropriate interface between the three storey buildings at
Classon Close and the 2 storey buildings (including no.2 Drayton Gardens) to the east.
The height now proposed is commensurate with that of surrounding buildings and
considered appropriate within the wider street scene.

Having regard to the appeal decision, which found no harm with other aspects of the
design the proposed scheme is considered to have addressed the Inspectors concerns
and would retain an appropriate appearance within the street scene in accordance with
Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Saved Policies UDP.

The footprint of the proposed building is identical to that previously considered and while
the height of the building has been reduced by one storey, which would serve to reduce its
bulk, all fenestration above ground floor level remains identical to that contained within the
previous application.  Similarly the location and size of the proposed roof terrace remains
identical.  The Council's second reason for refusal on the previous application stated:

'The proposed development will have a detrimental impact upon the outlook, visual
amenity and privacy currently enjoyed by occupiers of neighbouring residential properties,
in particular No 2 Drayton Gardens, contrary to Policies BE21 and BE24 of the London
Borough of Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007 and
Hillingdon's HDAS Residential Layouts SPD.'

As this formed part of the Council's reasons for refusal it was considered subject to
consideration by the Inspector who made the following comments in determining the
appeal:

'No.2 Drayton Gardens adjoins part of the rear boundary of the appeal site. It has planning
permission for a rear extension (Document 6). Some of the windows to the proposed flats
would be quite close to the boundary with No.2. However, as a result of the design of the
windows, the glazing would be at an oblique angle to the rear windows of No.2, both as

Page 51



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

existing and as proposed by the permitted extension. Top floor windows to the 4 storey
part of the block would have a view down towards the garden but also be rather further
away. While the new flats would be readily apparent in views from No.2 the separating
distance would prevent them being oppressive and as they would be to the north they
would not prevent sunlight reaching the back garden.'; and

'For all these reasons I find that the proposals would not lead to an unacceptable outlook
or loss of privacy to No.2 Drayton Gardens. I therefore find that the living conditions for
neighbouring residents would be acceptable and would accord with UDP Policies BE21
and BE24 which do not permit a significant loss of residential amenity and require privacy
to be protected.'

Similarly it is evident that the Inspector did not consider that the proposal would have
resulted in an unacceptable impact on any other nearby residential properties.

The current proposal does not include any amendments to the footprint of the building, the
location of habitable rooms, the location of above ground amenity space or the location of
habitable rooms which would result in increased impacts on neighbouring properties
above those considered under the appeal.  Having regard to the the appeal decision,
which represents a material consideration, and subject to conditions to ensure the
provision of privacy screen to the roof terrace and the implementation of the proposed
obscure glazing, it is not considered that the proposal would result in any significant harm
to the amenity of neighbouring occupiers.  The application is therefore considered to
comply with Policies BE19, BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Saved Policies UDP.

Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan requires the provision of external
amenity space which is sufficient to protect the amenity of the development and
surrounding buildings and which is usable in terms of its shape and siting. The council's
HDAS Residential Layout provides further guidance on this issue indicated that in flatted
development communal amenity space should be provided in a quantum equating to
20sq.m per 1 bedroom unit, 25sq.m per 2 bedroom unit and 30sq.m per three bedroom
unit.

In accordance with the Council's guidance a total of 825sq.m of communal amenity space
would be required.

The application includes the provision of approximately 840sq.m of communal amenity
space separated into three areas:
* a ground floor area on the corner of Drayton Gardens (circa 115 sq.m);
* a ground floor area in the centre of the site incorporating a children's play area (circa
390sq.m); and
* a roof terrace(circa 335sq.m).

In addition, the two ground floor units adjacent to no.2 Drayton Gardens (nos.31 and
32)are also served by private terraces totalling approximately 35 sq.m, the three ground
floor units to the south west of the site (nos. 33, 34 and 35) benefit from private external
spaces totalling approximately 275sq.m, and a number of units are served by winter
gardens, a form of specialised internal balcony.

All of the communal areas are sited to the south of the development and would achieve
high levels of light.  The area of amenity space adjacent to Drayton Gardens would suffer
from slightly higher levels of noise due to it's proximity to the road, however the area

Page 52



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

would remain usable for a number of outdoor amenity purposes and it is not considered
that the slightly higher level of noise would detract from the external amenity environment
provided by the scheme as a whole.

The layout of these spaces is similar to that proposed under the previous application, with
the exception that a covered amenity area to provide for barbecues is no longer proposed,
as the reduction in the number of units means this is not required in terms of meeting the
external space standards within the HDAS - Residential Layouts.

The Council's third reason for refusal on the previous scheme stated that:

'The proposed development by reason of its design and layout fails to provide for both a
high quality and safe external living environment for future occupiers, in particular the
scheme provides for a poor quality design response for all ground level communal
amenity areas within the site that immediately adjoin the proposed undercroft parking
areas and access road. The proposal fails to incorporate measures to minimise the risk of
crime and meet the specific security needs of the application site, including the proposals
lack of access controls into the site and inadequate levels of natural surveillance over the
main communal amenity spaces. As such, the development is contrary to Policy BE23 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies 2007, and Policies 3A.3, 4B.1
and 4B.6 of the London Plan 2004 and the design principles contained within the adopted
Hillingdon Design and Access Statement (HDAS): Residential Layouts.'

This issue of the adequacy of external amenity space provision for future occupiers was
discussed at length as part of the Public Inquiry held for appeal APP/R5510/A/10/2120328
and the Inspector concluded that:

'A small part of the proposed amenity space would be under the building adjoining the
proposed parking area. While this arrangement might keep the rain off a barbecue I
consider that it would otherwise be unsuitable as an amenity space. However, this area
does not need to be included as part of the overall calculations for the proposed amenity
spaces to satisfy the requirements of the Council  s Supplementary Planning Document
(SPD) titled Hillingdon Design and Access Statement:   Residential Layouts   (HDAS).
While a larger area would be alongside the parking, conditions could require screening to
separate these areas. On this issue I find that the proposals would accord with UDP
Policy BE23 which requires new residential buildings to provide
sufficient external amenity space.'

While the Inspector did raise some concerns with regard to security (discussed under the
relevant section of this report), these related solely to the car parking area, and no
concerns were raised as to the adequacy of natural surveillance or the security in general
of the communal amenity spaces provided.

The appeal decision represents a material consideration in determining the current
application and the layout and quality of amenity spaces is consistent with that considered
acceptable by the Inspector and  in terms of quantum exceeds the standards set out
within the HDAS - Residential Layouts. The reduction in the number of units also means
that the proposal is no longer reliant on an undercroft barbeque area which is considered
to be beneficial. Accordingly, is is considered that the proposal would provide an adequate
quality and quantity of external amenity space to secure the amenity of future occupiers in
accordance with Policy BE23 of the Saved Policies UDP.

The HDAS - Residential Layout sets out minimum size standards for residential units,

Page 53



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.10

7.11

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

these being 50sq.m for a one bedroom units, 63sq.m for a two bedroom units and 77sq.m
for three bedroom units.  All of the units within the proposed scheme comply with the
minimum floorspace standards set out within the HDAS - Residential Layouts, this is an
improvement over the previously refused scheme where a small number of units fell below
these requirements.

While the overall height of the building has been reduced by one-storey the fenestration
(including winter gardens partly treated with obscured glazing and angled windows) on the
rear elevation remain the same as proposed within the previous scheme, under which the
arrangements were considered to secure an appropriate internal environment for future
occupiers in terms of light, outlook and privacy.

It is noted that no. 2 Drayton Gardens has recently been the subject to a two storey rear
extension, the impact of which was considered under the previous application and appeal.
The windows within the closest of the proposed units to 2 Drayton Gardens are angled
away from this property and as such the proposed properties would retain adequate levels
of outlook and privacy.

It is considered that all of the units within the proposed development would benefit from
adequate levels of outlook, daylight and privacy and accordingly no objection is raised to
the proposal in terms of Policies BE19, BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Saved Policies UDP.

Overall, and having regard to Secretary of State's appeal decision, it is considered that
the proposed development would result in an appropriate residential environment for
future occupiers.  No objection is therefore raised in this regard.

The previous application 2954/APP/2009/1488 was not refused on grounds relating to
highways matters.

A total of 35 residential parking spaces are provided within an undercroft car park to serve
the 35 residential units, a ratio of 1:1.  This ratio of car parking provision for residential
units on the site is the same as that which was proposed under the previous application
and is considered acceptable on highways grounds.

4 of the proposed parking spaces are designed to wheelchair standard and are located
appropriately within the undercroft car park.  This level of provision represents 10% of the
total parking spaces in accordance with the requirements of the Council's Parking
Standards.  Accordingly, the level of disabled parking is considered acceptable.

The Council's Highways Engineer has reviewed the layout of the development and
parking proposals in detail and considers the scheme to be acceptable in terms of
highway/pedestrian safety and car parking provision.

Issues of design and access are addressed elsewhere in this report.

In relation to security issues the Inspector considered crime as part of the appeal, and did
raise concerns, albeit limited to the appropriateness of the car parking area, finding that:

'The ground floor parking area would be contiguous with the area towards the rear
designated for use for barbecues. From most angles the parking area would be screened
and enclosed and conditions could require this to include the vehicular access. On the
other hand, I note that there would be 43 flats and so presumably a controlled access

Page 54



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.12

7.13

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

would still entitle 43 households to enter the site. Even disregarding the likely adverse
impact on the street scene from a gated access, in my view the number of residents and
their associates would allow a high degree of access to the parking area. There would
only be two flats on the ground floor and neither would have windows onto the car park.
Given the extent of access and the lack of supervision from adjacent flats, I consider that
the parking area would be likely to attract criminal activity. For these reasons I find that
the proposals would be poorly designed with regard to the need to minimise crime. The
proposals would therefore conflict with the design principles in the adopted HDAS which
aims to   design out   crime.'

In order to address this concern the applicant has reduced the density of the application,
thereby reducing the number of residents with access to the car park, and entered into
correspondence with the Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser.  While, by
virtue of the site constraints it has not been possible to introduce natural surveillance of
the car parking area the applicant has now proposed an extensive closed circuit
surveillance system within the undercroft car park in order to improve security. The
applicant has also committed to ensuring that the vehicular access to the car parking area
is gated and secured and the plans demonstrate that the car parking area in its entirety
would be secured and access controlled.  The final details of these measures could be
adequately secured by way of conditions.

The applicant has taken into account the comments of the Metropolitan Police Crime
Prevention Design Adviser who is satisfied that, subject to the provision of closed circuit
surveillance and appropriate access control, the car parking areas would benefit from an
appropriate level of security and that subject to a condition requiring the development to
achieve Secured by Design accreditation the development as a whole would provide for a
secure environment. 

Subject to appropriate conditions it is considered that the application has overcome the
concerns raised by the Inspector and accordingly no objection is therefore raised in terms
of security.

In assessing this application, reference has been made to the London Plan Policy 3A.5
(Housing Choice) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Documents " Accessible
Hillingdon" and Residential Layouts", adopted July 2006. Policies 4B.1 and 4B.5 of the
London Plan also require developments to provide for inclusive environments.

The scheme indicates that all units are proposed to be built to Lifetime Homes standards,
4 units (10%) would be fully wheelchair accessible, 4 disabled car parking spaces would
be provided and two lifts would be provided to allow access to all floors of the
development.

The scheme has been amended in order to address all but one of the issues raised by the
Council's Access Officer, this issue relates to the internal layout of of bathrooms within the
units and could be adequately addressed by way of condition.

Subject to conditions ensuring that the accessibility measures are implemented and
amended bathroom layouts provided the development proposal would satisfy both
Lifetime Home and Wheelchair Home Standards and is considered to comply with Policies
3A.5, 4B.1, 4B.5 of the London Plan and the Council's Supplementary Planning Guidance.

The Council's Housing Section has advised that a contribution of 50% of the development

Page 55



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.14 Trees, landscaping and Ecology

as affordable housing in accordance with the Council's Affordable Housing Supplementary
Planning Document.  However, the developer has proposed no affordable housing
provision on site and as such Housing Services Department object to the current
proposal.

Policy 3A.9 of the London Plan advises that   Boroughs should seek the maximum
reasonable amount of affordable housing when negotiating on individual private
residential and mixed-use schemes, having regard to their affordable housing targets
adopted in line with Policy 3A.9, the need to encourage rather than restrain residential
development and the individual circumstances of the site. Targets should be applied
flexibly, taking account of individual site costs, the availability
of public subsidy and other scheme requirements.

The policy subtext further confirms that 'The Mayor wishes to encourage, not restrain
residential development and boroughs should take a reasonable and flexible approach on
a site-by-site basis....'

The Council's Affordable Housing SPD further advises that in circumstances where a
proposed development does not propose to meet the affordable housing requirements a
financial viability assessment will be required.  Furthermore, if the results of a financial
viability appraisal confirm that the affordable housing requirement cannot be provided as
per LDF and London Plan policies, the Council will apply a cascade approach by which
the Council will agree dependent upon the site specifics and local circumstances to either:
*Alter the tenure split requirement; and/or 
*Reduce the affordable housing requirement.

The applicant has submitted a Financial Viability Assessment which demonstrates that the
development is able to incorporate a maximum of 3 x one bedroom units and 3 x two
bedroom units as affordable housing (equivalent to 17% of the total units), this
assessment has been validated as accurate by an independent expert employed by the
Council.

On the basis of the submitted Financial Viability Assessment, and in accordance with the
London Plan and the Council's Planning Obligations SPD, the scheme would provide the
maximum possible level of affordable housing.  It should be noted that the lack of
affordable housing provision does enable the development to meet all other planning
obligation requirements set out within the 'Planning Obligations' section of this report.

Subject to a S106 agreement being formalised to secure the provision of the above
mentioned level of affordable housing the development would comply with the provisions
of the London Plan and the Council's Planning Obligations SPD. The applicant has agreed
the level of provision and the principle of entering such an agreement.

The application is supported by an arboricultural assessment addressing the proposed
development and a tree protection plan.  The report confirms that there are no trees on
the site, but there is a group of trees (off-site) close to the southern boundary of the site,
which includes one significant tree, a Sycamore (tree 5), in the group.  Tree 5 affords
some screening of the site and is a constraint on its development.

The arboricultural assessment is tailored to the development proposals and details
methods which could be utilised in order to ensure the retention off-site trees, in particular
the sycamore, and is supported by a tree protection plan.

Page 56



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.15

7.16

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Having regard to this information the Council's Trees and Landscaping Officer considers
that the retention of thee off-site trees, particularly the sycamore, would be feasible
alongside the development proposal and could be ensure by condition.

The fifth reason for refusal on the previous application (Reference: 2954/APP/2009/1488)
was that  'The development fails to reserve appropriate space on the road frontage to
enable the establishment of tree planting which would be of an appropriate scale
alongside the proposed building.  Without the provision of appropriate tree planting the
development as a whole would fail to achieve an appropriate appearance within the street
scene contrary to policies BE13, BE19 and BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).'

The Local Planning Authorities refusal of this previous application has subsequently been
the subject of an appeal (Reference: APP/R5510/A/10/220328) under which the Inspector
commented that 'The street elevation would include a number of trees which might further
break up and soften the facade. The trees would be narrow specimens to fit into the
limited space behind the footway and minimise the likelihood that they would block light to
windows. The Council has argued that there would be inadequate space for these trees. I
accept that the trees might either be unsuccessful or that, if they did grow well, they might
lead to requests for pruning which would lessen their effect. Nonetheless, I saw few
appreciable areas of planting in front of nearby buildings and conclude that, while
important as part of the elevational composition, lack of significant planting would not in
itself harm the character or appearance of the street scene.'

The Inspectors decision represents a material consideration and the Council's Trees and
Landscape Officer considers that in light of the appeal decision no objection can be raised
to the amount of space available for planting on the site frontage and that other aspects of
the sites external layout would be capable of providing an appropriate environment in
terms of landscaping.

Subject to conditions to ensure that opportunities for feasible landscaping are maximised
no objection is raised to the scheme in relation to Policy BE38 of the Saved Policies UDP.

The scheme is to be supported by a communal bin storage facility which identifies 6 x
1,100 litre bins to service the 35 residential units.  This level of provision is considered to
be adequate to serve a development of this size and could be appropriately allocated to
provide for waste and recycling needs.

The bin storage area would be within the undercroft car park, it would be easily accessible
via an internal route for all of the proposed residential units and is located so that is could
be easily serviced by refuse vehicles.

Accordingly, the proposal is considered to make adequate provision for the storage and
management of waste and recycling within the development.

Policy 4A.7 of the London Plan advises that boroughs should ensure that developments
will achieve a reduction in carbon dioxide emissions of 20% from on site renewable
energy generation (which can include sources of decentralised renewable energy) unless
it can be demonstrated that such provision is not feasible.

Policy 4A.4 of the London Plan requires requires submission of an assessment of the
energy demand and carbon dioxide emissions from proposed major developments, which

Page 57



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

should demonstrate the expected energy and carbon dioxide emission savings from the
energy efficiency and renewable energy measures incorporated in the development.

The application is supported by an Energy Statement prepared by Quinn Ross
Consultants Ltd, which indicates that the development can meet the Mayor's renewable
targets by adopting solar collectors, achieving a 20% reduction in carbon dioxide
emissions through renewable technology.

Subject to conditions to secure the installation of measures in accordance with the London
Plan requirements the scheme complies with London Plan Policies 4A.3, 4A.4 and 4A.7.

The site is not within a flood zone, and no other drainage issues have arisen.

NOISE
An acoustic report has been submitted as a part of the application. The study was
prompted due to the proximity of busy roads adjoining the site. The assessment states
that the facades of the residential buildings will be within NEC B to the rear and NEC C to
the front close to the road. 

Residential development within NEC C is acceptable so long as conditions can be
imposed which would ensure a commensurate level of protection against noise.

The Council's Environmental Protection Unit have reviewed the proposal and subject to
the imposition of conditions to protect the development from Road Noise and have raised
no objection.

AIR QUALITY
The application has been supported by an air quality assessment which indicates the
proposed would not result in an increase in nitrogen dioxide levels.  The Council's
Environmental Protection Unit have reviewed the report and raise no objections on the
grounds of air quality.

Given that the proposal would bring new residents into an area of poor existing air quality
a condition requiring details of mitigation measures to protect the internal environment for
future occupiers would be recommended should the scheme be approved.

It is considered that the following objections to the scheme have been addressed through
out the report and by way of condition, where appropriate:

(i)   Construction impacts;
(ii)  Traffic and congestion implications;
(iv)  Loss of privacy;
(vi)  Adequacy of proposed parking arrangements; and
(vii) Adequacy of infrastructure (schools, healthcare etc.).

In relation to point (iii) Thames Water have raised no objections to the scheme and it is
not considered that the proposal would place undue pressure on local water or seqerage
systems.

In relation to point (v) landscaping would be controlled by condition and would be
considered by the Council's Trees and Landscaping Officer prior to approval.

Page 58



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.21

7.22

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

Policy R17 of the Unitary Development Plan states that:'The Local Planning Authority will,
where appropriate, seek to supplement the provision of recreation open space, facilities to
support arts, culture and entertainment activities and other community, social and
education facilities through planning obligations in conjunction with other development
proposals'.

Affordable Housing is address separately under the relevant section.

The Council's S106 Officer has advised that the proposed development of 43 residential
units would necessitate the following contributions in line with the Council's
Supplementary Planning document for Planning Obligations:

Education: a contribution in the sum of £102,323;
Health: a contribution in the sum of £13,682.71;
Community facilities: a contribution in the sum of £30,000;
Town centre: a contribution in the sum of £20,000;
Libraries: a contribution in the sum of £1,452.45;
Construction Training: either a contribution in accordance with the adopted formula or in-
kind; and
Project Management and Monitoring fee: 5% of total cash contributions.

The applicant has agreed to the principle of these planning obligations, all of which can be
achieved alongside the proposed level of affordable housing.  Subject to an appropriate
legal agreement being secured the scheme would accord with Policy R17 of the UDP.

Not applicable.

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need to be aware
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Page 59



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

Full planning permission is sought for the redevelopment of the site for a residential
development comprising of 35 residential units associated amenity space and parking.

The proposed development is acceptable in principle and the density of development
accords with the recommendations of the London Plan.

The site has an extensive planning history, including a recent appeal decision. 

Having regard to the Inspector's decision on the previous application it is considered that
the proposal would attain an acceptable appearance within the street scene, would not
have a detrimental impact on neighbouring occupiers and would provide an appropriate
residential environment for future occupiers.

The proposal is considered acceptable in terms of parking provision and highways
impacts.

Subject to conditions an appropriate level of sustainable design could be achieved.

The proposal would provide 3 x one-bedroom and 3 x two-bedroom units as affordable
housing.  This level of provision has been fully justified by way of a Financial Viability
Assessment as the maximum level which the development can viably provide. The
applicant has also agreed to meet all other necessary planning obligations by way of a
legal agreement.

Subject to a S106 agreement and conditions, the application is recommended for
approval.

11. Reference Documents

(i)    Planning Policy Statement 1 (Delivering Sustainable Development)
(ii)   Planning Policy Statement Planning and Climate Change
(iii)  Planning Policy Statement 3 (Housing)
(iv)   Planning Policy Guidance Note 13 (Transport)
(v)    The London Plan (2008)
(vi)   Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.
(vii)  Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement - New Residential Layouts
(viii) Accessible Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document
(ix)   Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document, Planning Obligations

Adrien Waite 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 60



R

RR
E

E

E

A

6

hurch

1

CLOSE

1

Orchard House

1 to 5

13 to 17

20

El

56

115

53

119

25
121

2c

5

1

12

3

47

6

CLASSON CLOSE

10

22
20

Works

Car Park

1

N
E

W
D

R
IV

E
4

19

1

4

52

Long Drive

57

17

2

51
34

54

G
A

R
D

E
N

to
6

52

7

2e

24
42

44

2

2a

30

GP

2

7 to 11

52

54

71

18

91

8

29.0m

47

28

53

3

5

28

55

21
123

2b

ton

AINS CLO
SE

2 to 6

to 10

ROAD

Telephone

TCBs

1

42

Bank

8
12

CHERRY ORCHARD

15

42

57

55

2

13

5
22

46

2

50

37

10

63

Sub Sta

73 to 89

DRAYTON GARDENS

55
53

1

45

107

3

48

1

STATION

51
16

17

SW
AN

7

43

28.7m

2
4

D
R

A
Y

T
O

N
 G

A
R

D
E

N
S

70

37

El Sub Sta

43

49

5

8

40

14

15

29.3m

23

20
B

R
A

N
D

V
ILL

7

Exchange
dw

ay Parade

THATCHER

45

19 to 23

10

Garage

35

50

46

Rooks Terra
ce

12 9
57

R
O

A
D

2d

´

January
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283  2011

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

70 Station Road
West Drayton

2954/APP/2010/1810

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Page 61



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

43 - 47 AND REAR OF 35 - 43 YEADING LANE HAYES 

2 three-bedroom two storey semi-detached dwellings and 3 three-bedroom
two storey terraced dwellings with amenity and parking space, involving the
demolition of outbuildings to rear of existing dwelling No.47 and rear
extensions from No.43 and installation of new crossover.

23/12/2009

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 34799/APP/2009/2800

Drawing Nos: 2498-2-105
2498-2-106
2498-2-107
2498-2-109
2498-2-101
2498-2-103 Existing Site Layout
2498-2-104 Proposed Site Layout
2498-2-T112
2498-2-T113
2498-2-T110
2498-2-T111

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The proposed development seeks full planning permission for the erection of 5
dwellinghouses, in the form of a terrace of three houses and a pair of semi detached
dwellings, at the land to the rear of 35-47 Yeading Lane. An outline planning application,
ref: 34799/APP/2009/2800 for a very similar scheme comprising 5 dwellinghouses was
refused permission on 23/12/2009, but which has been allowed at appeal. In 1984
permission was granted for 3 residential units which has long since lapsed.

The subject application is for 5 dwellings in a layout which avoids overlooking and privacy
impacts on neighbouring properties and which accords with relevant saved development
plan policies. The proposed development also provides for adequate amenity space and
living standards for the future occupiers of the development. The proposal would utilise a
former commercial nursery site and the scale and design of the dwellings is in context
with the surrounding area, therefore the proposal is recommended for approval. 

T8 Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

1

2. RECOMMENDATION

18/01/2010Date Application Valid:

Approval subject to following conditions.

Agenda Item 8

Page 63



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

OM1

M1

OM5

OM14

Development in accordance with Approved Plans

Details/Samples to be Submitted

Provision of Bin Stores

Secured by Design

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

No development shall take place until details and/or samples of all materials, colours and
finishes to be used on all external surfaces have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

No development shall take place until details of facilities to be provided for the screened
and secure storage of refuse and recycling bins within the site have been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No part of the development shall
be occupied until the facilities have been provided in accordance with the approved
details and thereafter the facilities shall be permanently retained. 

REASON
To ensure a satisfactory appearance and in the interests of the amenities of the
occupiers and adjoining residents, in accordance with Policy OE3 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

The development hereby approved shall incorporate measures to minimise the risk of
crime and to meet the specific security needs of the application site and the
development. Details of security measures, including security gates and fencing to the
access way leading to the rear of unit 2, shall be submitted and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority before development commences. Any security measures to
be implemented in compliance with this condition shall reach the standard necessary to
achieve the 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon Metropolitan
Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the Association of Chief
Police Officers (ACPO).

REASON
In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with policies 4B.1 and 4B.6 of the London Plan.

2

3

4

5

Page 64



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

OM19

DRC6

DRC7

Construction Management Plan

Contaminated Land - survey and remedial works

Contaminated land - remedial works

Prior to development commencing, the applicant shall submit a demolition and
construction management plan to the Local Planning Authority for its approval.  The plan
shall detail:

(i)  The phasing of development works
(ii) The hours during which development works will occur (please refer to informative I15
for maximum permitted working hours).
(iii) A programme to demonstrate that the most valuable or potentially contaminating
materials and fittings can be removed safely and intact for later re-use or processing.
(iv)Measures to prevent mud and dirt tracking onto footways and adjoining roads
(including wheel washing facilities).
(v) Traffic management and access arrangements (vehicular and pedestrian) and
parking provisions for contractors during the development process (including measures
to reduce the numbers of construction vehicles accessing the site during peak hours).
(vi) Measures to reduce the impact of the development on local air quality and dust
through minimising emissions throughout the demolition and construction process.
(vii) The storage of demolition/construction materials on site.

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of
the demolition and construction process.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies 2007).

Development shall not begin until a site survey to assess contamination levels has been
carried out to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. The survey shall be
undertaken at such points and to such depth as the Local Planning Authority may
stipulate. A scheme for removing or rendering innocuous all contaminants from the site
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority and all
works that form part of this scheme shall be completed before any part of the
development is occupied. 

REASON
To ensure that the occupants of the development are not subjected to any risks from soil
contamination in accordance with Policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Policy A.33 of the London Plan (February
2008).

Development shall not begin until a scheme to deal with contamination of the site has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme
shall include an investigation and assessment to identify the extent of contamination and
the measures to be taken to avoid risk to the [occupants of the development /future users
of the site/local environment].

REASON
To ensure that the occupants of the development are not subjected to any risks from
land contamination in accordance with Policy OE11 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Policy Policy A.33 of the

6

7

8

Page 65



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

N1

SUS4

SUS5

DIS5

Noise-sensitive Buildings - use of specified measures

Code for Sustainable Homes details

Sustainable Urban Drainage

Design to Lifetime Homes Standards

London Plan (February 2008).

Development shall not begin until a scheme for protecting the proposed development
from road traffic noise has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. All works which form part of the scheme shall be fully implemented
before the development is occupied and thereafter shall be retained and maintained in
good working order for so long as the building remains in use. 

REASON
To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of the proposed development is not
adversely affected by (road traffic) (rail traffic) (air traffic) (other) noise in accordance with
policy OE5 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and Policy 4A.20 of the London Plan (February 2008).

No development shall take place until an initial design stage assessment by an
accredited assessor for the Code for Sustainable Homes and an accompanying interim
certificate stating that each dwelling has been designed to achieve level 3 of the Code
has been submitted to, and approved in writing, by the local planning authority. No
dwelling shall be occupied until it has been issued with a final Code certificate of
compliance.

REASON
To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development identified in policies 4A.1 and
4A.3 of the London Plan (February 2008).

No development shall take place on site until details of the incorporation of sustainable
urban drainage have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved details shall thereafter be installed on site and thereafter
permanently retained and maintained.

REASON
To ensure that surface water run off is handled as close to its source as possible in
compliance with policy 4A.14 of the London Plan (February 2008) /if appropriate/ and to
ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy OE8 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007), polices
4A.12 and 4A.13 of the London Plan (February 2008) and PPS25.

All residential units within the development hereby approved shall be built in accordance
with 'Lifetime Homes' Standards. Further 10% of the units hereby approved shall be
designed to be fully wheelchair accessible, or easily adaptable for residents who are
wheelchair users, and shall include within the design of each wheelchair unit internal
storage space for the storage of mobility scooters/wheelchairs and associated charging
points as set out in the Council's Supplementary Planning Document 'Hillingdon Design
and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon'.

REASON

9

10

11

12

Page 66



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

H1

H11A

H12

TL1

Traffic Arrangements - submission of details

Visibility Splays

Closure of Existing Access

Existing Trees - Survey

To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (February 2008) Policies 3A.5, 3A.13,
3A.17 and 4B.5.

Development shall not begin until details of all traffic arrangements (including where
appropriate carriageways, footways, turning space, safety strips, sight lines at road
junctions, kerb radii, car parking areas and marking out of spaces, loading facilities,
closure of existing access and means of surfacing) have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved development shall not be
occupied until all such works have been constructed in accordance with the approved
details.  Thereafter, the parking areas, sight lines and loading areas must be
permanently retained and used for no other purpose at any time. Disabled parking bays
shall be a minimum of 4.8m long by 3.6m wide, or at least 3.0m wide where two adjacent
bays may share an unloading area.

REASON
To ensure pedestrian and vehicular safety and convenience and to ensure adequate off-
street parking, and loading facilities in compliance with Policy AM14 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Chapter 3C
of the London Plan . (February 2008).

Unobstructed sight lines above a height of 1 metre shall be maintained on both sides of
the entrance to the site, for a distance of at least 2.4m in both directions along the back
edge of the footway or verge. 

REASON
To ensure that pedestrian and vehicular safety is not prejudiced, in accordance with
Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

The existing vehicular access at the site, shall be closed, the dropped kerb removed and
the footway reinstated to match the adjoining footway within one month of the new
access hereby approved being completed.

REASON
To ensure that pedestrian and vehicular safety is not prejudiced in accordance with
Policies AM3 and AM8 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) and Chapter 3C of the London Plan. (February 2008).

Prior to any work commencing on site, an accurate survey plan at a scale of not less than
1:200 shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
plan must show:-
 (i) Species, position, height, condition, vigour, age-class, branch spread and stem
diameter of all existing trees, shrubs and hedges on and immediately adjoining the site.
 (ii) A clear indication of trees, hedges and shrubs to be retained and removed.
 (iii) Existing and proposed site levels.

13

14

15

16

Page 67



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

TL2

TL5

Trees to be retained

Landscaping Scheme - (full apps where details are reserved)

 (iv) Routes of any existing or proposed underground works and overhead lines including
their manner of construction.
 (v) Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees and other vegetation to be retained during construction
work.

REASON
To enable the Local Planning Authority to assess the amenity value of existing trees,
hedges and shrubs and the impact of the proposed development on them and to ensure
that the development conforms with Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority. 

If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged during construction,
or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or shrub shall be
planted at the same place and shall be of a size and species to be agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the first planting season following the
completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the
earlier.

Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the
effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with
the Local Planning Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery
Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'. Remedial work should be carried out
to BS 3998 (1989)  'Recommendations for Tree Work' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of
Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work
shall be completed in the first planting season following the completion of the
development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON
To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and to comply with Section 197 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme providing full details of hard
and soft landscaping works has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved. The scheme shall
include: -
· Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),
· Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,
· Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate,
· Implementation programme.
The scheme shall also include details of the following: -
· Proposed finishing levels or contours,
· Means of enclosure, including enclosure of the access way leading to the rear of unit 2.

17

18

Page 68



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

TL4

TL6

Landscaping Scheme (outline application)

Landscaping Scheme - implementation

· Car parking layouts,
- Other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas,
- Hard surfacing materials proposed,
· Minor artefacts and structures (such as play equipment, furniture, refuse storage, signs,
or lighting),
· Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage,
power cables or communications equipment, indicating lines, manholes or associated
structures),
· Retained historic landscape features and proposals for their restoration where relevant.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality in compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

The development hereby permitted shall be landscaped and planted in accordance with a
fully detailed scheme to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority as part of the details of the proposed development required by condition No. * 
The scheme shall include:-
· Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),
· Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,
· Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate,
· Implementation programme.
The scheme shall also include details of the following:-
· Proposed finishing levels or contours,
· Means of enclosure,
· Car parking layouts,
- Other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas,
- Hard surfacing materials proposed,
· Minor artefacts and structures (such as play equipment, furniture, refuse storage, signs,
or lighting),
· Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage,
power cables or communications equipment, indicating lines, manholes or associated
structures),
· Retained historic landscape features and proposals for their restoration where relevant.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality in compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

All hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
landscaping scheme and shall be completed within the first planting and seeding
seasons following the completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings,
whichever is the earlier period. 

The new planting and landscape operations should comply with the requirements
specified in BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'

19

20

Page 69



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

TL7

TL20

OM2

Maintenance of Landscaped Areas

Amenity Areas (Residential Developments)

Levels

and in BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding
Hard Surfaces)'. Thereafter, the areas of hard and soft landscaping shall be permanently
retained.

Any tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding shown on the approved landscaping scheme
which within a period of 5 years from the completion of development dies, is removed or
in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously damaged or diseased
shall be replaced in the same place in the next planting season with another such tree,
shrub or area of turfing or seeding of similar size and species unless the Local Planning
Authority first gives written consent to any variation.

REASON
To ensure that the landscaped areas are laid out and retained in accordance with the
approved plans in order to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality in
compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

No development shall take place until a schedule of landscape maintenance for a
minimum period of 5 years has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.  The scheme shall include details of the arrangements for its
implementation.  Maintenance shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
schedule.

REASON
To ensure that the approved landscaping is properly maintained in accordance with
policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (September 2007).

None of the dwellings hereby permitted shall be occupied, until the outdoor amenity area
serving the dwellings as shown on the approved plans (including balconies where these
are shown to be provided) has been made available for the use of residents of the
development. Thereafter, the amenity areas shall so be retained.

REASON
To ensure the continued availability of external amenity space for residents of the
development, in the interests of their amenity and the character of the area in
accordance with policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) and London Plan (February 2008) Policy 4B.1.

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in
accordance with policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

21

22

23

Page 70



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

M5

OM20

NONSC

RPD5

Means of Enclosure - details

Grampian Planning Obligations

Accessway security measures

Restrictions on Erection of Extensions and Outbuildings

Before the development is commenced, details of boundary fencing or other means of
enclosure shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The approved means of enclosure shall be erected before the development is occupied
and shall be permanently retained thereafter.

REASON
To safeguard privacy to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Before the development hereby permitted is commenced, a scheme shall be submitted
to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority detailing how additional or
improved educational facilities in the vicinity of the site arising from the needs of the
proposed development will be provided. The approved means and timescale of providing
the proposed improvements shall then be implemented in accordance with the agreed
scheme.

REASON
To ensure the development provides an appropriate contribution to the improvement of
/insert appropriate/ within the surrounding area, arising from the proposed development,
in accordance with Policy R17 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan and
the Council's Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document.

Prior to the commencement of development a scheme to ensure the access way leading
to the rear of Unit 2 is maintained and kept secure shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the development shall be carried out
in accordance with the approved scheme and the access way secured and maintained
for the life of the development. 

REASON
In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with policies 4B.1 and 4B.6 of the London Plan.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no extension to any dwellinghouse(s) nor any garage(s), shed(s) or
other outbuilding(s) shall be erected without the grant of further specific permission from
the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
So that the Local Planning Authority can ensure that any such development would not
result in a significant loss of residential amenity in accordance with policy BE21 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

24

25

26

27

Page 71



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

RPD1 No Additional Windows or Doors

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be
constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved at first floor
level or above.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

28

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

AM14
AM2

AM7
BE13
BE18
BE19

BE20
BE21
BE22

BE23
BE24

BE38

H12
H5
H4
OE1

New development and car parking standards.
Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety
New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Tandem development of backland in residential areas
Dwellings suitable for large families
Mix of housing units
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

Page 72



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I1

I19

I2

I3

I4

I5

Building to Approved Drawing

Sewerage Connections, Water Pollution etc.

Encroachment

Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Neighbourly Consideration - include on all residential exts

Party Walls

3

4

5

6

7

8

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

You should contact Thames Water Utilities and the Council's Building Control Service
regarding any proposed connection to a public sewer or any other possible impact that
the development could have on local foul or surface water sewers, including building over
a public sewer. Contact: - The Waste Water Business Manager, Thames Water Utilities
plc, Kew Business Centre, Kew Bridge Road, Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 0EE.
Building Control Service - 3N/01, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (tel.
01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by
either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will
have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results
in any form of encroachment.

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension. When
undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your neighbours
and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at any time on Sundays
or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all vehicles associated with the
construction of the development hereby approved are properly washed and cleaned to
prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the adjoining highway. You are advised that
the Council does have formal powers to control noise and nuisance under The Control of
Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other relevant legislation. For further
information and advice, please contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

OE5
HDAS
PPS3
R17

Siting of noise-sensitive developments
'Residential Developments'
Housing
Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of
recreation, leisure and community facilities

Page 73



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I6

I15

I23A

Property Rights/Rights of Light

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Re-instatement of a Vehicle Access.

9

10

11

12

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
 carry out work to an existing party wall;
 build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
 in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner
and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building
Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements
with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as
removing the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act.
Further information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 -
explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Planning
& Community Services Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not
empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the
owner. If you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank and
Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public health
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

You are advised by London Borough of Hillingdon, Highways Management, that any
works on the Highway, in relation to the reinstatement of any existing vehicle access,
must be carried out with approval from the Highway Authority. Failure to reinstate an
existing vehicle access will result in the Highway Authority completing the works, and the
developer may be responsible for the costs incurred. Enquiries should be addressed to:
Highways Maintenance, 4W/07, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

Page 74



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises one detached and one semi-detached two storey
dwellinghouses, together with a grassed open area of land at the rear and is located on
the western side of Yeading Lane. The detached house, No 43 Yeading Lane, has a rear
conservatory and single storey rear extension. No. 47 Yeading Lane has also been
extended with a single storey side and rear extension and various outbuildings. Both
dwellings have existing parking to the front of the site. This portion of Yeading Lane is
characterised by a mixture of maisonettes, bungalows, semi-detached and detached
dwellings. The site lies within the 'developed area' as identified in the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

The application site has a Public Accessibility Transport Level of 2 (where 1 is the lowest
and 6 is the highest).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Full planning permission is sought for the erection of three two storey terraced and a pair
of semi-detached three bedroom dwellinghouses, with amenity space and parking space,
involving the demolition of existing outbuildings to the rear of no. 47 Yeading Lane and
rear extensions to no. 43 Yeading Lane and the installation of new crossover.

The proposal would be situated to the rear of Nos. 35-47 (odd) Yeading Lane and the
proposed flank walls would be located more than 18m from the nearest dwellinghouses at
Yeading Lane and Bedford Avenue. For the 4 new dwellings a total of 10 car parking
spaces would be provided (2 spaces per dwelling).  2 spaces for both no.43 and no.47
would be provided to the front of each of these dwellings. Each dwellinghouse would have
their own private amenity space by a way of private gardens to the rear.

The scheme is an amended submission to a previously refused outline planning
application ref: 34799/APP/2009/534 determined on 17/12/2009. The scheme has been
amended to address the reason for refusal. The main changes include:

i) The creation of a 'pinch point' to the section of the access way between nos. 43 and 47
Yeading Lane.
ii) Widening of defensible space between the access way and the properties at nos. 43
and 47 Yeading Lane; including a laurel hedge and close boarded fence.
iii) Removal of all openings in side elevations of nos. 43 and 47 Yeading Lane. 
iv) Addition of a speed bump along the access way. 
v) Reconfiguration of the layout of the terrace of 3 dwellings to allow the middle property
an external access to the rear.

It should be noted however, that planning permission ref: 34799/APP/2009/534 has been
allowed at Appeal by the Planning Inspector since this application was submitted to the
Council, and that this is a material consideration in the assessment of the current scheme.

The applicant is encouraged to discuss with Council officers in conjunction with
the Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Officer whether on site CCTV cameras can be
linked to the Councils central CCTV system.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 75



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Application ref: 34799/APP/2009/534 sought outline permission for the erection of 3 two
storey three-bedroom terraced dwellings and 2 two storey three-bedroom semi-detached
dwellings with associated parking and bin stores and installation of new vehicular
crossover, involving demolition of existing outbuildings at no.47 (Outline application for
approval of access, appearance, layout and scale). The application was refused on
residential amenity grounds on 17/12/2009. This application was the subject of an appeal,
which was allowed.

Application with reference 34799/APP/2008/3053 was an outline application which the
applicant withdrew the application prior to determination.

Application 34799/B/99/0695 was a materially different scheme to that currently under
determination.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

London Plan (February 2008)
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
HDAS Supplementary Planning Document: Residential Layouts

PT1.10 To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenity and
the character of the area.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

AM14

AM2

AM7

BE13

BE18

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

BE38

New development and car parking standards.

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Design considerations - pedestrian security and safety

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting

Part 2 Policies:

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 76



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

H12

H5

H4

OE1

OE5

HDAS

PPS3

R17

and landscaping in development proposals.

Tandem development of backland in residential areas

Dwellings suitable for large families

Mix of housing units

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Siting of noise-sensitive developments

'Residential Developments'

Housing

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

A total of 68 neighbouring occupiers/owners were initially consulted and 29 objections and 1
petition with 46 signatures. The issues raised are:-

a) Noise and disturbance caused by future occupants of the scheme.
b) Loss of trees and landscaping leading to a degradation of visual amenity.
c) The road access is a 'Private Right of Way'. The proposal would increase the traffic using the
acess.
d) Layout and density of building - area is being over developed.
e) Over looking and privacy.
f) Lack of parking/loading and turning area.
g) Design, appearance and materials considered to be inappropriate.
h) Traffic generation.
i) Increase in antisocial behaviour.
j) Parking would become unusable because it is already tight
k) Loss of sunlight.
l) There are enough houses in Hayes.
m) Cramped development.
n) Proposal for 5 houses were refused in 1999.
o) 3 three storey and 2 two storey houses with private gardens are over development. 
p) Loss of open space.
q) Planning condition required to ensure that there is tree protection & loss of trees.
r) Encourages backland development.
s) Local infrastructure (including drainage, water supply, gas, educational facilities, and health care
facilities) won't cope with additional usage.
t) There is a lack of off street parking proposed. On street parking would become under further
pressure and people would park inappropriately.
u) Increased traffic congestion.
w) Noise, air and light pollution (caused during construction and once dwellings are occupied).
v) Design, appearance and materials would be out of keeping with the area.

Page 77



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

POLICY ADVISOR
The site comprises a vacant plot and garden in a residential area. Part of the site is potentially
contaminated. The key issue is the use of the site for residential purposes. There is an established
need for residential accommodation. The scheme would need to comply with HDAS guidelines for
room space, amenity space and impact on the amenities of adjoining properties. This is particularly
pertinent due to the siting of the development and Saved Policy H12. The housing mix would
appear appropriate. Whilst the proposed density would appear low for a suburban area with a
PTAL of 2, at 23u/ha and 140 hr/ha (compared with an indicative standard of 150-200hr/ha and 40-
80 u/ha), officers may consider that this is the maximum achievable given local circumstances and
the scale of the scheme. Highways would need to be consulted. Particular attention should be
made on the impact on the streetscape and character of the area.

ENVIRONMENT PROTECTION UNIT
No objections subject to planning conditions controlling noise impact and minimising risk of
contamination.

LANDSCAPING & TREES
The removal of the hedge, while removing a dominant landscape feature and potential screening,
will also remove the likely over-shadowing of the new development. I note that a few individual
specimens are indicated to be retained on submitted plans in the rear garden of unit 3 and on the
north-west boundary of the cul-de-sac. 

The same layout indicates that there are areas available for soft landscape detailing (planting)
within the private and shared amenity spaces, in accordance with saved policy BE38. A high quality
landscape scheme, including new tree plating, should be secured through conditions. Provision for
the management and maintenance of the communal areas should also be planned.

No objections to the proposal subject to conditions TL1, TL2, TL4, TL5, TL6 & TL7.

HIGHWAYS
No objections, the proposal would provide sufficient access width and appropriate turning area of
refuse and larger vehicles including emergency vehicles. The proposal also provides adequate
onsite parking spaces for the proposed dwellinghouse. There should be appropriately worded
conditions to ensure that visibility lines are maintained, and the access road and parking areas are
appropriately constructed and laid out.

EDUCATION
For the proposed development in Barnhill Ward, the requested amount towards education
contribution would be £58,908.

w) Loss of outlook from existing dwellings.
x) The site may be potentially contaminated.
y) The access way would be too narrow for emergency vehicles to access.

CRIME PREVENTION DESIGN ADVISOR
An access way is proposed to provide access to the rear of unit 2. Such access ways are only
acceptable if over very short distances and adequately maintained and secured. Relevant
conditions should be imposed to address maintenance and security (namely gates). 

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 78



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

The site is located within an established residential area and forms part of the 'developed
area' as defined in the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007). 

Key changes in the policy context, since the adoption of the UDP, includes the adoption of
The London Plan, the Letter to Chief Planning Officers: Development on Garden Land
dated 19/01/2010, The London Plan Interim Housing Supplementary Planning Guidance
adopted April 2010, and new Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing adopted June 2010
(PPS 3).

In relation to National Policy the Letter to Chief Planning Officers clarifies that "there is no
presumption that previously developed land is necessarily suitable for housing, nor that all
of the curtilage should be developed" and commits to move this clarification to a more
prominent position within PPS 3.  It further clarifies that "the main focus of the
Government's position therefore is that local authorities are best placed to develop
policies and take decisions on the most suitable locations for housing and they can, if
appropriate, resist development on existing gardens". 

The Council provided to the Planning Inspectorate, prior to the appeal decision evidence
from neighbours in relation to the historic use of the site. In allowing the appeal for
planning permission ref: 34799/APP/2009/534 for the erection of 3 two storey three-
bedroom terraced dwellings and 2 two storey three-bedroom semi-detached dwellings
with associated parking and bin stores and installation of new vehicular crossover,
involving demolition of existing outbuilding and single storey side extension at No.47
(Outline application for approval of access, appearance, layout and scale.), the inspector
found that: 

'Revisions to national guidance in Planning Policy Statement 3, Housing (PPS3) are a
material consideration. The majority of the site is a grassed open area, apparently
previously used as a nursery garden. It does not appear to fall within a residential
curtilage, and there is no substantive evidence of any former use as a private residential
garden. Taking into account these factors, the open grassed area falls within the PPS3
definition of previously developed land.'

The inspectors decision was informed by evidence given by neighbours to the Council in
relation to the historic use of the site. 

However, based on the evidence neighbouring occupiers have provided to the Council,
and also from Officers site visits, it would appear that the historic Commercial Nursery use
as well the private 'garden' use of the land have both been abandoned. Council officers do
consider the commercial use to be 'abandoned'. If the land is abandoned it has no lawful
commercial use (re: If the owner wished to re-commence the former commercial use
officers would consider that planning permission was required). 

PPS 3 advises that previously-developed land excludes 'land that was previously-
developed but where the remains of the permanent structure or fixed surface structure
have blended into the landscape in the process of time (to the extent that it can
reasonably be considered as part of the natural surroundings)'. 

As such the land is not considered to be previously developed land as defined in PPS3.

Page 79



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02 Density of the proposed development

The changes to PPS3 have only altered the definition of 'previously developed land' to
exclude private residential gardens. PPS does not state that development on previously
undeveloped land, including back gardens, will never be acceptable. The alteration to the
definition of 'previously developed land' means that Local Planning Authorities must
consider all other relevant material planning considerations in greater detail to assess
whether or not such considerations outweigh the loss of the private residential garden.

Furthermore, paragraph 41 of PPS3 states that 'The National annual target is that at least
60% of new housing should be provided on previously developed land'. It therefore follows
that the remainder of new housing has to be provided on previously undeveloped land.
Again, PPS3 does not state that housing development on previously undeveloped land
cannot be allowed. The outcome of these changes means that Council's will have to
assess all material planning considerations more closely and make decisions on a case by
case basis.

The site comprises an open area of land, a former commercial nursery, as well as a small
part of the rear garden of No. 47 Yeading Lane. The proposed buildings will be erected
within the curtilage of what is currently the open land, with the portion of the site currently
forming part of the rear garden of no. 47 remaining as garden area for the proposed semi
detached dwellings. Given this, whilst the rear garden of no. 47 has been subdivided, it
will remain as private amenity space (or garden area), so there is no loss of residential
private amenity space. As such the scheme accords with Policies 3A.3, 4B.1 and 4B.8 of
the London Plan, guidance within The London Plan Interim Housing Supplementary
Planning Guidance and Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing.

Policy 3A.3 of the London Plan advises that Boroughs should ensure that development
proposals achieve the highest possible intensity of use compatible with the local context
and the site's public transport accessibility. The London Plan provides a density matrix to
establish a strategic framework for appropriate densities at different locations.

Table 3A.2 recommends that developments of dwellinghouses on suburban residential
sites with a PTAL score of 2 should be within the ranges of 35-65u/ha and 150-250u/ha.
The proposed density for the site is 23u/ha or 140hr/ha which would be in the lower or
below London Plan thresholds. Whilst the proposed density would be below the
recommended threshold by London Plan, the proposed density is considered to be
acceptable having regard to the housing type and the character of the surrounding area.
Accordingly, no objection is raised to the proposal in respect to the density being below
that recommended in the London Plan.

Policies H4 and H5 seek to ensure a practicable mix of housing units are provided within
residential schemes. One and two bedroom developments are encouraged within town
centres, while larger family units are promoted elsewhere, according to the local needs.

The proposal provides 5 x three bedroom houses. The proposed housing is considered
appropriate to the character of the surrounding area, which comprises maisonette flats,
bungalows, semi-detached and detached houses. It is therefore considered that the
development provides an acceptable dwelling mix in compliance with Policies H4 and H5
of the Hillingdon UDP Saved Policies (September 2007) and the London Plan (February
2008).

No objection was raised by the Planning Inspector in relation to density and there is no

Page 80



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

difference between the current scheme and that approved at appeal.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Not applicable.

Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007
highlights the importance of designing new development to harmonise with the existing
streetscene while Policy BE19 seeks to ensure that new development within residential
areas complements or improves the amenity and character of the area. Policy BE22
seeks to ensure that all buildings of two or more storeys of the height are setback a
minimum of 1m from the side boundaries.

Planning Policy Statement 1 (PPS1) and London Plan sate that the appropriate density of
development depends on a balance between the full and effective use of available
housing land and the following important considerations; the quality of the housing layout
and design, its compatibility within the density, form and spacing surrounding
development and the location, configuration and characteristics of the site.

The principle visual impact of the development when viewed from Yeading Lane would be
minimal as the proposed dwellings would be sited over 50m from the road, set behind
Nos. 35 to 47 (odd) Yeading Lane. Furthermore, the proposed semi-detached and
terraced dwellings would maintain a minimum 1m set-in from the side boundaries. It is
considered that the development would not intrude in the streetscene given its siting,
would maintain adequate gaps to break up the built form and would be of similar bulk and
scale to neighbouring properties. Overall, the development is considered to have an
appropriate appearance that would respect and harmonise with the existing character of
the streetscene.

The current scheme is considered to be almost identical in appearance to the scheme
allowed at appeal. 

The proposed houses would be sited over 18m from surrounding properties so that they
would not result in a loss of residential amenity to the occupiers of these properties by
reason of loss of sunlight or appear unduly dominant. The Council's Hillingdon Design and
Access Statement (HDAS) Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 'Residential
Layouts' also state that the distance provided will be dependant on the bulk and size of
the building, but generally, 15m will be the minimum acceptable distance. As such, the
proposal would comply with Policies BE20 and BE21 of the adopted Unitary Development
Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007).

Given the limited number of dwellings and anticipated trip generation, it is not considered
that vehicles accessing the site would cause such noise or air quality issues so as to harm
residential amenity of near by occupiers.  Nor is it considered that the scheme would
cause harm to amenity through light spillage.

There is an existing right of way between 43 and 47 Yeading Lane.  This provides access

Page 81



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

to the rear of a number of properties. Whilst it acknowledged that there will be an increase
in traffic along this access way resulting from the development it is considered that it
would not unacceptably increase noise or cause unacceptable air quality issues for
occupiers of these dwellings. It is considered that the applicant has adequately addressed
the reason for refusal by employing the following measures in the amended design:

i) Creation of a pinch point, adjacent to nos. 43 and 47 Yeading Lane, in the access way.
This serves to narrow the width of the access way, create a one way traffic route at the
level of the dwellings to slow down traffic and to create defensible space between the
existing dwellings.

ii) Addition of a hedge and 1.2m high close boarded fence, positioned approximately 1.1m
from the flank wall of both 43 and 47 Yeading Lane. This has resulted in defensible space
and an acoustic/visual barrier at ground floor level. 

iii) All of the ground and first floor flank wall windows on nos. 43 and 47 Yeading Lane will
be bricked up. This will reduce the level of noise disturbance to these properties. It should
be noted that whilst some habitable room windows are among those to be bricked, they
are all secondary windows, as a result of which it is considered that the level of light and
outlook afforded to these existing properties will not be compromised significantly. 

It is considered that these measures have, on balance, addressed the previous reasons
for refusal and that, on balance, the scheme would not result in such a demonstrable
increase in traffic movements, levels of noise, fumes or overlooking of the residential
dwellings, as to result in harm to the amenity of occupiers of 43 and 47 Yeading Lane.

Policy BE24 states that the development should be designed to protect the privacy of
future occupiers and their neighbours. HDAS SPD 'Residential Layout' also provides
further guidance in respect of privacy, stating in particular that the distance between
habitable room windows should not be less than 21m. The proposed houses would be
sited on 90 degree angle to the surrounding properties so that there would be no facing
habitable room windows and therefore would have direct outlook to adjoining houses. The
proposed dwellinghouses would also maintain the 21m minimum facing habitable room
window distance and therefore there would not be any significant impact of overlooking
and privacy between the future occupiers of the proposed development.

The current scheme is considered to be almost identical in appearance to the scheme
allowed at appeal. No objection is raised in terms of impact to neighbours.

HDAS SPD 'Residential Layouts' specifies minimum internal floorspace standards of
81sq.m for a three bedroom houses. The proposed development would provide internal
areas of approximately 114sq.m plus for each dwellinghouse and therefore the proposed
dwellinghouses would provide an adequate standard of residential amenity for future
occupiers.

Policy BE23 of the Unitary Development Plan requires the provision of external amenity
space which is sufficient to protect the amenity of the development and surrounding
buildings, and which is usable in terms of their shape and siting. In addition, the HDAS
SPD 'Residential Layouts' seeks to ensure that an adequate amount of conveniently
located amenity space is provided in new residential development with a suggested
minimum provision of 60sq.m for two and three bedroom houses. 

Page 82



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

The proposed scheme would adequately provide more than 60sq.m of private amenity
space for each proposed dwellinghouse and retain more than the minimum requirement
for the existing dwellinghouses at Nos 43 and 47 Yeading Lane. The proposal would
therefore provide appropriate living conditions for the existing and future occupiers. The
proposal therefore accords with the Policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies 2007.

The proposed houses would also provide Lifetime Homes standards in accordance with
Policy 3A.5 of the London Plan and the Council's HDAS 'Accessible Hillingdon'.

The scheme is almost identical to that already allowed at appeal, as such no objection is
raised in terms of living conditions for future occupiers.

Policies AM2, AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) are concerned with traffic generation, road capacity, on-site parking
and access to public transport.

The Council's Highway Engineer has stated that 2 spaces on-site for each proposed
dwellinghouses would satisfy the Council's Parking Standards. All parking spaces and
manoeuvring areas on the proposed plans meet the Council's minimum requirements.
The amended scheme's proposed access is 3.0m wide at it's narrowest in the pinch point,
with an additional 1.2m for pedestrian access. The proposed width together with the
proposed turning area would allow for refuse and emergency vehicles to enter and exit the
site in a forward gear. The applicant has demonstrated through swept path diagrams that
the proposed turning area would be adequate. This area would need to be marked 'no
parking' or 'keep clear', therefore an appropriate worded condition would ensure the
turning area is unimpeded at all times. 

The Council's Highway Engineer has raised no objection to the design and location of
entrance/exit to the site from Yeading Lane.

It is considered that the proposal complies with Policies AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

It is worth noting that the same ratio of parking was considered acceptable by the appeal
inspector on an almost identical scheme. 

An access way is proposed to provide access to the rear of unit 2. The scheme was
referred to the Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Advisor who advised that
such access ways are only acceptable if over very short distances and adequately
maintained and secured. Relevant conditions are recommended to address this issue. 

The proposed houses would also provide Lifetime Homes standards in accordance with
Policy 3A.5 of the London Plan and the Council's HDAS 'Accessible Hillingdon'.

No affordable housing provision is sought from the proposed development.

The Council's Tree and Landscape officer has indicated that the proposed removal of the

Page 83



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

high conifer hedge could reduce over-shadowing but will nonetheless reduce screening.
However, given that there would be areas available for soft landscaping and planting
within the private and shared amenity spaces, the proposal would be in accordance with
BE38 of the Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies 2007.

In addition neighbours have raised concerns about the removal of trees on site. The
Council's Trees Officer has been out on site following resident concerns. The Tree Officer
has advised that none of the trees on site were subject to Tree Preservation Orders.
Furthermore the site does not fall within a Conservation Area.

Each dwellinghouse would provide appropriate refuse and recycling provision within the
curtilage. An appropriately worded condition will ensure that these facilities are
constructed and retained throughout the lifetime of the development.

The proposal development does not include any renewable technologies. However an
appropriately worded condition will ensure that each dwelling is designed to achieve Code
Level 3 for Code for Sustainable Homes to ensure that the proposed development is in
line with the objectives of sustainable development identified in policies 4A.1 and 4A.3 of
the London Plan (February 2008).

There are no flooding issues relating to the site. An appropriately worded condition would
ensure that details of the incorporation of sustainable urban drainage has to be
implemented on site to ensure that surface water run off is handled as close to its source
as possible.

This has been discussed in other sections of the report.  It is not considered that the
scheme would result in an unacceptable increase in noise or worsen air quality.

The issue of access for emergency vehicles has been discussed with the Council's
Highway Engineer who does not object to the scheme. 

There is no evidence to suggest that the proposals would result in anti social behaviour. 

The other matters raised in submissions have either been addressed in the body of the
report or through the imposition of relevant conditions to address concerns.

Policy R17 of the UDP states that the Local Planning Authority will, where appropriate,
seek to supplement the provision of recreation open space, facilities to support arts,
culture and entertainment activities and other community, social and education facilities
through planning obligations in conjunction with other development proposals. The
Director of Education has advised that a contribution of £58,908 towards school places is
required. This can be secured by an appropriate planning condition.

Not applicable.

No other issues.

Page 84



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need to be aware
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The amended scheme would provide for additional residential accommodation in
accordance with current housing objectives. The proposal is now considered to be
acceptable with regard to highway safety and the proposals for car and cycle parking are
in accordance with the Council's Standards. The scheme would provide an appropriate
residential environment for future occupiers in terms of all requirements set out within the
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement while maintaining an appropriate
environment for neighbouring occupiers.

Furthermore the previously refused scheme ref: 34799/APP/2009/534 has been allowed
at appeal, which is a material consideration. The current scheme addresses the previous
refusal reasons and it is considered results in a better scheme that that approved at
Appeal.

The proposal accords with all relevant saved policies within the Unitary Development Plan
and the London Plan, and accordingly the proposal is recommended for approval, subject
to conditions.

11. Reference Documents

Page 85



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007
London Plan February 2008
Hillingdon Accessibility Design Statement SPD 'Residential Layouts'
Hillingdon Accessibility Design Statement SPD 'Accessible Hillingdon'

Matt Kolaszewski 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 86



LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning & 
Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

RR
R

R

E

E

E

A

24

2
4 Posts

13

50

34
32

El

14

26

2

1

11

48

25
22

a

40

16

Posts

YEADIN
G

 L
ANE

127

2

2

Sub Sta

56

Surgery

10

32.6m

Library

24

24

1

28
Fo

rs
te

rs
 W

ay
BEDFO

RD A
VENUE

1

82

31

1

10 12

1

31.7m

YEADING GARDENS

61

23

3

13
9

7

15

17

19

4

16

43

36

64

´

August 2010

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283  2009

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

43 - 47 and rear of
35 - 43 Yeading Lane

Hayes

34799/APP/2009/2800

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

Page 87



Page 88

This page is intentionally left blank



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

51 CHILTERN VIEW ROAD UXBRIDGE

Change of use from Class A4 (Drinking Establishment) to Class C3
(Residential Units) for use as 2 one-bedroom and 1 two-bedroom, two storey
terraced dwellings with associated parking and amenity space, including a
two storey rear extension, alterations to existing front and side elevations,
repositioning of vehicular access to side and alterations to existing vehicular
crossover to front with demolition of existing single storey rear extensions
and outbuildings to rear.

07/09/2010

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 64176/APP/2010/2097

Drawing Nos: Drawing 11 - Roof Plan and Planting/Hardstanding Plan OPTION 1
Drawing 3 - Existing Floor Plans
Drawing 7a - Existing and Proposed Side Elevation from Number 47
Drawing 10 - Ordnance Survey and Photograph
Drawing 2 - Photographs
Drawing 6 - Existing Elevations
Drawing 1 - Location Plans
Energy Performance Certificate
Drawing 4a - Perspective Drawings OPTION 1
Drawing 8a - Proposed Elevations
Design and Access Statement
Plant Material Treatment
Drawing 9 - Photographs
Drawing 14 - Crossover Block Plan
Drawing 12a - Sections
Drawing 5c - Proposed Site Plan and and Floor Plans OPTION 1
Correspondence from Michael Oakes dated 23rd November 2010
Drawing 50 - Proposed Site Plan and and Floor Plans OPTION 2
Drawing 51 - 
 Roof Plan and Planting/Hardstanding Plan OPTION 2
Drawing 52 - Perspective Drawings OPTION 2

Date Plans Received: 12/01/2010
07/09/2010
14/09/2010
24/11/2010

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The application seeks the change of use from Class A4 (Drinking Establishment) to
Class C3 (Residential Units) for use as 2 one-bedroom and 1 two-bedroom, two storey
terraced dwellings with associated parking and amenity space, including a two storey
rear extension, alterations to existing front and side elevations, repositioning of vehicular
access to side and alterations to existing vehicular crossover to front with demolition of
existing single storey rear extensions and outbuildings to rear.

The proposed extensions are considered subordinate in appearance to the existing
building.  The proposal as a whole is considered to represent a positive approach to
redevelopment of the site which would harmonise with the character of the Conservation
Area.

14/09/2010Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 9

Page 89



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The proposal is considered to provide an appropriate living environment for future
occupiers and an attractive landscape environment. The proposal also includes an
acceptable level of inclusive design.

Subject to conditions ensuring the reinstatement of on-street parking on Whitehall Road
the proposal is acceptable in terms of car parking provision, cycle parking provision,
highway and pedestrian safety.

Overall, the proposal is considered to represent a positive approach to redevelopment of
the site balancing the retention of the existing building against other material
considerations.  The application is therefore recommended for approval subject to
conditions.

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

T8

OM1

M1

M5

Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

Development in accordance with Approved Plans

Details/Samples to be Submitted

Means of Enclosure - details

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE4, BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

No development shall take place until details and/or samples of all materials, colours and
finishes to be used on all external surfaces have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policies BE4 and BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

Before the development is commenced details of boundary treatment (including details of
posts and coping)and other means of enclosure shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved boundary treatments and means of
enclosure shall be erected before the development is occupied and shall be permanently
retained thereafter.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance and to safeguard
privacy to adjoining properties in accordance in accordance with Policies BE4, BE13 and
BE24 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

1

2

3

4

2. RECOMMENDATION

Page 90



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

TL5

TL6

Retention of Public House Signage

Landscaping Scheme - (full apps where details are reserved)

Landscaping Scheme - implementation

The original pub sign and post shall be permanently retained and maintained on site.

REASON
To preserve the public house signage which is considered to represent a positive feature
of the Greenway Conservation Area in accordance with Policy BE4 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme providing full details of hard
and soft landscaping works has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved. The scheme shall
include: -
· Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),
· Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,
· Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate,
· Implementation programme.
The scheme shall also include details of the following: -
· Proposed finishing levels or contours,
· Means of enclosure,
· Car parking layouts,
- Other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas,
- Hard surfacing materials proposed,
· Minor artefacts and structures (such as play equipment, furniture, refuse storage, signs,
or lighting),
· Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage,
power cables or communications equipment, indicating lines, manholes or associated
structures),
· Retained historic landscape features and proposals for their restoration where relevant.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality in compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

All hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
landscaping scheme and shall be completed within the first planting and seeding
seasons following the completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings,
whichever is the earlier period. 

The new planting and landscape operations should comply with the requirements
specified in BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'
and in BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding
Hard Surfaces)'. Thereafter, the areas of hard and soft landscaping shall be permanently
retained.

Any tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding shown on the approved landscaping scheme
which within a period of 5 years from the completion of development dies, is removed or
in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously damaged or diseased
shall be replaced in the same place in the next planting season with another such tree,
shrub or area of turfing or seeding of similar size and species unless the Local Planning

5

6

7

Page 91



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

TL7

SUS1

SUS5

H11A

Maintenance of Landscaped Areas

Energy Efficiency Major Applications (full)

Sustainable Urban Drainage

Visibility Splays

Authority first gives written consent to any variation.

REASON
To ensure that the landscaped areas are laid out and retained in accordance with the
approved plans in order to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality in
compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

No development shall take place until a schedule of landscape maintenance for a
minimum period of 5 years has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.  The scheme shall include details of the arrangements for its
implementation.  Maintenance shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
schedule.

REASON
To ensure that the approved landscaping is properly maintained in accordance with
policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (September 2007).

The measures to reduce the energy demand and carbon dioxide emissions of the
development and to provide 20% of the sites energy needs through renewable energy
generation (namely installation of photovoltaic panels, improved insultation, use of an
efficient boiler and energy efficient light fittings) contained within the submitted reports
entitles 'Design and Access Statement' and 'Authorised Submission for Part L -
Submission Reference Number 17787' shall be integrated into the development and
thereafter permanently retained and maintained.

REASON
To ensure that the development incorporates appropriate energy efficiency measures in
accordance with policies 4A.1, 4A.3, 4A.4, 4A.6, 4A.7, 4A.9, and 4A.10 of the London
Plan (February 2008).

No development shall take place on site until details of the incorporation of sustainable
urban drainage have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved details shall thereafter be installed on site and thereafter
permanently retained and maintained.

REASON
To ensure that surface water run off is handled as close to its source as possible in
compliance with policy 4A.14 of the London Plan (February 2008) /if appropriate/ and to
ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy OE8 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007), polices
4A.12 and 4A.13 of the London Plan (February 2008) and PPS25.

Unobstructed sight lines above a height of 1 metre shall be maintained where possible on
both sides of the entrance to the site, for a distance of at least 2.4m in both directions
along the back edge of the footway or verge. 

REASON
To ensure that pedestrian and vehicular safety is not prejudiced, in accordance with

8

9

10

11

Page 92



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

H12

H13

H15

H7

MCD10

Access Closure and Parking Re-instatement

Installation of gates onto a highway

Cycle Storage - In accordance with approved plans

Parking Arrangements (Residential)

Refuse Facilities

Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

No development shall take place on site until a scheme to ensure the re-provision of on-
street car parking, re-provision of any highways structures and the closure of the existing
vehicular access onto Whitehall Road (including removal of the dropped kerb
reinstatement of the footway to match the adjoining footway) has been submitted to, and
agreed in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.  The agreed scheme shall be
implemented within one month of the new access hereby approved being completed.

REASON
To ensure that pedestrian and vehicular safety is not prejudiced in accordance with
Policies AM3 and AM8 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) and Chapter 3C of the London Plan. (February 2008).

No gates shall be installed which open outwards over the highway/footway.

REASON
To ensure that pedestrian and vehicular safety is not prejudiced in accordance with
Policies AM3 and AM8 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) and Chapter 3C of the London Plan. (February 2008).

The development hereby permitted, shall not be occupied until the cycle storage,
changing facilities, lockers and shower facilities for cyclists (delete as appropriate) have
been provided in accordance with the approved plans. Thereafter, these facilities shall be
permanently retained on site and be kept available for the use of cyclists.

REASON
To ensure the provision and retention of facilities for cyclists to the development and
hence the availability of sustainable forms of transport to the site in accordance with
Policy AM9 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and Chapter 3C of the London Plan. (February 2008).

The parking areas (including where appropriate, the marking out of parking spaces)
including any garages and car ports shown on the approved plans, shall be constructed,
designated and allocated for the sole use of the occupants prior to the occupation of the
development and thereafter be permanently retained and used for no other purpose.

REASON
To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) and Chapter 3C of the London Plan. (February 2008).

No development shall take place until details of facilities to be provided for the covered,
appropriately sign posted, secure and screened storage of refuse at the premises have
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. No part of the
development shall be occupied until the facilities have been provided in accordance with
the approved details and thereafter the facilities shall be permanently retained. 

12

13

14

15

16

Page 93



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

RPD3

RPD4

RPD5

RPD9

DIS1

Obscured Glazing

Prevention of Balconies/Roof Gardens

Restrictions on Erection of Extensions and Outbuildings

Enlargement to Houses - Roof Additions/Alterations

Facilities for People with Disabilities

REASON
In order to safeguard the character and amenities of the area, in accordance with
Policies BE4, BE13, BE19 and OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) and London Plan (February 2008) Policy 4B.1.

The ground floor windows facing Whitehall Road shall be glazed with permanently
obscured glass below a height of 1.8m above the adjacent pavement level for so long as
the development remains in existence.

REASON
To protect the privacy of future occupiers of the development in accordance with policy
BE24 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

The roof area of the extension hereby permitted shall not be used as a balcony, roof
garden or similar amenity area.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance and to safeguard
privacy to adjoining properties in accordance in accordance with Policies BE4, BE13 and
BE24 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no extension to any dwellinghouse(s) nor any garage(s), shed(s) or
other outbuilding(s) shall be erected without the grant of further specific permission from
the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
So that the Local Planning Authority can ensure that any such development would not
result in a significant loss of residential amenity in accordance with policy BE21 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no addition to or enlargement of the roof of any dwellinghouse shall
be constructed.

REASON
To preserve the character and appearance of the development and protect the visual
amenity of the area and to ensure that any additions to the roof are in accordance with
policies BE4, BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

All the facilities designed specifically to meet the needs of people with disabilities that are
shown on the approved plans and documents shall be provided prior to the occupation of
the development and thereafter permanently retained.

REASON

17

18

19

20

21

Page 94



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

OM14

TL20

Secured by Design

Amenity Areas (Residential Developments)

To ensure that adequate facilities are provided for people with disabilities in accordance
with  Policies 3A.5, 4B.1 and 4B.5 of the London Plan (February 2008) and the
Accessible Hillingdon SPD.

The development hereby approved shall incorporate measures to minimise the risk of
crime and to meet the specific security needs of the application site and the
development. Details of security measures shall be submitted and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority before development commences. Any security measures to
be implemented in compliance with this condition shall reach the standard necessary to
achieve the 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon Metropolitan
Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the Association of Chief
Police Officers (ACPO).

REASON
In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with policies 4B.1 and 4B.6 of the London Plan.

No development shall commence until final details of the layout and allocation of of
amenity space to the dwellings hereby appproved have been submitted to, and approved
in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter none of the dwellings hereby
permitted shall be occupied, until the outdoor amenity areas have been completed and
made available for use by residents in accordance with the approved details. Thereafter,
the amenity areas shall so be retained.

REASON
To ensure the continued availability of external amenity space for residents of the
development, in the interests of their amenity and the character of the area in
accordance with policy BE23 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) and London Plan (February 2008) Policy 4B.1.

22

23

I1

I13

I15

Building to Approved Drawing

Asbestos Removal

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

1

2

3

INFORMATIVES

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Demolition and removal of any material containing asbestos must be carried out in
accordance with guidance from the Health and Safety Executive and the Council's
Environmental Services. For advice and information contact: - Environmental Protection
Unit, 3S/02, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 277401) or the
Health and Safety Executive, Rose Court, 2 Southwark Bridge Road, London, SE1 9HS
(Tel. 020 7556 2100).

Page 95



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I23

I24

I25A

Works affecting the Public Highway - Vehicle Crossover

Works affecting the Public Highway - General

The Party Wall etc. Act 1996

4

5

6

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank and
Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public health
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

The development requires the formation of a vehicular crossover, which will be
constructed by the Council.  This work is also subject to the issuing of a separate licence
to obstruct or open up the public highway.  For further information and advice contact: -
Highways Maintenance Operations, 4W/07, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

A licence must be obtained from the Highway Authority before any works are carried out
on any footway, carriageway, verge or other land forming part of the public highway.
This includes the erection of temporary scaffolding, hoarding or other apparatus in
connection with the development for which planning permission is hereby granted.  For
further information and advice contact: - Highways Maintenance Operations, 4W/07,
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

On 1 July 1997, a new act, The Party Wall etc. Act 1996, came into force.

This Act requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement from, any
adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:-

1)      carry out work to an existing party wall;
2)      build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
3)      in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining
building.

Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner
and are quite separate from Building Regulations or planning controls. Building Control
will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements with the adjoining
owner, and nothing said or implied by Building Control should be taken as removing the

Page 96



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I29

I47

I52

I53

Conservation Area Consent

Damage to Verge

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

7

8

9

10

necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Act.

As the application site lies within a conservation area, Conservation Area Consent may
be required for any demolition works. You should seek advice from the Conservation
Officer, Planning & Community Services, 3N/02, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW
before undertaking any demolition works for which consent has not already been
granted.

You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles
delivering materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to the public
footway. Any damage will require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and
at the applicant's expense. For further information and advice contact - Highways
Maintenance Operations, Central Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128
Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

BE13
BE15
BE19

BE20
BE21
BE23
BE24

BE4
OE1

OE5
OE6
H4
H5
H8
R17

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Siting of noise-sensitive developments
Proposals likely to result in pollution
Mix of housing units
Dwellings suitable for large families
Change of use from non-residential to residential
Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of
recreation, leisure and community facilities

Page 97



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

11

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is that of the Cowley Brick Public House at no. 51 Chiltern View Road,
which is a corner plot housing an attractive two storey Victorian property, with later
Edwardian alterations.  The property was converted to a Public House in the early 20th
Century and historical evidence suggests that prior to this the building was divided into
three properties.

The frontage of the site is surrounded by a low rendered wall and a dropped kerb exists
from Chiltern View Road.  An existing vehicular access also serves the site from Whitehall
Road and a number of on-street parking bays run along Whitehall Road adjacent to the
site.

A yard to the rear of the public house is constrained by a 2m high wall and a single storey
outbuilding is located in the north eastern corner of the site.

Chiltern View Road is characterised primarily by two storey terraced or semi-detached
properties, however there are a mixture or property types with some three storey
properties within the eastern part of the road. Burr Hall a Grade II Listed Building is also
located 11 plots to the east of the application site.

Whitehall Road consists of three storey red bricked buildings, however due to a significant
change of level these are accessed via bridges and have the appearance of two storey
properties.

Residential properties at no. 49 Chiltern View Road and no.82 Whitehall Road abut the
site to the east and north, respectively.

It is recommended that the conversion is checked to prevent/minimise the possible entry
of any migrating ground gas. Please contact the Building Control Inspector and/or the
Environmental Protection Unit on 01895 250155 if you require any advise.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

AM13

AM14
AM15
AM2

AM7
AM9

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through
(where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes
New development and car parking standards.
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking
facilities

Page 98



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The application site lies within the Greenway Conservation Area.

None.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

(a) The London Plan
(b) Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development 
(c) Planning Policy Statement: Planning and Climate Change - Supplement to Planning
Policy Statement 1 
(d) Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing 

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks the change of use of the site from an A4(Drinking Establishment) to
C3 (Residential) comprising three terraces dwellings (2 x one bedroom and 1 x two
bedroom).

The proposal would involve the subdivision of the existing public house and physical
alterations to the building incorporating physical alterations to the building.

To the rear, the existing large single storey rear extension would be demolished.  This
would be replaced for approximately two thirds of the properties width by a two storey rear
extension with gable elements aligned with the rear building line of no. 49 Chiltern View
Road.  A single storey extension would be erected on the remaining third of the property
closest to Whitehall Road, which would share the same rear building line and retain the
existing boundary wall.

The existing outbuilding would be demolished and a lightweight single storey structure
with a slate roof and solar panels would be erected on the rear boundary to provide a
covered car parking space and cycle storage.

The rear garden would be soft landscaped and set out as a combination of communal and
private amenity space.

On the eastern facade facing Whitehall Road an existing ground floor window would be
replaced by a smaller window and the other would be fitted with obscured glass. A new
vehicular crossover would be created toward the rear of the property with a gate to match
the existing.  The existing vehicular crossover on Whitehall Road would also be reinstated
to footpath, but the access gate retained for pedestrian use.

To the site frontage portions of the low level wall would be removed, a ground floor
window replaced with a door, and the area set out to provide two parking spaces
alongside soft landscaping.

64176/APP/2008/511 51 Chiltern View Road Uxbridge

RETENTION OF GAZEBO TO FRONT OF PUBLIC HOUSE (RETROSPECTIVE
APPLICATION).

01-05-2008Decision: Refused

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

DismissedAppeal: 12-02-2009

Page 99



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

(e) Planning Policy Statement 5: Planning for the Historic Environment 
(f) Planning Policy Guidance 13: Transport

PT1.10

PT1.16

PT1.18

PT1.39

To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenity and
the character of the area.

To seek to ensure enough of new residential units are designed to wheelchair and
mobility standards.

To maintain, enhance and promote town centres as the principle centres for
shopping, employment and community and cultural activities in the Borough.

To seek where appropriate planning obligations to achieve benefits to the
community related to the scale and type of development proposed.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE23

BE24

BE4

OE1

OE5

OE6

H4

H5

H8

R17

AM13

AM14

AM15

AM2

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Siting of noise-sensitive developments

Proposals likely to result in pollution

Mix of housing units

Dwellings suitable for large families

Change of use from non-residential to residential

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people
with disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Part 2 Policies:

Page 100



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

AM7

AM9

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking facilities

Not applicable3rd November 2010

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

Internal Consultees

CONSERVATION OFFICER
Proposal:
Change of use from A4 (drinking establishment) to C3 (residential units) for use as 2x1 bed and
1x2 bed two storey terraced dwellings with associated parking and amenity space involving a two
storey rear extension, alterations to existing front and side elevations, repositioning of vehicular
access to side and alterations to existing vehicular crossover to front involving the demolition of
existing single storey rear extensions and outbuildings to rear.

Background:
This is an attractive two storey late Victorian property, with later Edwardian alterations within the
Greenway Conservation area. The property was converted to a public house in the early 20th
Century. The scheme was subject to pre-app discussions, and since the meeting, the applicant has
submitted further OS map and an early photograph of the property dating from the 1930s to show
that the site originally consisted of three properties.

The area is characterised by suburban villas and terraced properties with front gardens and large
gardens to the rear. New development within conservation areas should respect the established
character of the area and should enhance its appearance (PPS 5).

Comments:
There is no objection in principle to the conversion of the PH for residential use, or to the demolition
of the existing outbuildings and the single storey extensions as these are of no architectural or
historical value.

Following comments made during pre-app discussions, the applicant proposes 2x1 and 1x2 bed

External Consultees

The application has been advertised as affecting the character or appearance of The Greenway
Conservation Area and 56 nearby owner/occupiers including The Greenway Conservation Panel
were notified directly.

A 22 signature petition has been received supporting the proposal to convert the public house to
housing.  A letter of support has also been received citing that the proposal would remove
detrimental impacts on amenity which have previously arisen from the public house.

One objection has been received raising concerns relating to:
(i)   Adequacy of car parking and safety (proximity of car parking to junction)
(ii)  Loss of water pressure; and
(iii) The adequacy of the amenity space for future occupiers.

Page 101



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

cottages, instead of the preferred option of three two bedroom cottages. This would be considered
an improvement in terms of intensification of use, and there would be no objections to the same
from a conservation point of view. 

The proposed two storey rear extension appears subordinate to the main building, and again there
would be no objections to it. Most of the other alterations proposed are internal and, from a
conservation point of view, there are no objections to them. 

With regards to the paving of the front garden, whilst not ideal, the applicant proposes to mitigate
the same by introduction of formal landscaping. Whilst acceptable in principal, the detailed
landscaping scheme should be subject to comments from the Landscape Officer.

The adequacy of the residential living environment would need to be assessed by the Case Officer.

The scheme also proposes an additional vehicular cross over to the side of the property. Details of
boundary treatment, posts and coping should be submitted for further approval, and conditioned
accordingly.

Whilst the scheme proposes to retain the original pub sign, written approval from the Council
should be sought for its removal in the future. This should be conditioned accordingly.

Samples of all external finishes should be submitted to the Council for approval, and should be
conditioned.

Conclusion:
Acceptable from a conservation point of view, subject to above conditions.

TREES AND LANDSCAPING
Background:
The site is the former Cowley Brick pub at the junction of Chiltern View Road and Whitehall Road.
There is an external (hard-surfaced) space to the front of the building which was formerly the pub
garden. There is a yard to the rear of the pub which is contained by a  2 metre high wall and gate
fronting onto Whitehall Road.  There are no trees or other significant landscape features which
might constrain development or change of use.
There are no Tree Preservation Orders on, or close to, the site.  However, it is situated within a
designated Conservation Area.

Proposal:
The proposal is to convert the pub into three self-contained flats, with off-street parking for three
cars, cycle and bin stores, a shared communal garden and private external spaces.  Drawing No.
11 shows indicative planting to the front and rear.

Landscape Considerations:
Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of
merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.
 · In this case there are no landscape features which are worthy of retention, or protection.
 · The plans indicate that there is space and opportunity to secure a high quality landscape setting
(hard and soft) which should be designed to complement the building and enhance the local
Conservation Area.
 · HDAS (Residential extensions, chapter 11.2) recommends that, where parking space is
increased in front gardens at least 25% of front garden space is retained for soft landscaping.
 · DCLG / EA guidance requires new driveways to be designed and installed in accordance with
SUDS principles.

Page 102



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

The application proposes the change of use of a public house (Use Class A4) to three
individual dwellings (Use Class C3).

The change of use of non-residential premises to residential is acceptable under policy
H8, so long as:
i)   A satisfactory residential environment can be achieved;
ii)  The existing use is unlikely to meet a demand for such accommodation in the
foreseeable future; and
iii) The proposal is consistent with other objectives of this plan, having particular regard to
the contribution of the existing use to those objectives.

The premises is no longer operating as a public house and there is evidence that while
the premises was in operation a number of complaints regarding nuisance were received
by the Council's licensing team.  Further, there are no policies which would seek to retain

 · Due to the inclusion of shared communal space, a management/maintenance plan should be
secured to ensure that the spaces are established and maintained in accordance with the design
intentions.

Recommendations:
No objection subject to conditions TL5, TL6, TL7.

HIGHWAYS
The proposal would not result in a significant increase in the sites traffic generation.  The level of
parking provision would be acceptable and the proposed vehicular access arrangements would be
acceptable in terms of highway & pedestrian safety.

The new vehicular access on Whitehall Road would necessitate the removal of a highways sign
and the reduction in a marked out on-street parking area. However the closure of the existing
access would enable the re-provision of this infrastructure, which should be secured by condition.

No objection subject to conditions ensuring:
* The provision of the car parking spaces;
* The provision of appropriate visibility splays and prevention of gates opening over the highways
* The removal of the existing vehicular crossover on Whitehall Road; and
* The re-provision of any on-street parking or highways structures removed in implementing the
new vehicular crossover on Whitehall Road.

ACCESS OFFICER
 I consider that to require a larger entrance level WC would render the scheme non-viable. Given
that the proposed units would be small and that the plans have otherwise been amended to
accommodate the lifetime home standards, I consider that a good compromise has been achieved.

I would therefore support the above development proposal.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT - CONTAMINATION
Please note that the application site to be converted to residential is located near filled ground. The
fill material is described as ashy, clay, with wood and brick from a site investigation near by, so
there is a small possibility of gas being generated. It seems likely the building may predate the in-
filled ground of a former clay pit, so no serious problems are anticipated. The gas informative is
advised as a precaution.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 103



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

the site in use as a public house and no objection is therefore raised to the principle of a
change of use.

As discussed in the following sections of this report it is considered that the application
would provide an appropriate residential living environment for future occupiers as
discussed within the relevant section of this report and the proposal would also accord
with other relevant policies.  In particular the proposal would provide additional housing
and contribute to meeting housing need within the borough.

The proposal is therefore considered to accord with Policy H8 of the Saved Policies UDP
and be acceptable in principle.

Policy 3A.3 of the London Plan seeks to ensure that developments maximise the potential
of sites through achieving the highest density compatible with surrounding context and
other relevant considerations. Table 3A.2 of the London Plan sets out density
recommendations for different locations. 

The application site has a public transport accessibility level (PTAL) of 2 and is considered
to benefit from a good supply of local facilities being within within 800m of an Metropolitan
Centre.  However, due to the low density nature of surrounding developments and the
particular character of the Conservation Area the site is considered to be suburban in
context.  The London Plan therefore recommends a density of 150 - 250 habitable rooms
per hectare.

The application proposes the conversion of the existing public house into three residential
dwellings and would result in a density of approximately 222 habitable rooms per hectare
and therefore falls within the density recommendations of the London Plan.

The proposal is considered acceptable with regard to other material considerations as
addressed within the body of this report and accordingly, no objection is raised to the
proposed density.

The proposal is not located within an Area of Special Local Character or within such
proximity of  a Listed Building that it would affect its setting.  Nor is the proposal likely to
result in harm to any remains of archaeological importance.

The site is located within the Greenway Conservation Area and accordingly the proposal
must be considered in the context of Policy BE4 of the Saved Policies UDP which requires
applications to preserve on enhance those feature of  a Conservation Area which
contribute to their special architectural and visual qualities and avoid the loss of such
features.  The policy includes a presumption in favour of retaining buildings which make a
positive contribution to the character or appearance of a Conservation Area.

The application would facilitate the retention of the existing building on site, which is a late
Victorian property with Edwardian alterations in addition to the majority of the existing
boundary wall adjacent Whitehall Road.  The building is located on a relatively prominent
corner marking the entrance to the Greenway Conservation Area and is considered to
contribute to the architectural and visual qualities of the area.  Accordingly, the principle of
a development which would retain the majority of existing built form is strongly supported.

The single storey rear extensions and outbuildings proposed for demolition are in
themselves of no particular architectural or historical value and accordingly there is no

Page 104



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

7.09

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

objection to their removal. Nor is there any objection to the limited demolition of the low
level front boundary wall, which represents a recent addition, or the installation of an
additional gate in the boundary from Whitehall Road.

The proposed part two storey and part single storey rear extension would appear
subordinate to the main building and is of a design which would fit comfortably within the
surrounding Conservation Area.  The lightweight single storey structure within the garden
(providing a car port and cycle storage) would be largely screened by the retained
boundary wall and is indicated to be of materials appropriate for the surrounding context
as is the additional access gate off Whitehall Road.  The site frontage would also benefit
from an appropriate level of soft landscaping.

The proposal also indicates the retention of the existing public house sign which would
provide reference to the historic use of the site and is therefore supported.

The Council's Conservation Officer has reviewed the proposal and considered the
application to be acceptable from a Conservation standpoint, subject to a suite of
conditions.

The retention of the existing building and design of proposed extensions demonstrated by
the proposals is considered to represent a positive approach to redevelopment of this
sensitive site and accordingly the proposal is strongly supported in terms of Policy BE4 of
the Saved Policies UDP.

The proposal would not contravene airport or aircraft safeguarding criteria.

The application site is not located within or close to the designated Green Belt.

The developments impact on the character of the area is fully discussed within the 'Impact
on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character' section of the report.

The closest residential properties to the application site are no. 49 Chiltern View Road and
no.82 Whitehall Road.

The proposed two storey rear extension aligns with the rear building line of the property at
no.49 Chiltern View Road, accordingly it would not result in a dominant impact on or a loss
of light to these neighbouring occupiers.  Nor would the proposal introduce any windows
which would face this property or result in a loss of privacy for occupiers of this property.

No. 82 Whitehall Road does not have any windows facing the application site, nor would
any part of the proposed two storey extension be visible from windows of this property.
Accordingly, the proposal would not have a dominant impact on or result in a loss of light
to occupiers of this property.  The siting of the property and lack of facing windows also
means that that the proposal would not result in any overlooking of either habitable rooms
or sensitive areas of amenity space serving this property.

Accordingly, it is not considered that the proposal would result in any detrimental impacts
on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers and would comply with Policies BE19, BE20,
BE21 and BE24 of the Saved Policies UDP and guidance within the Hillingdon Design and
Accessibility Statement - Residential Layouts.

Page 105



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Policy BE24 the Saved Policies UDP and guidance within the adopted Hillingdon Design
and Accessibility Statement (HDAS) - Residential Layouts require that the design of new
buildings protects the privacy of occupiers and their neighbours.

The proposal would not introduce any habitable room windows which would be overlooked
by either neighbouring properties or other dwellings within the proposed development.  In
addition the plans clearly demonstrate that the ground floor windows adjacent to Whitehall
Road would be either high level or fitted with obscure glass to a height which would
protect the privacy of the future occupiers of this unit.  These measures could be secured
by way of condition.

The HDAS - Residential Layouts and Policy BE20 of the UDP seek to ensure that all
residential developments and amenity space receives adequate daylight and sunlight
while Policy BE21 seeks to resist development which would have unacceptable levels of
residential amenity.

The proposed one bedroom dwellings both benefit from large windows or french doors in
both the front and rear elevations.  While the proposed properties would be relatively deep
as proposed, respectively 10m and 11m, the internal design at ground floor level ensures
an open plan layout for the primary living space and provides for internal windows
between the kitchen and living space.  It is considered that the proposed layout would
ensure an appropriate level of light for future occupiers.  At first floor level each bedroom
would benefit from a clear glazed window.

The proposed two bedroom unit benefits from a large open plan habitable space at
ground floor level which would be served by a large bay window, with additional light being
provided by high level and obscure glazed windows secondary windows facing Whitehall
Road.  At first floor level each of the bedrooms would benefit from a clear glazed window.

All habitable rooms within the proposed units would benefit from an appropriate outlook.

Accordingly, the proposal is considered to comply with Policies BE20 and BE21 of the
Saved Policies UDP.

The HDAS - Residential Layouts seeks to ensure that an appropriate living environment
for future occupiers through the provision of adequate internal floorspace within residential
units. For one-bedroom and two-bedroom units it seeks a minimum internal floorspace
provision of 50m² and 63m², respectively. Each of the proposed units exceeds these
minimum standards.

Policy BE23 of the Saved Policies UDP requires the provision of adequate levels of
external amenity space which must be convenient located and usable.  The HDAS -
Residential Layouts recommends as a minimum provision of private amenity space for
dwellings of 40sq.m and 60sq.m, respectively, for one and two bedroom dwellings.  This
would equate to a requirement for 140sq.m of private amenity space.

In terms of amenity space the applicant has provided two sets of plans providing different
options.

Option 1 provides on site amenity space for the proposed dwellings in the form of a
communal amenity area and three more private secluded gardens.  While this form of
amenity space is unusual for individual dwellings it does enable the available amenity
space to be fully utilised by the future occupiers and is considered acceptable having

Page 106



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.10 Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

regard to the small dwelling sizes which would be less likely to be used as family
accommodation.

The quantum of amenity space provided, at approximately 105sq.m, would fall 35sq.m
below the level recommended under the HDAS - Residential Layouts.

Option 2 provides an private garden area for each property with approximately 34sq.m for
each unit.  Again the quantum of amenity space for each of the units would fall below the
HDAS Recommendations.

Option 1 would provide the benefit of a larger expanse of amenity space which could be
utilised by any future occupier, whereas option 2 would provide a greater level of private
amenity space for each unit.

While under either option the quantum of amenity space falls below the HDAS
recommendation, it should be acknowledged that the application proposes small units
which are less likely to be used as family accommodation and the site is located within
400m of a recreation ground and within walking distance of Uxbridge Town Centre,
thereby meeting the majority of exception criteria set out within the HDAS SPD
'Residential Layouts'.

The shortfall must also be considered against the positive contribution of the existing
building to the character of the Conservation Area and the policy objective of retaining
features of merit, set out within Policy BE4 and the constraint that this retention places on
redevelopment of the site.  In addition to the high quality design of the proposal as a
whole which respects the character of the area and provides an acceptable living
environment in all other respect.

On balance it is considered that the level of amenity space will be sufficient to serve the
proposed development in accordance with Policy BE23 having regard to the location site
and the high quality of the design in other respects.

Officers are of the view that either option of amenity space provision would provide an
appropriate residential environment for differing reasons, however should members be
minded that one option was inferior this issue could be controlled by an appropriate
condition.  A condition is recommended requiring the applicant to confirm the final rear
garden layout.

Overall, is considered that the proposal would result in a satisfactory residential
environment for future occupiers.

The proposal would not result in a significant increase in the sites traffic generation.

The proposal would provide 3 car parking spaces (1 per unit).  Two of these would be
accessed via an existing dropped kerb to the sites frontage and the third would be
accessed via a new vehicular crossover off of Whitehall Road to the rear of the site.  The
existing dropped kerb on Whitehall road would be re-instated to pavement.

The level of parking provision is in accordance with the Council's maximum parking
standards and considered acceptable having regard to the small size of the proposed
units and the proximity to Uxbridge Town Centre. The proposal would also provide for
cycle storage in accordance with the Council's Standards.

Page 107



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

The Council's Highways Engineer has reviewed the proposal and raises no objections in
terms of highways or pedestrian safety.

The proposed vehicular access would be located adjacent to an existing on-street parking
area on Whitehall Road and would therefore require the removal of a highways sign and
part of the parking area.  However, the removal of the existing vehicular crossover would
enable the re-provision of the on street parking.  Subject to a condition to ensure the
crossover works, reinstatement of the highways sign and remarking/re-provision of on-
street parking no objection is raised to the proposal on highways grounds.

Issues relating to design are addressed within the 'Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or
Areas of Special Character' section above.

Issues relating to access are addressed within the 'Disabled access' section below.

Subject to a condition to ensure any proposed works are carried out to an adequate
standard it is considered that the proposal would result in a secure development.

Policies 3A.5 and 4B.1 of the London Plan and the Accessible Hillingdon SPD require that
all new developments meet the highest standards of inclusive design and that new
dwellings should be designed to Lifetime Homes Standards. However, the SPD
recognises that within conversions the existing building can represent a constraint and
flexibility should be applied in such situations.

The applicant has submitted detailed plans and statements which address the various
features of a Lifetime Home.  The have been considered by the Council's Access Officer
has reviewed the submission in detail and supports the proposal.

The proposal falls below the threshold at which the provision of affordable housing is
required and does not relate to special needs housing.

Policy BE38 of the Saved Policies UDP seeks to retain landscape feature of merit and
provide new landscaping wherever appropriate.

There are no landscape feature which are worthy of protection within the application site
or on its boundary.

The proposals demonstrate that the frontage of the site would benefit from a significant
level of soft landscaping, which would comply with the recommendations within the HDAS
- Residential extensions that at least 25% of dwelling frontages should be soft
landscaped.  This would also serve to enhance the appearance of the site frontage and
the Conservation Area which does not currently benefit from soft landscaping.

The plans indicate that there would be the opportunity to create a high quality landscape
setting with provision of a mixture of spaces for communal and private use which would
complement the built form and enhance the the Conservation Area. there is space and
opportunity to secure a high quality landscape setting (hard and soft) which should be
designed to complement the building and enhance the character of the Conservation
Area.

The Council's Trees & Landscape Officer has reviewed the proposal and raises no

Page 108



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

objections subject to the inclusion of conditions to ensure implementation of appropriate
landscaping and maintenance of the communal area.

Policy 4A.23 of the London Plan requires that new development provide adequate
facilities for the storage of waste and recycling.

The proposal seeks the conversion of the existing public house into three individual
dwelling houses, accordingly waste could be stored within the private rear gardens and
the waste bags brought to the street on collection day as is standard practice within the
Borough.

Subject to a condition to ensure that the location of storage facilities and measures to
screen these are agreed the proposal would provide an appropriate arrangement in terms
of waste management.

Policies 4A.3 and 4A.7 of the London Plan seek to ensure that developments achieve the
highest possible levels of sustainable design.

The application demonstrates that a number of methods will be utilised to reduce the
buildings carbon dioxide emissions, including the utilisation of highly insulating materials
where possible, the use of low energy lighting and a high efficiency gas boiler.  The
applicant proposes the installation of of approximately 9sq.m of solar photovoltaic panels
on the roof of the car part and cycle parking area, this proposal is considered a positive
way to introduce renewable technology on this site as the panels will not be visible from
Chiltern View Road within the Conservation Area and will have a lesser visual impact than
a normal roof top installation.

The proposal also indicated that rainwater harvesting in the form of water butts will be
integrated enabling rainwater to be utilised for general tasks such as landscape
maintenance and reducing overall water use.

Overall, it is considered that the proposal would represent a sustainable design, reducing
carbon dioxide emissions in a manner which is sensitive to the surrounding Conservation
Area.  Subject to conditions to ensure the implementation of the proposed measures the
scheme is considered acceptable in this regard.

The application site is not located within an area at risk of flooding, but Policies 4A.3 and
4A.18 of the London Plan require that all developments seek to manage flood risk through
sustainable techniques.

The proposal would result in a reduction in the footprint of built form on site and an
increase in the amount of soft landscaping serving to reduce levels of surface water run
off.  Subject to conditions to ensure that sustainable drainage techniques are incorporated
into the design, in particular new aspects of hard standing, it is not considered that the
development would comply with

NOISE
Policy OE1 resists proposals which are likely to be detrimental to the amenities of
surrounding properties by way of noise or other environmental impacts.

The proposed residential properties would be sited within a residential area and as such

Page 109



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

would not generate noise or other impacts which would be detrimental to the amenity of
neighbouring properties.

Subject to proper management public houses are not necessarily a cause of disturbance,
nor are they inappropriate in residential areas.  However, in this case it should also be
noted that when in use as a public house the site seems to have been a source of
complaints to the Council's licensing section and the proposed residential units are likely
result in less disturbance to nearby occupiers.

AIR QUALITY
The proposal would not result in any significant impact on local air quality.

Issues (i) and (iii) are addressed within the body of the report.

Issue (ii) relates to potential loss of water pressure.  It is not considered that the
conversion of the existing public house to residential units would have any significant
impact on water pressure in the local area.

The application is not of a scale which would necessitate any mitigation by way of
planning obligations.

Not applicable.

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need to be aware
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other

Page 110



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks the change of use of the site from an A4(Drinking Establishment) to
C3 (Residential) comprising three terraces dwellings (2 x one bedroom and 1 x two
bedroom) incorporating a rear extension, alterations to the front and side elevations, car
parking arrangements and soft landscaping.

The proposed extensions are considered subordinate in appearance to the existing
building.  The proposal as a whole is considered to represent a positive approach to
redevelopment of the site which would harmonise with the character of the Conservation
Area.

The proposal is considered to provide an appropriate living environment for future
occupiers and an attractive landscape environment. The proposal also includes an
acceptable level of inclusive design.

Subject to conditions ensuring the reinstatement of on-street parking on Whitehall Road
the proposal is acceptable in terms of car parking provision, cycle parking provision,
highway and pedestrian safety.

Overall, the proposal is considered to represent a positive approach to redevelopment of
the site balancing the retention of the existing building against other material
considerations.  The application is therefore recommended for approval subject to
conditions.

11. Reference Documents

(a) The London Plan
(b) Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development 
(c) Planning Policy Statement: Planning and Climate Change - Supplement to Planning
Policy Statement 1 
(d) Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing 
(e) Planning Policy Statement 5: Planning for the Historic Environment 
(f) Planning Policy Guidance 13: Transport

Adrien Waite 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 111



E

R

E
E

U

U

U

U

U

A

UU

U

50

66

127
W

H
ITE

H
A

LL R
O

A
D

51

78a

76
74

C
R

El

167

55

67

77

S
t A

u
stell

73

62
a

70

75b

52

Sub Sta

19

181

Rosevic House

CHILTERN VIEW ROAD

25

67

48

62
64

W
o

o
d

le
ig

h

El Sub Sta

77

W
ard B

dy

49

78

76b

89

153

195

91

O
R

C
H

A
R

D
 W

A
Y

E

44

36.9m

15

69

66

60

CW

78b

THE GREENWAY

74
c

17

97
12

A
ttad

ale

57

W
ad

h
u

rst 49b 49a

76c

6

1

36.6m

54

62

11

36.9m

68
BURNESS CLOSE

74

84

121 74
b

W
ard

 B
d

y

RH

37

37.2m

44

26

45

71
2

LB

129

139

151

86

76a

CF

72

24

16

39

65

7

65

14

16

13 1

64
a

75

72

82

PH

80a

80

18

11

´

January
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283  2011

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

51 Chiltern View Road
Uxbridge

64176/APP/2010/2097

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Page 112



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

GROUND FLOOR, OLD POST OFFICE 52 STATION ROAD HAYES 

Change of use from Class A1 (Retail) to Class D1 (Non-Residential
Institutions) for use as a Health Centre, with associated internal alterations.

29/10/2009

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 35807/APP/2009/2363

Drawing Nos: 2503/00_001
2503/00_005
2503/00_006
2503/00_001 Rev A

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The Applicant has advised that they are unable to enter into a legal agreement to secure
car parking on the adjoining site without a condition on the consent limiting the life of the
consent to the length of the lease on the building (19 years).  As such a time limiting
condition has been imposed.  No other aspects of the scheme have been changed.

Matters raised in the previous addendum have been integrated into this report.

The proposed use, which would be an extension to the existing medical centre, is
considered appropriate within a town centre and is supported by Councils objectives,
national and regional policies and NHS Hillingdon, as it would help to meet the growing
demand for health care in Hayes. The amenities of adjoining residential properties would
be safeguarded by appropriate conditions. 

It is considered that given the community benefits afforded by the scheme and the site's
town centre location, adjacent to the main bus routes and proximity of the public parking,
an exception to established Saved UDP shopping policies can be made in this particular
case and therefore, the application is recommended for approval.

2. RECOMMENDATION

19/11/2009Date Application Valid:

That delegated power be given to the Head of Planning and Enforcement to grant
planning permission subject to the following:

1.The Council enter into an agreement with the applicant and all other relevant
legal interests under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended) to ensure that:
(a) The provision of 21 car parking spaces are provided at the existing health
centre adjacent to 52 Station Road for the exclusive users of the Development. Of
these 21 spaces, 18 are permanent, including two spaces to be reserved for
disabled drivers. A further 3 spaces would be provided in a stacked arrangement
as detailed on drawing referenced 35807/100.
(b) That the applicant meets the Council's reasonable costs in the preparation of
the Section 106 Agreement and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not

Agenda Item 10

Page 113



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

T8

T6

OM1

HLC5

Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

Temporary Use - Discontinuance

Development in accordance with Approved Plans

Hours of operation

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The use hereby permitted shall be discontinued on or before 25 January 2030. 

REASON
It is not considered appropriate to grant a permanent permission for the use until its
effect on the amenities of the locality has been assessed in compliance with Policy OE1
of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

The premises shall not be used except between 0800 hours and 2000 hours Mondays to
Fridays, between 0800 hours and 1800 hours on Saturdays and at no time on Sundays,
Public or Bank Holidays.

REASON
To safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby properties
in accordance with Policy OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

1

2

3

4

being completed.

2. That Officers be authorised to negotiate and agree detailed terms of the
proposed agreement.

3. If a S106 agreement or other similar associated documentation is not signed
within 6 months, or any other period deemed appropriate by the Head of Planning
and Enforcement, then the application is to be referred back to Committee for
further consideration.

4. That subject to the above, the application be determination by the Head of
Planning and Enforcement under delegated powers subject to the completion of
the Agreement or associated documentation under section 106 and other
appropriate powers with the applicant.

5. That if the application is approved, the following conditions be attached:-

Page 114



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

N13

DIS1

H16

NONSC

Deliveries and Collection

Sound insulation of commercial/entertainment premises

Facilities for People with Disabilities

Cycle Storage - details to be submitted

Refuse and recycling

The premises shall not be used for deliveries and collections, including waste collections
other than between the hours of 08:00 and 18:00, Mondays to Fridays, 08:00 to 13:00
Saturdays and not at all on Sundays and Bank and Public Holidays.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas, in accordance with Policies OE1, OE3
and S6 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and Policy 4A.20 of the London Plan (February 2008).

The development shall not begin until a sound insulation scheme for the control of noise
transmission to the adjoining dwellings/premises has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be fully implemented before
the development is occupied/use commences and thereafter shall be retained and
maintained in good working order for so long as the building remains in use.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with
Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and Policy  4A.20 of the London Plan (February 2008).

All the facilities designed specifically to meet the needs of people with disabilities that are
shown on the approved plans shall be provided prior to the occupation of the
development and thereafter permanently retained.

REASON
To ensure that adequate facilities are provided for people with disabilities in accordance
with Policy AM13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) and London Plan (February 2008) Policies 3A.13, 3A.17 and 4B.5.

The use hereby approved shall not commence until details of covered and secure cycle
storage have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The facilities shall be provided in accordance with the approved details prior to the
occupation of the development and thereafter permanently reatained.

REASON
To ensure the provision and retention of facilities for cyclists to the development and
hence the availability of sustainable forms of transport to the site in accordance with
Policy AM9 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and Chapter 3C of the London Plan (February 2008).

No development shall take place until details of facilities to be provided for lockable
refuse and recycling storage for the medical centre have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The medical centre refuse and
recycling storage shall be integral to the building and shall demonstrate appropriate
provision for the storage of medical and clinical waste.  No part of the development shall
be occupied until the facilities have been provided in accordance with the approved
details and thereafter the facilities shall be permanently retained. 

5

6

7

8

9

Page 115



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

OM19

NONSC

NONSC

Construction Management Plan

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

REASON
In order to safeguard the amenities of the area and provide adequate refuse facilities, in
accordance with Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) and London Plan (February 2008) Policies 4A.22 and 4B.1.

Prior to development commencing, the applicant shall submit a demolition and
construction management plan to the Local Planning Authority for its approval.  The plan
shall detail:

(i) The hours during which development works will occur (please refer to informative I15
for maximum permitted working hours).
(ii) A programme to demonstrate that the most valuable or potentially contaminating
materials and fittings can be removed safely and intact for later re-use or processing.
(iii) Traffic management and access arrangements (vehicular and pedestrian) and
parking provisions for contractors during the development process (including measures
to reduce the numbers of construction vehicles accessing the site during peak hours).
(iv) The storage of demolition/construction materials on site.

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of
the demolition and construction process.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies 2007).

No air extraction system shall be used on the premises until a scheme for the control of
noise, fumes and odours emanating from the site has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved scheme shall then be fully
implemented before the development is occupied/the use commences and thereafter
shall be retained and maintained in good working order for so long as the building
remains in use.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with
policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and Policy 4A.20 of the London Plan (February 2008).

Before development commences, plans and details of the proposed access ramp into the
front entrance of the building (including details of surface materials) shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  There after the ramp shall be
constructed in accordance with the approved details.  There after the ramp shall be
maintained in good condition for the life of the development.

REASON
To ensure that people with disabilities have adequate access to the development in
accordance with Policies AM13 and R16 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007) and London Plan Policies (February 2008) Policies
3A.13, 3A.17 and 4B.5.

10

11

12

Page 116



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I52

I53

I1

I3

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

Building to Approved Drawing

Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

1

2

3

4

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed

BE13
BE15
BE19

OE1

S6

S11
R16

AM14
AM15
LPP 4A.20

LPP 2A.8

LPP 2A.9

LPP 3D.1
CACPS

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping
areas
Service uses in Primary Shopping Areas
Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and
children
New development and car parking standards.
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
London Plan Policy 4A.20 - Reducing Noise and Enhancing
Soundscapes
London Plan Policy 2A.8 - Town Centres

London Plan Policy 2A.9 - Supporting Sustainable Communities

London Plan Policy 3D.1 - Supporting Town Centres.
Council's Adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex 1, HUDP, Saved
Policies, September 2007)

Page 117



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I12

I15

I25

I46

I51

Notification to Building Contractors

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Consent for the Display of Adverts and Illuminated Signs

Renewable Resources

Notification of Commencement of Works

5

6

7

8

9

plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

The applicant/developer should ensure that the site constructor receives copies of all
drawings approved and conditions/informatives attached to this planning permission.
During building construction the name, address and telephone number of the contractor
(including an emergency telephone number) should be clearly displayed on a hoarding
visible from outside the site.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank and
Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public health
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

This permission does not authorise the display of advertisements or signs, separate
consent for which may be required under the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) Regulations 1992. [To display an advertisement without the necessary
consent is an offence that can lead to prosecution]. For further information and advice,
contact - Planning & Community Services, 3N/04, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge,
UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250574).

To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction methods,
you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy resources which do not
produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions, including solar, geothermal and fuel
cell systems, and use of high quality insulation.

Written notification of the intended start of works shall be sent to Planning & Community
Services, London Borough of Hillingdon, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW

Page 118



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the west side of Station Road at its corner with St
Anselms Road and comprises a ground floor commercial unit which is currently vacant,
with 3 floors above in residential use. The application site was previously in use as a post
office and formed the front part of the former Post Office and British Telecom building
which was used for various functions which included telephone exchange,
delivery/sorting/distribution of post, administration, maintenance engineering and as a
base for post office staff providing welfare and rest room facilities.  Land to the rear of the
application site has since been redeveloped comprising a health care centre on the
ground floor with residential above, fronting St Anselms Road. To the north lies 50 Station
Road an employment centre and to the south lies St Anselms Road. 

The street scene is commercial in character and appearance and the application site lies
within the Primary Shopping Area of the Hayes Town Centre as identified in the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Planning permission is sought for the change of use of the ground floor from class A1 to
class D1  to form an extension of the existing HESA primary care centre adjacent to the
application unit along St Anselms Road. The unit would provide 5
examination/consultation rooms, waiting area and reception rooms. The existing entrance
on the corner with High Street and St Anslems Road would form an entrance to the unit
however it would also be accessed from the existing health centre via an internal link. 

No external alterations are proposed but 24 car parking spaces are to be provided and are
located to the rear of the premises.  These spaces will be secured by way of a section 106
legal agreement.

at least seven days before the works hereby approved are commenced.

35807/APP/2001/1118

35807/APP/2002/538

52 Station Road Hayes

52 Station Road Hayes

CHANGE OF USE TO CLASS D1 (NEW RESIDENTIAL INSTITUTION) INCLUDING MEDICAL
AND HEALTH SERVICES, INVOLVING PART DEMOLITION OF BUILDING AND ERECTION
OF EXTENSIONS AND EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS

CHANGE OF USE TO CLASS D1 (NON- RESIDENTIAL INSTITUTION) INCLUDING
MEDICAL AND HEALTH SERVICES AND INVOLVING ERECTION OF EXTENSIONS AND
EXTERNAL ALTERATIONS

31-08-2001

11-07-2002

Decision:

Decision:

Approved

Approved

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Page 119



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

An appeal has been lodged against a planning application (ref: 35807/APP/2009/1437) for
the change of use from class A1 to class A2, to be used as a betting office. However, had
an appeal not been received, the application would have been refused for the following
reasons:

1. The proposal by reason of the loss of an A1 retail unit and increase in the width of the
interruption of the retail frontage, would erode the retail function and attractiveness of the
shopping centre, harming its vitality and viability. The proposal is therefore contrary to
Policy S11 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies
September 2007) and policy 3D.3 of the London Plan 2008. 

2. The proposed shopfront alterations, by reason of their overall size, scale and design
would fail to harmonise with the symmetry, composition, proportions and overall
architectural character of the original building. The proposal would therefore be
detrimental to the character and appearance of the surrounding area generally, contrary
to policies BE13, BE19 and BE28 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
(Saved Policies September 2007). 

3. The proposal fails to provide adequate information (a noise assessment) to
demonstrate that the proposed condenser units would not harm the residential amenities
of adjoining and nearby residents, contrary to policies S6 (iii) and OE1 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

The appeal has subsequently been withdrawn.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

PT1.20 To give priority to retail uses at ground floor level in the Borough's shopping
areas.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE13

BE15

BE19

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Part 2 Policies:

35807/APP/2009/1437 52 Station Road Hayes

Change of use from A1 Retail to A2 Financial and professional services (Bookmakers) to
include alterations to windows and front entrance and installation of 4 satellite dishes/aerials to
rear and air conditioning units.

11-11-2009Decision: Refused

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 120



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

OE1

S6

S11

R16

AM14

AM15

LPP 4A.20

LPP 2A.8

LPP 2A.9

LPP 3D.1

CACPS

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping areas

Service uses in Primary Shopping Areas

Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and children

New development and car parking standards.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

London Plan Policy 4A.20 - Reducing Noise and Enhancing Soundscapes

London Plan Policy 2A.8 - Town Centres

London Plan Policy 2A.9 - Supporting Sustainable Communities

London Plan Policy 3D.1 - Supporting Town Centres.

Council's Adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex 1, HUDP, Saved Policies,
September 2007)

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

Internal Consultees

Environmental Protection Unit:

The letter from the applicant dated 28th October 2009 states that the proposal mainly involves
alterations to the internal layout of the building to suit the provision of health care services.  It is
also stated that Hillingdon PCT lease the adjacent building and would like to expand their services
by linking into the ground floor of 52 Station Road.

The drawing showing the proposed floor plan shows access to upper floor flats, apparently situated
above the proposed health care facility.  I understand that these flats were not provided when the
ground floor of the building was previously used as a Post Office.  If this is the case, then
conditions need to be imposed to protect residents of the flats from noise disturbance.  A condition
should be considered restricting days and hours of opening of the health care facility.  Also, a
sound insulation condition should be considered.

Highways:

Vehicular access to the site is from Nield Road. 

There are a total of 24 spaces provided on adjoining land controlled by the Applicant.  Two of the
parking spaces would be for disabled users.

External Consultees

121 adjoining owner/occupiers have been consulted. 3 objections have been received.

Page 121



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

There are also 13 on street disabled parking bays adjoining but outside the site frontage which are
managed by the Council. There are also pay and display parking bays in Nield Road.

In view of the available parking (24 spaces to be secured by way of a legal agreement), and the
site's location in a town centre no objections are raised on highway grounds. 

Policy & Environmental Planning:

Policy R10 states that proposals for community and health uses will be considered as acceptable in
principle subject to other policies in the Plan.

Paragraph 9.28 states that "increasing demands on primary health care services will require
improvements to the existing primary care facilities and additional premises, particularly in the
south of the Borough where facilities are poorer. The need for premises to be easily accessible to
meet the needs of disadvantaged groups will be borne in mind."  The application meets a number
of these objectives; it is in the south of the borough, it is in an easily accessible location, and it will
improve existing primary care facilities.

Policy S6 seeks to safeguard the amenity of shopping centres and provides assessment criteria for
proposals.

Para 8.26 seeks to maintain at least 70% of the primary area frontage in Class A1 use and
generally to avoid concentrations of service uses in both primary and secondary areas.  The 2009
shopping survey undertaken by Hillingdon shows that Hayes has 63% A1 uses in the primary
frontage which falls under the 70% threshold.  The application, therefore, does not meet this
criterion.

A change of use to D1 is not supported by Policy S11 which sets out service uses acceptable at
ground floor level in primary shopping areas.  The policy also supports development that does not
result in a separation of A1 uses or a concentration of non-retail uses. Hillingdon's 2009 shopping
survey suggests a change of use on the application site would not result in a separation of A1 uses
or a concentration of non-retail uses.

Parking policies may also apply.

Retail Study 2006 - The Retail Study provides a health check on Hayes using data collected in
2004.  It concludes that key opportunities to improve Hayes include improving the health and
beauty, and electrical goods offer in the town, developing the convenience market, and improving
the appeal of Hayes as a place to live by introducing a suitable metro grocery format store.  In the
long term, a residential-led regeneration strategy is recommended.

Recommendations of this study will be assessed and taken forward through the LDF, but clearly an
improved health service provision in the town centre would support an increase in the residential
population.

Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) - The AMR assesses how far planning policies are meeting
related borough-wide targets from the Sustainable Community Strategy and the Local Area
Agreement.  Pertinent aims and objectives include 'A borough with improving health, housing and
social care where first class health and social care is available to all' and 'Create new hospital and
primary care facilities serving the north and south of the borough'.

One of the indicators employed to assess if planning policies have successfully contributed towards
these objectives is LO12: amount of new floor space for health and education facilities.  While there

Page 122



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

is no specific quantitative target, creating new health care facilities is clearly a priority for the
borough as a whole and planning policies are expected to contribute to this aim.

Emerging LDF - Hayes lies within the Heathrow Opportunity Area which is identified as one of the
main areas for growth over the next 15 years.  Infrastructure, including community facilities, will be
needed to support this growth. The policy direction for town centres will reflect recent national and
regional guidance and endorse a diversification of uses which will help town centres become a
focus for local communities through a wider range of services, particularly community facilities.

Regional Policy - London Plan Consolidated with Alterations since 2004 (2008)
The London Plan strongly promotes consumer activity in town centres which provides a mixture of
uses and offers a focal point for their surrounding communities. In particular:

- Policies 2A.8 and 2A.9 seek to enhance the vitality and viability of town centres, and the quality of
life, economy and environment of suburban London, by focusing uses such as community services
in town centres.

- Policy 3D.1 explicitly endorses DPD policies that require to the location of appropriate health,
education and other public and community services in town centres.

- Hayes is classified as a District centre in the London Plan.

- National Policy - PPS4: Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth (2009)
In this recently published Statement, economic development includes public and community uses.
Government objectives include promoting the vitality and viability of town centres as important
places for communities. To do this, the Government wants new economic development to be
focused in existing town centres with the aim of offering a wide range of services to meet the needs
of the entire community.

- Policy EC13.1 addresses planning applications affecting shops and services in local centres.  It
states that local planning authorities should take into account the importance of the shop or service
to the local community or the economic base of the area if the proposal would result in its loss or
change of use.  Applications which fail to protect existing facilities which provide for people¿s day-
to-day needs should be refused.

This is the most recent guidance on planning for town centres

Conclusion - While UDP policy R10 considers proposals for health uses acceptable in principle,
change of use on the application site is resisted by policy S11 and paragraph 8.26.  However, the
application meets borough-wide strategic objectives to improve health care facilities.

Recent national and regional policies advocate a more flexible approach to town centres uses
which help to create a focal point for communities through a wider range of services, particularly
community facilities.  These policies are reflected in Hillingdon's emerging LDF which will eventually
replace the UDP.

It is therefore considered that the proposed change of use would enhance the vitality and viability of
Hayes town centre by providing a community facility, in accordance with the London Plan, PPS4
and borough-wide objectives.

Planning Obligations Officer

A planning obligation is required to secure car parking (which is to be located on a site outside of
the 'Red Line' plan).

Page 123



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

The application site lies within the primary shopping area of the Hayes town centre.
Paragraph 8.24 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies
September 2007) defines primary shopping areas as the focus of retail activity in the
centres and are either already generally dominated by retail shops or are areas which the
Local Planning Authority considers have prime retail potential. Paragraph 8.26 states that
as a guideline, the Council will normally seek to prevent a separation or an increase in the
separation of class A1 units of more than approximately 12m which is broadly the width of
two typical shop fronts. Class A1 shops should remain the predominant use in primary
areas and the Local Planning Authority will expect at least 70% of the frontage to be in
class A1 use. 

Policy S11 establishes the change of use from class A1 to non class A1 uses in primary
frontages where there remains adequate retail facilities to accord with the character and
function of the shopping centre in order to maintain the vitality and viability of the town
centre.

The 2009 shopping survey shows that within the primary frontage of the Hayes town
centre, class A1 uses make up 63% of the frontage. The proposal would reduce this
further and as such, it would not meet this criterion. The proposal would not however
result in a separation of class A1 uses. 

In principle, Policy R10 encourages proposals for community and health uses subject to
other policies in the Plan. Paragraph 9.28 states that "increasing demands on primary
health care services will require improvements to the existing primary care facilities and
additional premises, particularly in the south of the Borough where facilities are poorer.
The need for premises to be easily accessible to meet the needs of disadvantaged groups
will be borne in mind." The application meets a number of these objectives as it is in the
south of the borough, it is in an easily accessible location, and it will improve existing
primary care facilities.

The Council carried out a Retail Study in 2006. This study provides a health check on
Hayes using data collected in 2004.  It concludes that key opportunities to improve Hayes
include improving the health and beauty, and electrical goods offer in the town, developing
the convenience market, and improving the appeal of Hayes as a place to live by
introducing a suitable metro grocery format store.  In the long term, a residential-led
regeneration strategy is recommended.

New health care facilities are also supported by the Council's Annual Monitoring Report
which assesses how far planning policies are meeting related borough-wide targets from
the Sustainable Community Strategy and the Local Area Agreement. One of the main
aims and objectives include "A borough with improving health, housing and social care

The heads of terms would require:

i) The provision of 24 car parking spaces are provided at the existing health centre adjacent to 52
Station Road. Of these 24 spaces, 18 are permanent, including two spaces to be reserved for
disabled drivers and six doubled up spaces. 

ii) That the applicant meets the Council's reasonable costs in the preparation of the Section 106
Agreement or other similar associated documentation and any abortive work as a result of the
agreement not being completed.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 124



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

where first class health and social care .. is available to all" and "Create new hospital and
primary care facilities serving the north and south of the borough".

With regards to national and regional policy, the London Plan strongly promotes
consumer activity in town centres which provides a mixture of uses and offers a focal point
for their surrounding communities. In particular, Policies 2A.8 and 2A.9 seek to enhance
the vitality and viability of town centres, and the quality of life, economy and environment
of suburban London, by focusing uses such as community services in town centres.
Furthermore, Policy 3D.1 explicitly endorses DPD policies that require to the location of
appropriate health, education and other public and community services in town centres.
Hayes is classified as a District centre in the London Plan.

Policy EC13.1 of Planning Policy Statement 4: Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth
(2009) addresses planning applications affecting shops and services in local centres.  It
states that local planning authorities should take into account the importance of the shop
or service to the local community or the economic base of the area if the proposal would
result in its loss or change of use.  Applications which fail to protect existing facilities
which provide for people's day-to-day needs should be refused.

It is accepted that the proposed development would further erode the retail character and
function of the Hayes town centre. However, the above demonstrates that there is strong
borough wide strategic support through the Council's aims and objectives to improve the
health of its population and strong policy support at regional and national level, particularly
where such uses would provide a vital service and underpins the local community. 

It is therefore considered that on balance, the proposed change of use would enhance the
vitality and viability of Hayes town centre by providing a community facility, in accordance
with the London Plan, PPS4 and borough-wide objectives. Therefore, an exception to
established UDP Saved shopping policies can be made in this particular case.

This is not applicable to this application for a change to medical use.

The proposal would not affect any listed buildings, conservation areas or any
archaeological remains.

This is not applicable to this application for a change of use to a medical centre.

The application site does not lie within the Green Belt.

No external alterations are proposed and therefore, the proposal would not harm the
appearance of the street scene in accordance with policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

In terms of assessing the effects of the proposal on residential amenity, the relevant
factors are those of noise and general disturbance. The nearest residential properties are
situated above the ground floor unit. The proposed use is not likely to generate any
significant noise over and above the previous use of a post office. However, it is
considered that planning conditions requiring the installation of appropriate sound
attenuation and insulation between floors and the imposition of limitations on hours of
operation and deliveries to match those for the adjoining health care unit would be
sufficient to maintain the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining and nearby

Page 125



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

residential properties, should planning permission be granted.

The proposal would therefore comply with policies OE1 and S6 of the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and 4A.20 of the London
Plan (February 2008).

This is not applicable to this application for a change of use to a medical centre.

The Council's car parking standards do not stipulate a parking requirement for medical
and other health practice uses. The car parking requirement would normally be
determined on an individual basis using a transport assessment and/or travel plan. The
application has not been accompanied by a transport assessment or travel plan.

The application site lies within the Hayes Town Centre and there are 18 existing on site
parking spaces, including 2 disabled bays. A further 6 spaces can be accommodated in
the parking area in a stacked arrangement (in total, the proposal will be supported by 24
spaces.

There are also 13 disabled parking bays adjoining but outside the site frontage which are
managed by the Council. There are also pay and display parking bays in Nield Road and
the application site lies on the main bus routes on Station Road. Hayes & Harlington
Station is also some 300m to the south. 

In these circumstances, the Highway Engineer raises no objection on highway grounds.
The Council's minimum cycle parking standard for Class D1 uses is 2 spaces per
consulting room. 5 consulting rooms are proposed and as such, 10 spaces are required.
This can be secured by way of a planning condition. The scheme is considered
acceptable in accordance with policies AM7(ii), AM9 and AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

This is addressed at section 07.10.

The proposal would provide a disabled persons' toilet and the existing ramp would be
utilised. The proposal would therefore comply with the above guidance and policy R16 of
the saved UDP.

This is not applicable to this application for a change of use to a medical centre.

This is not applicable to this application for a change of use to a medical centre.

This is not applicable to this application for a change of use to a medical centre.

This is not applicable to this application for a change of use to a medical centre.

This is not applicable to this application for a change of use to a medical centre.

This is not applicable to this application for a change of use to a medical centre.

Page 126



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

3 objections have been received.

A planning obligation is required to secure car parking (which is to be located on a site
outside of the 'Red Line' plan.

The heads of terms would require:

i) The provision of 24 car parking spaces are provided at the existing health centre
adjacent to 52 Station Road. Of these 24 spaces, 18 are permanent, including two spaces
to be reserved for disabled drivers, a further 6 spaces would be provided in a stacked
arrangement.

ii) That the applicant meets the Council's reasonable costs in the preparation of the
Section 106 Agreement or other similar associated documentation and any abortive work
as a result of the agreement not being completed.

This is not applicable to this application.

There are no other relevant matters to be addressed under this application.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need to be aware
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

Page 127



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

This is not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed development would result in the loss of a retail unit, however in this
particular case, the proposal would meet borough-wide strategic objectives, and accord
with regional and national policies. The Hillingdon Primary Care Trust has confirmed that
the proposed unit is vital to meeting the growing demand in for health care provision in
Hayes.

The use as a medical centre is an appropriate town centre use facility which would serve
the existing health centre. Any adverse impact upon neighbouring residential properties
can be mitigated through appropriate planning conditions. 

There would be 24 car parking spaces provided to serve the proposal, which would
secured by a S106 legal agreement.  The application site lies within a town centre,
adjacent to the main bus routes and is close to pay and display parking in Nield Road.
Given the obvious community benefits of such a use, it is considered that on balance, an
exception can be made to established UDP Saved shopping policies and therefore, this
application is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

PPS4: Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth (2009)

London Plan 2008

Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007)

Sonia Bowen 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 128



LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning & 
Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

RRR

RR

U

UU

A

U

A

12

18

2

1 to
 15

74

70

ST ANSELMS ROAD

38
40

53

22
13

6

50

54

14

4

32
 to

 3
6

10

C
 P

re
ci

n
ct

CROWN CLOSE

El

28

El
 

39
40

45

25

1

6

13

62

75

52
16

14

TCBs

Aquis House

14
29

5

36

25
24 50

11
6

Towing Path

Grand Union Canal

WALTERS CLOSE

The Parish Church

50

1

38

37

13
4

55

37

72

of St Anselm

C
R

12

S
TA

T
IO

N
 R

O
A

D

39

23

El Sub Sta

1

34 35

29

12
9

59

20
19

13
5

am Court

11

3

Bank

22

(PH)

42

Old Crown

61

Pl
ay

 A
re

a

15b

11
7

14

2

Roof Car Park

3

28

63

TCP

57

25

11

WESTERN VIEW

Sub

45

12
8

21

49
12

4

15

MS ROAD

15

1

56

42
a

The

10
a

W
ar

d
B

d
y

15

Sta

46

Posts

44

30

51

Skeffington Court

60

´

January 2010

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283  2009

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

52 Station Road
Hayes

35807/APP/2009/2363

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

Page 129



Page 130

This page is intentionally left blank



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

THE ARENA, STOCKLEY PARK STOCKLEY ROAD WEST DRAYTON 

Change of use from Class B1 (Office) to Class D1 (Non-residential
institutions) for use as further education college and management training
premises.

19/07/2010

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 37800/APP/2010/1669

Drawing Nos: 10-355-003
10-355-004
Design and Access Statement prepared Design and Access Statement
Email from Stephen Walker dated 13/09/10
10-355-006 (Indicative layout)
Unnumbered Location Plan
Email from Steve Walker dated 15/10/10
Letter from Russell-Cooke Solicitors dated 09/11/10
Supplemental Statement prepared by Stephen F Walker dated 11/12/10
Email from Steve Walker dated 05/01/11

Date Plans Received: 19/07/2010
13/09/2010
06/10/2010
09/11/2010
11/12/2010
05/01/2011

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

This application seeks full planning permission for the change of use of an existing office
(Class B1) to non-residential institution (Class D1) for use as a further education college
and management training premises, at The Arena in Stockley Park.

This application was reported to the Council's Central and South Planning Committee on
the 23 November 2010 where it was resolved to defer making a decision until additional
information had been provided by the applicant, relating to the demand for the proposed
educational establishment, highways and parking impacts and proposed management
arrangements.

The applicant has now provided additional information which, it is considered, sufficiently
demonstrates that there is a demand for the proposed use in this location, and that the
demand cannot be met at existing educational facilities within the borough. 

The applicant has provided details relating to student demographics and travel demand.
The applicant has also confirmed that some controls are in place to ensure that private
car parking areas are appropriately managed across the Stockley Park Campus.
Nevertheless, there are large expanses of uncontrolled public parking areas, and
concern is raised that potential student parking in these areas could increase the
demand for car parking across the Stockley park Campus, resulting in an unacceptable
increase in on-street parking, detrimental to highway and pedestrian safety.

PPG 2: Green Belts states that with suitable safeguards, the re-use of buildings should

22/07/2010Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 11

Page 131



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

not prejudice the openness of Green Belts, since the buildings are already there. 

PPG 2 makes it clear that the re-use of buildings inside a Green Belt is not inappropriate
development providing:
(a) it does not have a materially greater impact than the present use on the openness of
the Green Belt and the purposes of including land in it;
(b) strict control is exercised over the extension of re-used buildings, and over any
associated uses of land surrounding the building which might conflict with the openness
of the Green Belt and the purposes of including land in it (eg because they involve
extensive external storage, or extensive hardstanding, car parking, boundary walling or
fencing);
(c) the buildings are of permanent and substantial construction, and are capable of
conversion without major or complete reconstruction; and
(d) the form, bulk and general design of the buildings are in keeping with their
surroundings. (Conversion proposals may be more acceptable if they respect local
building styles and materials, though the use of equivalent natural materials that are not
local should not be ruled out).

This application is considered to accord with the above.

No objections are raised to the principle of the development. Notably, it is considered that
the proposal complies with the objectives of other UDP policies which encourage the
provision of new buildings for education.

Concerns are raised over potential parking issues which could result from students
parking indiscriminately around Stockley Park and a reason for refusal is recommended
on this basis.  This is discussed further in section 7.10 of the report.

The details of the type of facility proposed are set out more fully in section 3.2 of this
report.

Demand for the facility is considered further in section 7.01 of this report.

The proposal is considered to be contrary to relevant UDP and London Plan policies
relating to highway safety and parking provision and refusal is recommended.

REFUSAL   for the following reasons:

NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposal has not demonstrated that sufficient off street parking would be provided,
and therefore the development is considered to result in substandard car parking
provision to the Council's approved car parking standard, leading to possible on-street
parking /queuing to the detriment of public and highway safety and contrary to policies
AM7 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Polices (September
2007) and to the Hillingdon's Adopted Parking Standards (Hillingdon UDP, Saved
Policies, September 2007).

1

I52 Compulsory Informative (1)1

INFORMATIVES

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all

2. RECOMMENDATION

Page 132



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I53 Compulsory Informative (2)2

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises part of the upper ground floor (approximately 380m2) of
the building known as The Arena at Stockley Park. The split level, part two, part three-
storey building, was constructed in the 1980s as a multi-purpose, multi-user complex
containing offices, catering, including a public house, retail and meeting uses at the hub of
the Stockley Park office and business park development.

The building is an unusual and irregular shape comprising three wings off a central
cylindrical element. The proposed facility would occupy part of the south/west wing. A
large car park forms the north and north west part of the site. The site is bounded by lakes
to the south, beyond which are buildings, mostly offices, associated with the business
park and by Stockley park Golf Course to the north. Access to the site is gained through
Stockley Park via Roundwood Avenue.

The Arena is a locally listed building and it falls within the Green Belt as shown on the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Proposals Map.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Planning permission is sought for the change of use of the existing B1 offices to a further
education college within class D1 use. The college would deliver the following courses at
the application site, predominantly to Tier 4 foreign students: 

relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First
Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

OL1

OL4
BE8
BE13
BE15
OE1

R10

AM2

AM7
AM14

Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new
development
Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings
Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social,
community and health services
Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
New development and car parking standards.

Page 133



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

· Diploma in Sales and Marketing Management (level 3)
· Higher Diploma in Sales and Marketing Management (level 4)
· Professional Diploma in Sales and Marketing Management (level 5)
· Diploma in Travel and Tourism Marketing (level 3)
· Higher Diploma in Travel and Tourism Marketing (level 4)
· Professional Diploma in Travel and Tourism Marketing (level 5)
· Diploma in Business Development and Marketing (level 3)
· Higher Diploma in Business Development and Marketing (level 4)
· Professional Diploma in Business Development and Marketing (level 5)
· Diploma in Human Resource Development and Marketing (level 3)
· Higher Diploma in Human Resource Development and Marketing (level 4)
· Professional Diploma in Human Resource Development and Marketing (level 5)

Tier 4 Foreign Students are international students who are born and normally reside
abroad and who are granted (points based) Visas by the UKBA (UK Border Agency) to be
domiciled in the UK for the duration of their education and providing always that those
students return to their own countries immediately following completion of their courses
(or in the event that for other reasons the UKBA may require their departure from the UK).

"Tier 4" refers to a particular category of educational post-16 visitor to the UK and a level
within a points based Visa selection and award system.

Individual students are scrutinised by the UKBA during their Visa applications and their
temporary residence in the UK is controlled and monitored by the UKBA and by ASIC
(Accreditation Service for International Colleges).

As a part of both the UKBA and ASIC monitoring of the students whilst in the UK, the
College is required to both monitor the education and pastoral behaviour of students in
accordance with recognised standards, to ensure that the courses delivered are properly
constituted, and to ensure that the college premises have the proper D1 Use Class
designation with good quality facilities available.

Whilst the college would be primarily geared to provision of education to the Tier 4
Foreign Students, it would nevertheless be available to UK citizens resident within the
London Borough of Hillingdon where their background culture, educational and financial
profiles, and career aspirations would benefit from the courses and context offered by the
College.

The existing premises comprises a number of small offices, WC facilities, a small kitchen,
plant rooms and a large operational area. An indicative internal layout plan has been
provided which indicates that the existing operational area would be subdivided to provide
two classrooms each capable of accommodating up to 40 pupils, an IT room/classroom
capable of accommodating up to 12 pupils, two small tutorial/interview rooms, a student
common room and a staff room. The existing office, WC, kitchen and plant room facilities
would be retained.

No external changes are proposed. Whilst the applicant has advised that internally the
space would be subdivided by non-structural partitions, and an indicative internal layout
has been provided, it should be noted that these elements of the proposal do not require
planning permission.

The applicant has advised that the facility would cater for a maximum of 60 students at
any one time. Operating hours would be between 09.00 and 18.00 Monday to Friday.

Page 134



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Most students would arrive between 09.00 and 10.00 and depart between 17.00 and
18.00.

27951/B/81/1955

37800/86/1390

37800/AC/95/1804

37800/ADV/2004/19

37800/ADV/2004/31

37800/ADV/2004/47

37800/APP/1999/2654

37800/APP/2001/2530

Stockley Park Project Stockley Road West Drayton 

Stockley Park Central Leisure & Amnty Bl Stockley Road West Drayto

The Arena, Stockley Park  Stockley Road West Drayton 

The Arena, Stockley Park Stockley Road West Drayton 

Unit 1, The Arena, Stockley Park  Stockley Road West Drayton 

Unit 1, The Arena, Stockley Bennetsfield Road Stockley Park Yiewsle

Virgin Active Health Club, The Arena Stockley Park Stockley Road W

The Arena, Stockley Park Stockley Road West Drayton 

Mixed dev. on   131.4300 hectares  (outline)(P)

Details of central Leisure & Amenity buildings in compliance with outline plan.perm
27951B/81/1955 dated 20.12.84

External alterations to main entrance

INSTALLATION OF 3 PART INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED, PART NON-ILLUMINATED  WALL
MOUNTED SIGNS

INSTALLATION OF INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED AND NON-ILLUMINATED SIGNAGE

INSTALLATION OF TWO INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED SHOPFRONT SIGNS (PART
RETROSPECTIVE APPLICATION)

INSTALLATION OF ADDITIONAL PLANT ON ROOF AND ALTERATIONS TO EXTERNAL
ELEVATION INCLUDING NEW BARREL VAULT ROOFLIGHT

ERECTION OF A 5 METRE FLAGPOLE MAST AND ASSOCIATED EQUIPMENT CABIN TO
THE REAR OF EXISTING BUILDING AND TWO REPLACEMENT FLAGPOLES
(CONSULTATION UNDER SCHEDULE 2, PART 24 OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY

20-12-1984

14-11-1986

01-05-1996

03-06-2004

04-10-2004

28-09-2004

26-10-2000

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Approved

Approved

Approved

Approved

Withdrawn

Approved

Approved

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Page 135



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

There is an extensive planning history relating to Stockley Park. Applications directly
relating to The Arena are summarised above. However, no previous applications are
directly relevant to the current proposal.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 2008)
Planning Policy Guidance 2: Green Belts
Planning Policy Guidance 13: Transport
Council's Supplementary Planning Document on Accessibility

PT1.1

PT1.9

PT1.10

PT1.30

PT1.31

To maintain the Green Belt for uses which preserve or enhance the open nature
of the area.

To seek to preserve statutory Listed Buildings and buildings on the Local List.

To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenity and
the character of the area.

To promote and improve opportunities for everyone in Hillingdon, including in
particular women, elderly people, people with disabilities and ethnic minorities.

To encourage the development and support the retention of a wide range of local

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

37800/APP/2003/1191

37800/APP/2004/1046

The Arena, Stockley Park Stockley Road West Drayton 

The Arena, Stockley Park Stockley Road West Drayton 

PLANNING (GENERAL PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT) ORDER 1995)(AS AMENDED)

INSTALLATION OF THREE ANTENNAS MOUNTED ON FLAGPOLES, TWO EQUIPMENT
CABINS AND ANCILLARY DEVELOPMENT (CONSULTATION UNDER SCHEDULE 2, PART
24 OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (GENERAL PERMITTED DEVELOPMENT)
ORDER 1995 (AS AMENDED)

VARIATION OF CONDITION 1 OF PLANNING PERMISSION REF. 37800/86/1888 DATED
14/11/1986: ERECTION OF SCIENCE AND COMMERCIAL PARK; AND CONDITION 23 OF
PLANNING PERMISSION REF.27951B/81/1955 DATED 20/12/1984: REDEVELOPMENT OF
LAND

16-01-2002

07-07-2003

28-09-2004

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

PRN

Approved

Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 136



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

services, including shops and community facilities, which are easily accessible to
all, including people with disabilities or other mobility handicaps.

OL1

OL4

BE8

BE13

BE15

OE1

R10

AM2

AM7

AM14

Green Belt - acceptable open land uses and restrictions on new development

Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

Planning applications for alteration or extension of listed buildings

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Proposals for new meeting halls and buildings for education, social, community
and health services

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

New development and car parking standards.

Part 2 Policies:

Not applicable27th October 2010

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

Internal Consultees

CONSERVATION AND URBAN DESIGN OFFICER: The Arena at Stockley Park is a Locally Listed
building, which has been missed in the supporting information to this application. However, as there
are no external changes proposed to the fabric of the building, or indeed to its setting, no
objections are raised to this application.
 
ACCESS OFFICER: Part IV of the Disability Discrimination Act 1995 legally entitles disabled pupils
and students to learn in an environment which is barrier free and where discriminatory practices
have been eliminated. No objections are raised subject to conditions to ensure the proposed facility
will be fully accessible.
 
HIGHWAY ENGINEER: Objection.  The applicant has failed to demonstrate that the proposed
change of use would not have an adverse impact on parking provision across the Stockley Park
campus and in the surrounding area.

SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER: No objection subject to an informative to encourage use of
sustainable building measures.

External Consultees

Consultation letters were sent to five adjoining owner/occupiers. No responses have been received.

Page 137



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

The application site is located within the Green Belt. PPG 2: Green Belts states that the
re-use of buildings inside a Green Belt is not inappropriate development providing:
(a) it does not have a materially greater impact than the present use on the openness of
the Green Belt and the purposes of including land in it;
(b) strict control is exercised over the extension of re-used buildings, and over any
associated uses of land surrounding the building which might conflict with the openness of
the Green Belt and the purposes of including land in it (eg because they involve extensive
external storage, or extensive hardstanding, car parking, boundary walling or fencing);
(c) the buildings are of permanent and substantial construction, and are capable of
conversion without major or complete reconstruction; and
(d) the form, bulk and general design of the buildings are in keeping with their
surroundings.

The application does not involve any increase in the size of the building. The intensity of
the proposed use is commensurate with the approved use.

The buildings are of permanent and substantial construction, and are capable of
conversion without major or complete reconstruction.

The form, bulk and general design of the building would not be altered and as such is
considered to cause no harm to the surrounding area.

In terms of the demand for the proposed use the applicant has advised that the courses
on offer are a specialised and unique selection in combination and are not offered by
Brunel University.

Whilst Uxbridge College offers Diplomas in Travel and Tourism, these are only offered at
levels 1,2 and 3. The proposed college offers those levels in addition to levels 4 and 5
which are not provided by any other college within Hillingdon Borough.

In addition, the courses offered by Uxbridge College to Tier 4 international students cost
between £4,800 to £5,500 per annum. The proposed college will provide courses to Tier 4
international students at costs in the region of £1,500 per annum.

Whilst there is therefore some overlap between courses, the entry qualifications for the
proposed college are designed to be less demanding academically to the proposed
student demographic and it is envisaged and expected that the target student market will
therefore not detract from or provide undue competition with Brunel University or Uxbridge
College.

It is argued that there is a clear demand for the courses offered by the proposed college.
On completion of their course the students will have gained recognised, professional and
specialised qualifications. Courses and management will be accredited by ASIC and
monitored by the UKBA.

The applicant has advised that this location has been chosen for their operations, after a
lengthy search and selection process, as its position is ideally suited to the location of
proposed students within the Borough, and also because of the unique nature of the site,
the high quality of accommodation, and the support facilities and amenities on the campus
which can be used and enjoyed by the students and staff.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 138



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

The accommodation was formerly a part of the exhibition/conference/meeting centre at
The Arena which was substantially underused, unlet and unoccupied due to the modal
shift between traditional live conferences and tele/video/virtual conferencing, between the
core commercial and high technology corporate users.

The nature and design of the existing building means that it is already geared up to
accommodating the proposed D1 function with very few internal changes save for minor
internal partitioning (demountable and non  structural) to subdivide the larger
exhibition/conference area.

It is acknowledged that the proposal relates to a small part of an existing building, the
proposal would not result in the loss of a valuable facility associated with the use of the
adjoining Green Belt land.

The applicant has advised that this part of the building formerly provided conferencing
facilities for up to 100 people. The proposal would not, therefore, lead to an intensification
of the use of the site. In addition, no alterations would be made to the external
appearance of the building.  Accordingly, it would have no impact on the openness or on
the visual amenities of the surrounding Green Belt. In addition, the applicant has
confirmed that there is a clear demand for the proposed use in this location and it is
considered that the employment and training benefits associated with the proposed use,
would be complimentary to the wider Stockley Business Park.

Policy R10 of the UDP states that the Local Planning Authority will regard proposals for
new buildings for education as acceptable in principle subject to the other policies of the
plan. Given the relatively minor nature of the proposal, that it would have no visual impact
on the surrounding area, and the associated employment and training benefits, on
balance, it is considered that sufficient reason exists to allow the proposal in this location
in this instance. Accordingly, no objections are raised to the principle of the development,
subject to the development meeting other site specific criteria.

Not applicable to this application

The Arena is designated as a locally listed building. However, no external changes are
proposed and, accordingly, the proposal would have no impact on its exterior appearance
or setting. The Council's Urban Design and Conservation Officer has raised no objections
to the scheme. There are no other listed buildings in close proximity of the site.

The site is not located within an Archaeological Priority Area or in/near a Conservation
Area or Area of Special Local Character.

Not applicable to this application

Whilst the application site is located within the Green Belt no external alterations are
proposed.  Accordingly, it is not considered that the proposal would have any impact on
the openness or visual amenity of this part of the Green Belt.

No external alterations are proposed.  Accordingly, the proposal would have no visual
impact on the character or appearance of the surrounding area.

Page 139



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09

7.10

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

It is not considered that the proposal would have any detrimental impact of the amenity of
the occupiers of the nearest residential properties, which are located just under 600m
away to the north east, beyond Stockley Park Golf Course.

Not applicable to this application

The applicant has advised that students will primarily live within the Borough boundary
and the main nodes of occupancy will be Uxbridge, Hillingdon, Hayes, West Drayton and
Cowley. It is expected that 75% of students will live within the above named areas, with
15% living within the
remainder of the Borough, and 10% may live close to the Borough boundary in the
Boroughs of Hounslow and Southall. The site has a Public Transport Accessibility Level
(PTAL) of 2 (where 6 is high and 1 is low).

Stockley Park is well served by 3 direct bus routes:
· 350
· A10
· U5

These bus routes run with frequencies varying between 8 and 14 minutes and connect the
application site to overground stations at Hayes and Harlington, and West Drayton, to
underground stations at Uxbridge and Hillingdon, and to Heathrow Airport. They also pass
directly through, and stop within many of the main nodes of student residence (See
Appendix 2). Where students live in areas which are not served directly by the 3 bus
routes, then there are many interconnects available.

In terms of existing parking management strategies on site, the applicant has advised that
the Management company and security staff on site manage the private parking areas,
and that strict controls are in place regarding these areas.  However, there is no similar
possible parking management routines for the public access parking.  Whilst signs
adjacent to the parking areas closest to The Arena suggest that there is, at least, some
element of control over parking in these areas, to the north west there are large expanses
of parking which appear to have no control.  The Applicant has advised the following: 

"there is a possibility that any students which have access to cars, and choose to break
the College disciplinary policy travelling to the site in a car may park there."

In this case it would not be possible to control students parking in the unrestricted areas.

Whilst the applicant's argument that students attending the college would be unlikely to
drive to the site and so would not result in a significant increase in parking, and that the
college would have strict policies in place to deter students from travelling by private car,
is noted, concerns are nevertheless raised that in practice some students would travel to
the site by car.  The applicant suggests that most students would not posses UK driving
licenses, however, many may own foreign driving licences which would allow them to drive
in this country.  In addition, it is difficult to see how college policies regarding this issue
would be enforced, particularly given that there are unrestricted areas of parking close by.
 Officers note that the current unrestricted parking serves the gymnasium, wine bar and
other uses in the Arena.  The applicant has not done any form of assessment of existing
usage of the unrestricted parking.

No Transport Assessment has been submitted with the application and therefore, the

Page 140



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

availability of parking across the Stockley Park Campus is unknown.  Given that there are
large areas of uncontrolled parking, concern is raised that, if students choose to park at
Stockley Park, this could increase pressure for car parking across the campus and result
in a significant increase in on-street parking in the surrounding area, to the detriment of
highway and pedestrian safety.  A reason for refusal is recommended on this basis.

Not applicable to this application

The Design and Access Statement confirms that the proposal will comply with Part M of
the Building Regulations and relevant criteria within the Disability Discrimination Act. Level
or ramped access would be provided and doors, common areas, lifts, lighting and WCs
would be capable of being used by ambulant disabled persons and wheelchair users.

Reception counters and other general access furniture would be set at a suitable height
for wheelchair users. In addition, a management routine for evacuation of disabled
persons in the event of a fire, or other evacuation reasons, would be put in place.

The Council's Access Officer has raised no objections to the proposal, subject to relevant
conditions to ensure the proposed use is fully accessible, should approval be granted.

Not applicable to this application

No alterations would be made to the external appearance of the building or to its
landscape setting. Accordingly, there would be no impact on existing trees or landscaping
as a result of the proposal.

Given that this is a commercial development, the site occupiers ultimately have discretion
over which waste management methods are used.

The applicant has advised that refuse is currently stored on site within a designated
storage compound. All refuse is stored in proper containers being either plastic wheeled
bins or metal wheeled bins as appropriate. Separate and clearly marked containers are
provided for recycling, in accordance with the Council's recycling separation and collection
policy.

A commercially sized refuse compactor is provided within the compound and a waste
management company remove the compacted refuse once every four weeks. Separate
arrangements are made by the Centre Management for the collection of recycled waste.

All tenants are encouraged by the centre management company to recycle waste in the
facilities provided within the refuse area, and this will apply to the applicant.

The applicant will collect their refuse and will be responsible for primary sorting and
deposition of the waste in accordance with the refuse sorting facilities provided within the
refuse compound.

These details are considered sufficient to demonstrate that waste, including recycling,
from the premises would be appropriately handled. Given that arrangements for waste are
set by the Arena Management Company and are already established, and are therefore,
not within the applicant's overall control, it is not considered that any further information is
required on this matter.

Page 141



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

The applicant has confirmed that the premises would be let on a short term lease
(extendable beyond 5 years by agreement with the landlord), and that the lease payments
include water, gas and electricity, all output in terms of surface water discharge and foul
sewerage disposal through mains drainage.

Consultation with the Landlords on site management team confirm that the premises are
already fitted with low energy lighting and the mechanical services are controlled via a
computer based energy management optimising system. The electricity meters were
replaced last year and are capable of printing out energy consumption, periodic
consumption and other statistical information.

The application floor area is for 380m2 and the wing of the building in which the premises
are located has a floor area of a further (approximately) 1400m2. The applicant has no
access to these areas and is unable to comment upon their current use, or affect future
use or sustainability matters.

The Council's Sustainability Officer has raised no objections to the scheme on this basis.

The proposal would not lead to any increase in flooding at the site or in the surrounding
area over and above the existing use of the site.

It is not considered that proposal would lead in any significant increase in noise or impacts
on air quality. The nearest residential properties are located a considerable distance away
and, accordingly, the proposal would have no impact on the amenity of the occupiers of
those properties in terms of noise or air quality.

None received.

There is no requirement for planning obligations relating to this proposal.

Not applicable to this application

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Page 142



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

Not applicable to this application

10. CONCLUSION

PPG 2: Green Belts states that the reuse of a building is not inappropriate development in
certain circumstances. Given the historical use of the site as B1 offices, and that no
external alterations are proposed to the existing building, the scheme is considered to
meet the circumstances set out in PPG 2. No objections are raised to the principle of the
development.

However, concern is raised that potential parking from students attending the college
cannot be appropriately managed and restricted and could, therefore, have an adverse
impact on existing parking arrangements at Stockley Park, leading to an unacceptable
increase in on-street parking in the surrounding area to the detriment of highway and
pedestrian safety.

Accordingly, the proposal is considered to be contrary to policy AM14 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Polices (September 2007) and to the Hillingdon's
Adopted Parking Standards and refusal is recommended.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
London Plan (Consolidated with Alterations since 2008)
Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development
Planning Policy Guidance 2: Green Belts
Planning Policy Guidance 13: Transport
Council's Supplementary Planning Document on Accessibility

Johanna Hart 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 143



 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

S
ite

 
S

tu
de

nt
 R

es
id

en
tia

l A
re

a 

T
he

 L
on

do
n 

C
ol

le
ge

 o
f T

he
ol

og
y 

– 
D

1 
U

se
 C

la
ss

 C
ha

ng
e 

of
 U

se
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
- 

37
80

0/
A

P
P

/2
01

0/
16

69
 

T
he

 A
re

na
, S

to
ck

le
y 

P
ar

k,
 U

xb
rid

ge
, U

B
11

 1
A

A
 –

 S
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
S

ta
te

m
en

t  

M
A

P
N

O
 1

:
S

T
U

D
E

N
T

 R
E

S
ID

E
N

T
IA

L
 L

O
C

A
T

IO
N

S
 

Page 144



 

A
pp

lic
at

io
n 

S
ite

 
S

tu
de

nt
 R

es
id

en
tia

l A
re

a 

T
he

 L
on

do
n 

C
ol

le
ge

 o
f T

he
ol

og
y 

– 
D

1 
U

se
 C

la
ss

 C
ha

ng
e 

of
 U

se
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
- 

37
80

0/
A

P
P

/2
01

0/
16

69
 

T
he

 A
re

na
, S

to
ck

le
y 

P
ar

k,
 U

xb
rid

ge
, U

B
11

 1
A

A
 –

 S
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
S

ta
te

m
en

t  

M
A

P
N

O
 2

: 
S

TU
D

E
N

T
 R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

IA
L 

LO
C

A
TI

O
N

S
A

N
D

 D
IR

E
C

T 
B

U
S

 R
O

U
T

E
S

 T
O

 S
T

O
C

K
L

E
Y

 P
K

 

R
ou

te
 3

50
 

R
ou

te
 A

10
 

R
ou

te
 U

5 

In
te

rc
o

n
n

ec
ti

n
g

 B
u

s 
R

o
u

te
s 

ar
e 

sh
o

w
n

 o
n

 M
ap

 N
o

 3
 

O
ve

rg
ro

un
d 

S
tn

 

O
ve

rg
ro

un
d 

S
tn

 

Page 145



        
 

T
he

 L
on

do
n 

C
ol

le
ge

 o
f T

he
ol

og
y 

– 
D

1 
U

se
 C

la
ss

 C
ha

ng
e 

of
 U

se
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
- 

37
80

0/
A

P
P

/2
01

0/
16

69
 

T
he

 A
re

na
, S

to
ck

le
y 

P
ar

k,
 U

xb
rid

ge
, U

B
11

 1
A

A
 –

 S
up

pl
em

en
ta

ry
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
S

ta
te

m
en

t  

M
A

P
N

O
 3

: 
IN

T
E

R
C

O
N

N
E

C
T

IN
G

 B
U

S
 R

O
U

T
E

S
 

Page 146



Pond

RO
AD Lake

Sub Sta

BENN
ETSF

IELD
ROAD

1

Lake

El Sub Sta

2

Club House

BE
NN
ET
SF
IEL
D

El

Lake

´

November
2010

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2010

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

The Arena, Stockley Park
Stockley Road
West Drayton

37800/APP/2010/1669

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Page 147



Page 148

This page is intentionally left blank



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

BRUNEL UNIVERSITY KINGSTON LANE HILLINGDON 

Erection of a galvanised/timber framed compound to house 2 external
chillers

20/08/2010

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 532/APP/2010/1964

Drawing Nos: 5247-L(00)02 P1 - Site Plan
5247-L(1-)11 P1 - Chillers Compound Elevation and Section
Design and Access Statement
Drawing Issue Sheet
5247-L(1-)10 P2 - Chillers Compound Plans

Date Plans Received: 20/08/2010
27/08/2010

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a compound to house 2 chiller units.
The proposal would not harm the character and visual amenities of the Green Belt or the
surrounding area generally. Furthermore, it would not result in a significant increase in
noise and disturbance.

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

T8

OM1

NONSC

Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

Development in accordance with Approved Plans

Non Standard Condition

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

The rating level of noise emitted from the plant and/or machinery hereby approved shall
be at least 5 dB below the existing background noise level. The noise levels shall be
determined at the nearest residential property. The measurements and assessment shall
be made in accordance with British Standard 4142 "Method for rating industrial noise

1

2

3

2. RECOMMENDATION

27/08/2010Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 12

Page 149



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

affecting mixed residential and industrial areas".

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

I52

I53

I1

I3

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

Building to Approved Drawing

Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

1

2

3

4

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

OL4
BE13
BE15
BE19

OE1

PPG2

Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Green Belts

Page 150



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I6

I15

I46

I51

Property Rights/Rights of Light

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Renewable Resources

Notification of Commencement of Works

5

6

7

8

3.1 Site and Locality

Brunel University comprises a total of approximately 70 ha (170 acres). The Campus is
split between five sites, with the majority of built development on Sites 1 and 2. Intensive
sporting facilities are provided on Site 3 while Site 5 consists of playing fields. Site 4, to
the south of Sites 1 and 2, was recently acquired by Brunel University. Site 2 comprises
26 hectares (65 acres) and is the most densely developed part of the campus. It consists
of a series of buildings of varying heights and footprints, within a parkland setting,

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not
empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the
owner. If you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank and
Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public health
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction methods,
you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy resources which do not
produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions, including solar, geothermal and fuel
cell systems, and use of high quality insulation.

Written notification of the intended start of works shall be sent to Planning & Community
Services, London Borough of Hillingdon, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW
at least seven days before the works hereby approved are commenced.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 151



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

comprising a mix of academic space and residential uses. In terms of its built
environment, the University is centred around a central core including the Central Lecture
Block, Library and Students Union (Central Services Building). This part of the campus
has been the historic focus of the University. The Campus is designated as a Major
developed Site within the Green Belt. 

Tower Block A, the application building, is located on site 1 and comprises a series of
c1970 buildings used as Engineering Workshops. The buildings comprise external
concrete frames with glazing.

There is an extensive planning history relating to this site, none of which is specifically
relevant to this proposal.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

See relevant section below.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a compound enclosure to house two
chiller units. The proposed compound would be located within the courtyard area of Tower
Block A, adjacent to the main workshop.

The chiller units would each measure 2.24m x 0.9m x 2.1m and would sit on concrete
plinths. The compound would comprise of galvanised steel columns bolted to a concrete
strip foundation and in-filled with vertical Cedar cladding panels fixed to a galvanised steel
frames. The overall size of the structure would be 3.2m wide, 7m deep and 2.4m high,
and it would be attached to the elevations of the building.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

OL4

BE13

BE15

BE19

OE1

PPG2

Green Belt - replacement or extension of buildings

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Green Belts

Part 2 Policies:

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 152



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

6. Consultations

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Brunel University is an established educational complex; development of which has been
established by the site's identification as a major development site for the proposes of
Annex C of PPG2.

This is not applicable to this application.

This is not applicable to this application.

This is not applicable to this application.

The proposed development would be screened by the existing buildings and will not be
visible from public vantage points. As such, it would not harm the visual amenities of the
Green Belt by reason of siting, materials, design or appearance. As such the proposals
would be in accordance with policy OL4 of the Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

The proposed development would relate satisfactorily with the appearance of the existing
building and the complex as a whole. It would not be visible from the public domain and as
such, the proposed development is not considered to harm the character and appearance
of the surrounding area, in accordance with policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the adopted

Internal Consultees

Environmental Protection Unit:

If this planning application is approved, please ensure the following condition is applied:

Noise affecting residential property:
The rating level of noise emitted from the plant and/or machinery hereby approved shall be at least
5 dB below the existing background noise level. The noise levels shall be determined at the nearest
residential property. The measurements and assessment shall be made in accordance with British
Standard 4142 "Method for rating industrial noise affecting mixed residential and industrial areas".

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan.

Sustainability Officer
No objection.

External Consultees

2 nearby properties and the Ickenham Residents' Association have been consulted. No comments
have been received.

Metropolitan Police Crime Design Advisor
No objection.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 153



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

There are no residential properties nearby that would be adversely affected by the
proposed development.

This is not applicable to this application.

The siting of the proposed development will not result in the loss of off-street parking.

The area is not used (or required by condition on any earlier consent) for unloading, or for
manoeuvring area for vehicles.  No objection is raised in terms of traffic or parking.

The application was referred to the Metropolitan Police Crime Design Advisor who raised
no objection to the scheme.  The proposal does not involve access to members of the
public.

No access to the plant area is to be provided for members of the public, and given the
small scale and nature of the proposal; no objection is raised in terms of disabled access.

This is not applicable to this application.

The proposal would not result in the loss of trees or greenery.

This is not strictly applicable to this application.  The scheme does not involve any
inherent waste generating activities, no objection is raised.

This is not applicable to this application.

This is not applicable to this application.

The Environmental Health Officer considers that the proposed chiller units are unlikely to
result in a significant increase in noise and disturbance. However a noise level condition
has been recommended. Subject to this condition, the proposal would comply with policy
OE1 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

No third party comments have been receievd.

This is not applicable to this application.

This is not applicable to this application.

There are no other relevant issues.

Page 154



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need to be aware
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

This is not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

The proposal would comply with relevant policies, it would not be visible from any near by
residential properties.  Subject to conditions, planning permission is recommended.

11. Reference Documents

PPG2

Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)

Sonia Bowen 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 155



L

L

R

L

R

L

L

L

R

L

L

L

L

L

L

E

R

L

E

L

L

L L

R L

L

L

L
R

L

L

R

Pond

UniversityBrunel

34.4m

D
is

m
an

tled
 R

ailw
ay

Cooling Tower

sm
an

tle
d

 R
ai

lw
ay

TCBs

Bank

Posts

E
L

A
N

D
 R

O
A

D

Brunel University

´

January
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283  2011

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

Brunel University
Kingston Lane

Hillingdon

532/APP/2010/1964

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Page 156



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

20 PIELD HEATH ROAD HILLINGDON

Change of use from Class C3 (residential) to Class D1 for use as medical
centre and single storey rear/side extension.

20/07/2010

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 21661/APP/2010/1716

Drawing Nos: 10/293/01
10/293/02
10/293/04 REV A
Design and Access Statement
Planning Statement
10/293/03 REV B
10/293/11 REV B

Date Plans Received: 20/07/2010
28/07/2010
02/08/2010
29/10/2010

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The application seeks the change of use of the existing residential property (Use Class
C3) to a GP surgery (Use Class D1) in addition to a single storey side/rear extension.
The applicant has formally requested that should planning permission be granted the
Use Class of the site be limited specifically to a GP Surgery within Use Class D1 and the
application should be considered on this basis.

The policy matters in this case are finely balanced, however having regard to all relevant
material matters it is considered that the principle of the development is acceptable in
accordance with Policy R15 of the Saved Policies UDP.

The proposed extensions would maintain an acceptable relationship with the
neighbouring residential property and subject to conditions it is not considered that the
proposed use would have an unacceptable impact on the amenity of the neighbouring
residential occupiers.

The extensions would also attain an appropriate appearance harmonising with the
existing building and street scene and the proposal would retain the important
landscaping along the site frontage.

Subject to conditions the proposal would achieve an appropriate level of inclusive and
sustainable design.

The Council's Highways Officer is satisfied that the level of parking proposed for the
medical centre is adequate and that the layout is acceptable in terms of pedestrian and
highways safety.

Overall, the application is considered acceptable and recommended for approval subject
to conditions.

2. RECOMMENDATION

02/08/2010Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 13

Page 157



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

T8

M2

MCD16

M5

TL1

Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

External surfaces to match existing building

Restriction to Use Applied For

Means of Enclosure - details

Existing Trees - Survey

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building.

REASON
To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed
development does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing
building in accordance with Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (Use Classes) Order
1987 and the Town and Country Planning  (General Permitted Development) Order 1995
(or any orders revoking and re-enacting either of these orders with or without
modification), the land and/or building(s) shall be used only for the purpose of a GP
Surgery and for no other purpose including any other purpose within Use Class D1 of the
Town and Country Planning Use Classes Order 1987 

REASON
To enable the Local Planning Authority to retain control over the use so as to ensure that
it complies with  policies AM7, AM14, OE1 and OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Before the development is commenced, details of boundary fencing or other means of
enclosure shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The approved means of enclosure shall be erected before the development is occupied
and shall be permanently retained thereafter.

REASON
To safeguard privacy to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Prior to any work commencing on site, an accurate survey plan at a scale of not less than
1:200 shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
plan must show:-
 (i) Species, position, height, condition, vigour, age-class, branch spread and stem
diameter of all existing trees, shrubs and hedges on and immediately adjoining the site.
 (ii) A clear indication of trees, hedges and shrubs to be retained and removed.
 (iii) Existing and proposed site levels.
 (iv) Routes of any existing or proposed underground works and overhead lines including
their manner of construction.

1

2

3

4

5

Page 158



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

TL2

TL3

Trees to be retained

Protection of trees during site clearance and development

 (v) Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees and other vegetation to be retained during construction
work.

REASON
To enable the Local Planning Authority to assess the amenity value of existing trees,
hedges and shrubs and the impact of the proposed development on them and to ensure
that the development conforms with Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority. 

If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged during construction,
or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or shrub shall be
planted at the same place and shall be of a size and species to be agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the first planting season following the
completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the
earlier.

Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the
effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with
the Local Planning Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery
Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'. Remedial work should be carried out
to BS 3998 (1989)  'Recommendations for Tree Work' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of
Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work
shall be completed in the first planting season following the completion of the
development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON
To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and to comply with Section 197 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Prior to the commencement of any site clearance or construction work, detailed drawings
showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root areas/crown spread of
trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or development shall be
commenced until these drawings have been approved and the fencing has been erected
in accordance with the details approved.  Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height of 1.5 metres. The fencing
shall be retained in position until development is completed. The area within the
approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the course of the works and
in particular in these areas: 
1. There shall be no changes in ground levels; 
2. No materials or plant shall be stored; 
3. No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed. 
4. No materials or waste shall be burnt; and. 
5. No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior

6

7

Page 159



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

TL5

TL6

Landscaping Scheme - (full apps where details are reserved)

Landscaping Scheme - implementation

written consent of the Local Planning Authority. 

REASON
To ensure that trees and other vegetation to be retained are not damaged during
construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with policy BE38 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme providing full details of hard
and soft landscaping works has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved. The scheme shall
include: -
· Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),
· Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,
· Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate,
· Implementation programme.
The scheme shall also include details of the following: -
· Proposed finishing levels or contours,
· Means of enclosure,
· Car parking layouts,
- Other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas,
- Hard surfacing materials proposed,
· Minor artefacts and structures (such as play equipment, furniture, refuse storage, signs,
or lighting),
· Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage,
power cables or communications equipment, indicating lines, manholes or associated
structures),
· Retained historic landscape features and proposals for their restoration where relevant.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality in compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

All hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
landscaping scheme and shall be completed within the first planting and seeding
seasons following the completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings,
whichever is the earlier period. 

The new planting and landscape operations should comply with the requirements
specified in BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'
and in BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding
Hard Surfaces)'. Thereafter, the areas of hard and soft landscaping shall be permanently
retained.

Any tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding shown on the approved landscaping scheme
which within a period of 5 years from the completion of development dies, is removed or
in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously damaged or diseased
shall be replaced in the same place in the next planting season with another such tree,
shrub or area of turfing or seeding of similar size and species unless the Local Planning
Authority first gives written consent to any variation.

8

9

Page 160



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

TL7

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Maintenance of Landscaped Areas

Hours of Use & Deliveries

Plant Machniery

Acoustic Fence

REASON
To ensure that the landscaped areas are laid out and retained in accordance with the
approved plans in order to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality in
compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

No development shall take place until a schedule of landscape maintenance for a
minimum period of 5 years has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.  The scheme shall include details of the arrangements for its
implementation.  Maintenance shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
schedule.

REASON
To ensure that the approved landscaping is properly maintained in accordance with
policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (September 2007).

No persons other than staff shall be permitted to be on the premises and the premises
shall not be used for the delivery and loading or unloading of goods at any time on
Saturdays, Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays or between the following hours on
weekdays:
Monday    - 1800 and 0800
Tuesday   - 1900 and 0800
Wednesday - 1300 and 0730
Thursday  - 1900 and 0800
Friday    - 1800 and 0800

REASON
To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining or nearby properties is not
adversely affected in accordance with Policies OE1 and OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

The rating level of noise emitted from any plant and/or machinery on the site shall be at
least 5 dB below the existing backgroun noise level. The noise levels shall be determined
at the nearest residential property.  The measurements and assessment shall be made in
accordance with Brisith Standard 4141 "Method for rating industrial noise affecting mixed
residential and industrial areas".

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area and nearby occupiers in accordance
with Policies OE1 and OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

No development shall take place until details of an acoustic fence on the boundary with
number 1 Pield Heath Avenue have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the
Local Planning Authority.  The acoustic fence shall be installed in accordance with the
approved details prior to commencement of the use hereby permitted and
retained/maintained for the life of the development.

REASON

10

11

12

13

Page 161



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

H16

MCD10

H11A

Gate - Emergency Access Only

Cycle Storage - details to be submitted

Refuse Facilities

Visibility Splays

To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining or nearby properties is not
adversely affected in accordance with Policies OE1 and OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

No development shall take place until details of the gate adjacent to no.1 Pield Heath
Avenue on drawing 10/293/11 Rev B have been submitted to, and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.  The gate shall be installed in accordance with the
approved details prior to commencement of the use hereby approved.  Thereafter the
gate shall remain locked except in emergencies and shall be permanently
retained/maintained for the the life of the development.

REASON
To ensure vehicular movements do not prejudice the amenity of the neighbouring
occupier and to ensure the gate has an appropriate appearance within the street scene
in accordance with Policies BE13, OE1 and OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

No part of the development hereby permitted shall be commenced until details of covered
and secure cycle storage for a minimum of 4 cycles have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The facilities shall be provided in
accordance with the approved details prior to the occupation of the development and
thereafter permanently retained.

REASON
To ensure the provision and retention of facilities for cyclists to the development and
hence the availability of sustainable forms of transport to the site in accordance with
Policy AM9 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and Chapter 3C of the London Plan (February 2008).

No development shall take place until details of facilities to be provided for the separate,
covered, appropriately sign posted, secure and screened storage of refuse, recycling and
clinical waste at the premises have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. No part of the development shall be occupied until the facilities
have been provided in accordance with the approved details and thereafter the facilities
shall be permanently retained. 

REASON
In order to safeguard the amenities of the area, in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and London Plan
(February 2008) Policy 4B.1.

Unobstructed sight lines above a height of 1 metre shall be maintained where possible on
both sides of the entrance to the site, for a distance of at least 2.4m in both directions
along the back edge of the footway or verge. 

REASON
To ensure that pedestrian and vehicular safety is not prejudiced, in accordance with
Policy AM7 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

14

15

16

17

Page 162



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

H13

H5

H6

DIS1

NONSC

Installation of gates onto a highway

Sight Lines  - submission of details

Car parking provision - submission of details

Facilities for People with Disabilities

Additional Disability Measures

No gates shall be installed which open outwards over the highway/footway.

REASON
To ensure that pedestrian and vehicular safety is not prejudiced in accordance with
Policies AM3 and AM8 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) and Chapter 3C of the London Plan. (February 2008).

The development hereby permitted shall not be commenced until details of the sight lines
at the point of the vehicular access to the highway have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be occupied until
the approved sight lines have been implemented and thereafter, the sight lines shall be
permanently retained and kept clear of obstructions exceeding 0.6 metres in height.

REASON
To ensure that adequate sight lines are provided and thereafter retained in the interests
of highway safety in accordance with Policy AM7 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and Chapter 3C of the London
Plan. (February 2008).

The development hereby approved shall not be commenced until details of the parking
arrangements have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority; and the development shall not be occupied until the approved arrangements
have been implemented.  Disabled parking bays shall be a minimum of 4.8m long by
3.6m wide, or at least 3.0m wide where two adjacent bays may share an unloading area.

REASON
To ensure that adequate facilities are provided in accordance with Policies AM14, AM15
and the parking standards as set out in the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

All the facilities designed specifically to meet the needs of people with disabilities that are
shown on the approved plans shall be provided prior to the occupation of the
development and thereafter permanently retained.

REASON
To ensure that adequate facilities are provided for people with disabilities in accordance
with Policy AM13 and R16 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) and London Plan (February 2008) Policies 4B.1 and 4B.5.

No development shall commence until details of additional measures to meet the needs
of people with disabilities have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local
Planning Authority.  The additional measures shall include but not be limited to:
(i)   The provision of level access to entrances;
(ii)  A revised layout for the accessible WC; and 
(iii) Details of a 300mm clear space adjacent tot he leading edge of each door.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details.

18

19

20

21

22

Page 163



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

SUS6

OM14

OM19

Green Travel Plan

Secured by Design

Construction Management Plan

REASON
To ensure that adequate facilities are provided for people with disabilities in accordance
with Policy AM13 and R16 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) and London Plan (February 2008) Policies 4B.1 and 4B.5.

Prior to the commencement of the development hereby permitted a Travel Plan shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Travel Plan, as
submitted shall follow the current Travel Plan Development Control Guidance issued by
Transport for London and will include: 

(1) targets for sustainable travel arrangements [insert desired for target(s)];
(2) effective measures for the ongoing monitoring of the Travel Plan;
(3) a commitment to delivering the Travel Plan objectives; and 
(4) effective mechanisms to achieve the objectives of the Travel Plan by both present
and future occupiers of the development.

The development shall be implemented only in accordance with the approved Travel
Plan.

REASON
To promote sustainable transport and reduce the impact of the development on the
surrounding road network in accordance with Policies 3C.1, 3C.2 and 3C.3 of the London
Plan (February 2008).

The development hereby approved shall incorporate measures to minimise the risk of
crime and to meet the specific security needs of the application site and the
development. Details of security measures shall be submitted and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority before development commences. Any security measures to
be implemented in compliance with this condition shall reach the standard necessary to
achieve the 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the Hillingdon Metropolitan
Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the Association of Chief
Police Officers (ACPO).

REASON
In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with policies 4B.1 and 4B.6 of the London Plan.

Prior to development commencing, the applicant shall submit a demolition and
construction management plan to the Local Planning Authority for its approval.  The plan
shall detail:

(i) The hours during which development works will occur (please refer to informative I15
for maximum permitted working hours).
(ii) A programme to demonstrate that the most valuable or potentially contaminating
materials and fittings can be removed safely and intact for later re-use or processing.
(iii)Measures to prevent mud and dirt tracking onto footways and adjoining roads

23

24

25

Page 164



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

OM2

OM11

SUS5

Levels

Floodlighting

Sustainable Urban Drainage

(including wheel washing facilities).
(iv) Traffic management and access arrangements (vehicular and pedestrian) and
parking provisions for contractors during the development process (including measures
to reduce the numbers of construction vehicles accessing the site during peak hours).
(v) Measures to reduce the impact of the development on local air quality and dust
through minimising emissions throughout the demolition and construction process.
(vi) The storage of demolition/construction materials on site.

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of
the demolition and construction process.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies 2007).

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in
accordance with policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

No floodlighting or other form of external lighting shall be installed unless it is in
accordance with details which have previously been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. Such details shall include location, height, type and
direction of light sources and intensity of illumination. Any lighting that is so installed shall
not thereafter be altered without the prior consent in writing of the Local Planning
Authority other than for routine maintenance which does not change its details. 

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding properties in accordance with policy BE13 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

No development shall take place on site until details of the incorporation of sustainable
urban drainage have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved details shall thereafter be installed on site and thereafter
permanently retained and maintained.

REASON
To ensure that surface water run off is handled as close to its source as possible in
compliance with policy 4A.14 of the London Plan (February 2008) /if appropriate/ and to
ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding contrary to Policy OE8 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007), policies
4A.12 and 4A.13 of the London Plan (February 2008) and PPS25.

26

27

28

Page 165



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

SUS8

SUS2

NONSC

NONSC

Electric Charging Points

Energy Efficiency Major Applications (outline where energy s

CCTV

No satellite dishes/antennae

Before development commences, plans and details of 1 electric vehicle charging point(s),
serving the development and capable of charging multiple vehicles simultaneously, shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To encourage sustainable travel and to comply with London Plan Policy 4A.3.

No development shall take place on site until an energy efficiency report has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The energy
efficiency report shall demonstrate how the Mayors Energy Hierarchy will be integrated
into the development, including a full assessment of the site's energy demand and
carbon dioxide emissions, measures to reduce this demand and the provision of 20% of
the sites energy needs through on site renewable energy generation. The methods
identified within the approved report shall be integrated within the development and
thereafter permanently retained and maintained.

REASON
To ensure that the development incorporates appropriate energy efficiency measures in
accordance with policies 4A.1, 4A.3, 4A.4, 4A.6, 4A.7, 4A.9, and 4A.10 of the London
Plan (February 2008).

Prior to development commencing, the applicant shall submit details of CCTV and
lighting systems for the site. The approved details shall be installed prior to first
occupation of any part of the development hereby approved and thereafter permanently
maintained.

REASON
In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, and to reflect the guidance contained in Circular 5/94
'Planning Out Crime' and the Council's SPG on Community Safety By Design.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Schedule 2, Part 25 of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting
that Order with or without modification), no satellite dishes or antennae shall be installed
on the building hereby approved.

REASON
To enable the Local Planning Authority to assess all the implications of the development
and in accordance with policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007).

29

30

31

32

I52 Compulsory Informative (1)1

INFORMATIVES

Page 166



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I53 Compulsory Informative (2)2

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

BE13
BE19

BE20
BE21
BE24

OE1

OE3

OE8

H2
H3
R15
R17

AM1

AM13

AM14
AM15
AM2

AM6

AM7
AM9

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures
Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
Restrictions on changes of use of residential properties
Loss and replacement of residential accommodation
Use of residential accommodation for medical/health care facilities
Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of
recreation, leisure and community facilities
Developments which serve or draw upon more than a walking
distance based catchment area - public transport accessibility and
capacity considerations
AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people
and people with disabilities in development schemes through
(where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street
furniture schemes
New development and car parking standards.
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Measures to discourage the use of Local Distributor and Access
Roads by through traffic
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking
facilities

Page 167



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I1

I15

I23

I3

I43

Building to Approved Drawing

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Works affecting the Public Highway - Vehicle Crossover

Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Keeping Highways and Pavements free from mud etc

3

4

5

6

7

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank and
Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public health
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

The development requires the formation of a vehicular crossover, which will be
constructed by the Council.  This work is also subject to the issuing of a separate licence
to obstruct or open up the public highway.  For further information and advice contact: -
Highways Maintenance Operations, 4W/07, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the pavement or public
highway. You are further advised that failure to take appropriate steps to avoid spillage or

Page 168



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I47

I25

I9

Damage to Verge

Consent for the Display of Adverts and Illuminated Signs

Community Safety - Designing Out Crime

8

9

10

11

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises a residential property located at 20 Pield Heath Road,
Hillingdon.  The curtilage of the property is physically divided by a hedge into two distinct
planning units. The eastern part contains a single storey dwelling and is set out as a
traditional residential curtilage with a vehicular access from Pield Heath Avenue.  The
western part is set to hard standing and contains a collection of single storey buildings
which has a separate access from Pield Heath Road, this appears to have been utilised in
the past as a builders yard or similar however a history search has revealed no planning
history and the site appears to have been vacant for a significant period of time.

The site benefits from a substantial landscape screen in the form of trees and hedgerow
along its boundary with Pield Heath Road and at the junction with Pield Heath Avenue.

To the north the site adjoins a residential property at no. 1 Pield Heath Avenue, to the east
a Bed and Breakfast is located on the opposite site of Pield Heath Avenue, and to the
west lies the an Officer for a building contractors at no. 24 Pield Heath Road.  To the
south east an area privately owned open land is located on the opposite side of Pield
Heath Road which is within the designated Green Belt and to the south west is soft
landscaping and residential properties on Greatfields Drive.

adequately clear it away could result in action being taken under the Highways Act 1980.

You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby approved to
ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during construction. Vehicles
delivering materials to this development shall not override or cause damage to the public
footway. Any damage will require to be made good to the satisfaction of the Council and
at the applicant's expense. For further information and advice contact - Highways
Maintenance Operations, Central Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128
Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

This permission does not authorise the display of advertisements or signs, separate
consent for which may be required under the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) Regulations 1992. [To display an advertisement without the necessary
consent is an offence that can lead to prosecution]. For further information and advice,
contact - Planning & Community Services, 3N/04, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge,
UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250574).

Before the submission of reserved matters/details required by condition 24, you are
advised to consult the Metropolitan Police's Crime Prevention Design Advisor, Planning &
Community Services, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250538).

The applicant is encouraged to discuss with Council officers in conjunction with the
Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Officer whether on site CCTV cameras can be
linked to the Councils central CCTV system.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 169



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The application site is designated as developed land within the Saved Policies UDP.

None

4. Planning Policies and Standards

(a) The London Plan
(b) Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development 
(c) Planning Policy Statement: Planning and Climate Change - Supplement to Planning
Policy Statement 1 
(d) Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing 
(e) Planning Policy Guidance 13: Transport
(f) HDAS - Residential Layouts
(e) Accessible Hillingdon SPD

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks the change of use of the an existing residential property (Use Class
C3) to a GP surgery (Use Class D1) in addition to a single storey side/rear extension.  The
applicant has formally requested that should planning permission be granted the Use
Class of the site be limited specifically to a GP Surgery within Use Class D1 and the
application should be considered on this basis.

The proposed side/rear extension would be single storey and project 7.5m to the east of
the existing building, continuing extending the form of the existing gable roof.  A second
single 7.8m wide storey extension with a gable roof would project 8.5m forward of the
existing facade facing Pield Heath Road.  This would result in an L-shaped building.  The
extension is proposed to be treated in materials to match the existing building.

The existing site access on Pield Heath Road  would be utilised as a two-way access
providing access to a 6 space (including 1 disabled space) parking area for patients and
visitors.  The existing access from Pield Heath Avenue would serve 3 parking spaces
provided for Doctors and staff.  A gate is proposed to prevent the use of the road adjacent
to no.1 Pield Heath Avenue.

Cycle parking for 4 bicycles and refuse storage facilities are also demonstrated within the
submission.

Two areas of soft landscaping would be provided to the frontage with Pield Heath Road
and the existing brick wall, hedging and trees on the site boundaries would be retained.
The proposal would necessitate the removal of the internal hedgerow which currently
separates the eastern and western parts of the site.

PT1.10

PT1.12

To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenity and
the character of the area.

To avoid any unacceptable risk of flooding to new development in areas already

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 170



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.14

PT1.30

PT1.31

PT1.39

liable to flood, or increased severity of flooding elsewhere.

To not normally grant planning permission for a change from residential use.

To promote and improve opportunities for everyone in Hillingdon, including in
particular women, elderly people, people with disabilities and ethnic minorities.

To encourage the development and support the retention of a wide range of local
services, including shops and community facilities, which are easily accessible to
all, including people with disabilities or other mobility handicaps.

To seek where appropriate planning obligations to achieve benefits to the
community related to the scale and type of development proposed.

BE13

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE24

OE1

OE3

OE8

H2

H3

R15

R17

AM1

AM13

AM14

AM15

AM2

AM6

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Restrictions on changes of use of residential properties

Loss and replacement of residential accommodation

Use of residential accommodation for medical/health care facilities

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

Developments which serve or draw upon more than a walking distance based
catchment area - public transport accessibility and capacity considerations

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people
with disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Measures to discourage the use of Local Distributor and Access Roads by

Part 2 Policies:

Page 171



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

AM7

AM9

through traffic

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking facilities

Not applicable25th August 2010

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

The application was advertised in accordance with the Town and Country Planning Act and 14
nearby owner occupiers, including the Pield Heath Residents Association were consulted directly.

Two letters of objection have been received siting the following concerns:

(i) Concerns regarding the adequacy of the proposed parking provision, highway and pedestrian
safety.  In particular in light of the proximity to Hillingdon Hospital; and
(ii) The area is residential and should remain as such.

PRIMARY CARE TRUST
On behalf of the PCT, I can confirm that there is a clear need to develop and improve primary care
facilities in the Hayes End area.  This is confirmed in our latest strategic assessment and I am
happy to make this available to you.

We are working with Dr Shashikanth exploring possibilities of improving front line services to his
patients including relocation of his surgery.  At present there are a number of options available
including the purchase and development of the site above.  We would wish to support Dr
Shashikanth but formal support can only be considered once a formal request is received with
regard to the proposed development.

HILLINGDON LINK
I am writing in my capacity as Chair of Hillingdon LINK an organisation mandated to the
Department of Health to raise issues on behalf of patients and clients of health and social care
services in Hillingdon.

The patients of the West London Medical Centre overwhelmingly back the proposal put forward by
Dr. Shashikanth to relocate to larger premises in Pield Heath Road.  This would enable a far
greater range of services to be developed for patients and provide a much better patient
experience.

I understand you have queried why the surgery cannot relocate to Laurel Lodge or a redeveloped
GP led medical facility at the hospital.  Neither scenario is possible in the near future due to
circumstances with NHS funding.  The models of care are being re-thought, Poly clinics are no
longer on the agenda, indeed the closure of Darzai clinic was announced today.

The GP commissioning model now proposed where a range of services can be offered at a cluster
of practices, the convenience of the proposed new premises for patients, particularly the old, extra
parking and the ability the site will offer to attract new patients all favour granting a change of use.

Page 172



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

HIGHWAYS ENGINEER
The applicant has submitted a variety of information in order to facilitate consideration of highways
issues, including opening hours, anticipated patient list size, proposed staff numbers and a modal
split transport study.

The information submitted indicates that the level of on-site parking proposed will satisfy the
demands of the proposed facility.  In addition the highways layout and access arrangements are
considered satisfactory in terms of pedestrian and vehicular safety.

There is also adequate space for the provision of cycling facilities for patients and or staff.

No objection is therefore raised to the proposal.  However, should the application be approved
conditions should be attached to secure implementation of the proposed parking layout, cycle
storage, and to require a staff travel plan in order to encourage sustainable modes of travel.

ACCESS OFFICER (Note comments on original plans)
The proposed facility will be subject to the Disability Discrimination Act 1995 because it will provide
a service to the public. It should be noted that reasonable adjustments to practices, policies and
procedures, auxiliary aids, and physical features will need introducing to ensure that disabled
people receive the same level of service. 

The following observations are provided:

1. Accessible car-parking bays should be sited within 50m of the entrance.  They should be a
minimum of 4.8m x 2.4m and marked and signed in accordance with BS 8300. 

2. A suitable access route to the building should be provided from the car parking area. Paths
forming access routes should be a minimum of 1.2m clear wide, no steeper than 1:20, non-slip,
well lit and clearly defined using texture and visual contrasts. 

3. Level access and adequate front door width are assumed.  If this is not the case, level access
should be provided and a minimum door width of 1000m for a single door.

4. All signage for directions, services or facilities should be provided in a colour contrasting with the
background.  Signage and lighting levels should be consistent throughout the building and care
taken to avoid sudden changes in levels.

5. Corridors should be a minimum of 1200mm wide and internal doors across circulation routes
should incorporate a suitable zone of visibility.

6. Internal door widths should provide a minimum clear opening width of 800mm to facilitate
adequate access for wheelchair users.  Internal doors should also have 300mm unobstructed

The staff of the practice do an admirable job in cramped conditions but ultimately a failure to
relocate could cause some to leave for a better working environment causing potential disruption to
patients.

The most important factor in this process is the willingness of the practise to invest their own funds
into the development of the surgery in a climate where funding is restricted and services may well
be cut.  Any opportunity to improve health services for the good of the residents has to be seized
and it is paramount that a favourable decision is reached before the opportunity is lost.

I trust this application will be expedited with a favourable conclusion as soon as possible.

Page 173



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

space to the side of the leading edge.

7. The accessible WC shown on the proposed floor plan would not be accessible to most
wheelchair users due to its inappropriate layout.  The facility should be sized and designed in
accordance with BS 8300:2009.

8. The accessible toilet should be signed either   Accessible WC   or   Unisex  .  Alternatively, the
use of the   wheelchair   symbol and the words   Ladies   and   Gentlemen   or   Unisex   would be
acceptable.

9. Internal doors should be held open using fire alarm activated magnetic closers whilst the building
is in use.

10. Alarm systems should be designed to allow deaf people to be aware of its activation.  (Such
provisions could include visual fire alarm activation devices, and/or a vibrating pager system.)

11. Provisions should be put in place to ensure that arrangements exist to provide adequate means
of escape for all, including wheelchair users.  Fire exits should incorporate a suitably level threshold
and should open onto level, firm ground.

12. Advice from a suitably qualified Fire Safety Officer concerning emergency egress for disabled
people should be sought at an early stage.

Conclusion:

Provided revised plans can be submitted to incorporate the above recommendations, I would have
no objection to the proposed development.

TREES & LANDSCAPING OFFICER
Background:
The site is a spacious corner plot occupied by an   L  -shaped single-storey house, with vehicle
access currently via Pield Heath Avenue.  The house is set within well-established gardens which
are particularly well-screened by ornamental shrubs/hedging from Pield Heath Road. The screen
wraps   around the corner into Pield Heath Avenue.
ADS drawing No.10/293/11 Rev A indicates a tree, a Common Lime, in the south-east corner of the
garden.  This tree is off-site within the highway verge and is, therefore not within the control of the
developer.  No tree survey has been submitted. 
There are no Tree Preservation Orders on, or close to, the site, nor does it fall within a designated
Conservation Area.

Proposal:
The proposal to change the use from residential to a medical centre, includes the construction of a
single-storey rear/side extension.  ADS drawing No. 10/293/11 Rev A indicates that the external
work will include the loss of vegetation (including at least one tree (not specified) in order to create
a new vehicular access point off Pield Heath Road. Existing garden space to the north and west of
the building will be sacrificed to provide a car park for visiting patients (6No. off-street spaces and
bicycles) and one-way circulation for vehicles which will exit the site from the existing driveway onto
Pield Heath Avenue.

Landscape considerations:
Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and landscape features of
merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it is appropriate.
 · In this case some tree / hedge loss will result from the proposal.  The loss has not been qualified
or quantified.  However, as indicated on plan, much of the mature landscape and screening will be

Page 174



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

Policies H2 and H3 of the Saved Policies UDP resist the change of use of residential
properties and the loss of residential accommodation which is suitable with or without
adaptation for residential use.

Policy R15 of the Saved Policies UDP specifically relates to changes of use from
residential accommodation to medical facilities stating:

'Change of use from residential accommodation for medical/health care facilities will only
be acceptable where:-
(i) There is a proven need for the facility in the locality and no suitable alternative

retained as part of the proposal. 

DCLG / EA guidance requires new driveways in front gardens to be designed and installed in
accordance with SUDS principles.

Section 11 of the HDAS Design Guidance (Residential extensions) recommends that 25% of front
garden space should be maintained as soft landscape.    A significant area of established soft
landscape will be retained.  There may be space and opportunity to provide some replacement
planting.

Provision should be made for the ongoing management and maintenance of the existing
landscape, together with the establishment of any new planting.

Recommendation:
No objection subject to conditions TL1, TL2, TL3, TL5, TL6 and TL7. 

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION UNIT
No objection subject to the following conditions;

Acoustic Fence
A condition requiring an acoustic fence on the boundary with number 1 Pield Heath Avenue. Details
to be submitted and approved. The fence shall be installed prior to the use commencing on site and
shall thereafter be maintained.

Hours of use
Please attach a condition restricting the hours of use to those proposed in the applicants email of
the 28th of October.

If the applicants are proposing to install any air conditioning or air handling units they will need to
comply with the following condition.
N11B  Noise affecting residential property

The rating level of noise emitted from the plant and/or machinery hereby approved shall be at least
5 dB below the existing background noise level.  The noise levels shall be determined at the
nearest residential property.  The measurements and assessment shall be made in accordance
with British Standard 4142   Method for rating industrial noise affecting mixed residential and
industrial areas  .

REASON: To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 175



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

premises are available;
(ii) The development is in sympathy with the character and style of the existing street
scene, and does not harm the amenity of neighbouring occupiers;
(iii) The Council's adopted car parking standards can be met and where appropriate leave
a reasonable garden area;
(iv) Any on-street parking that may be generated can be accommodated without detriment
to pedestrian safety and/or the free flow of traffic; and
(v) A residential unit is maintained within the building, unless if can be demonstrated to the
satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority that it is impracticable.

Where such premises are no longer needed the Local Planning Authority is unlikely to
permit uses other than residential.'

The key policy question is therefore whether the proposal would comply with Policy R15
and each criterion is address in turn below.

CRITERION (i)
The Primary Care Trust (PCT) have been consulted and have indicated that there is a
clear need to develop and improve primary care facilities in the Hayes End area and that
this is confirmed by their latest strategic assessment.  Verbal discussions with the PCT
have also indicated that the existing facilities of the GP who wishes to relocate to the
application site from 198 Harlington Road do not meet all desirable modern standards and
acknowledge the benefit of improved facilities for this practice.  Accordingly, it is
considered that there is a demonstrable need for additional medical facilities of this type in
the locality.

Despite being supportive of the principle of improved and additional GP facilities in the
locality the correspondence from the PCT indicates that there are a number of options,
including the current proposal, which could meet this additional demand and are therefore
not willing to offer formal support for the proposal at this stage.  The provision of
alternative GP facilities within Hillingdon Hospital or at the nearby Laurel Lodge have been
indicated in verbal discussions to be options which the PCT feel should be considered.
The potential to offer improved or expanded facilities within the existing premises at 198
Harlington Road also needs to be considered.

The applicant has provided information to the Local Planning Authority in order to
demonstrate that options not-involving the loss of a residential property are not viable
which are discussed in turn below.

The West London Medical Centre at 198 Harlington Road is located within a single storey
building to the rear of the residential bungalow at 198a Harlington Road and accessed
down the side of this building.  The premises does not benefit from any parking facilities.
It is considered that there would be extremely limited potential to expand the GP services
without the loss of the neighbouring residential property as any additional built form and
car parking provision would be severely constrained by the relationship with surrounding
policies.

Laurel Lodge is a clinic run by the Hillingdon PCT located in proximity to the application
site.  The site offers the podiatry(by appointment), speech and language (by
appointment), physiotherapy (by referral), physiotherapy out-patients (by referral), district
nurse message service, child health administration and school nurses.  However it is
primarily utilised for administrative and managerial functions.  The applicant argues that
these functions utilise all available space at the facility, but the verbal suggestion by the

Page 176



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PCT is that the site may provide an alternative.  That said, actual evidence before officers
indicates that the current level of use at Laurel Lodge is to capacity and in particular car
parking is often fully utilised.  An additional GP surgery at this location would exacerbate
parking issues.

Hillingdon Hospital is also located within a reasonable catchment area of the application
site.  The Hillingdon Hospital Site is large and it is considered likely that a GP practice of
the size proposed could be accommodated within the site without resulting in the loss of a
residential property.  Locating a GP surgery in such a location would however have a
number of implications.  In a positive sense there is potential that providing a GP in this
location would reduce the number of people who visit the hospitals for genberal medical
problems seeking to resolve these via the accident and emergency department simply
because it is closer than their local GP  However, the applicant has put forward that a key
part of providing a GP service is providing a comfortable environment for its patients and
that relocating to a busy hospital with existing parking problems would result in a
substandard arrangement for their patients.

In this case the considerations in respect of criterion (i) of Policy R15 are finely balanced,
there are a number of sites which the PCT have indicated may be able to accommodate a
facility but each of these would have potential implications on matters of material concern
or impact on the quality of service and comfort provided to patients.  It should be noted
that the PCT have not made a formal objection to the scheme. On balance, it is
considered that of the potential options, the application site is likely to provide the most
appropriate environment for future patients while minimising detrimental impacts. The
need for additional medical facilities within the locality is considered to outweigh the loss
of the residential unit in this instance and the proposal is considered to satisfy the
criterion.

CRITERION (II)
These issues are discussed elsewhere within the body of this report.  In summary the
proposal is considered to satisfy this criterion.

CRITERION (III)
The proposals compliance with parking standards is discussed elsewhere within the body
of this report.  While no residential unit, or associated garden, the proposal does retain
the boundary landscaping and a reasonably sized area of soft landscaping to the sites
frontage on Pield Heath Road.  In summary the proposal is considered to satisfy this
criterion.

CRITERION (IV)
Parking issues are discussed within the relevant section of this report.  In summary the
scheme is considered to satisfy this criterion.

CRITERION (V)
The requirement is that a residential unit is maintained within the building, unless it can be
demonstrated that such retention is impracticable.  In this instances there is limited
available space on site and the residential property is only single storey.  The provision of
an acceptable standard of residential unit on site (provided with sufficient internal
floorspace, external amenity space and car parking) would place significant constraints on
the scheme.  It not considered that such a unit could be provided alongside a GP surgery
of an appropriate size and standard to meet the needs of the locality.  In addition, having
regard to the identified need for additional medical facilities and the assessment of
criterion (ii) it is considered that in this instance the benefit of providing additional GP

Page 177



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

services would outweigh the loss of a single residential dwelling.

In conclusion, the policy argument with regard to the provision of a GP surgery on this site
is finely balanced but overall the application is considered to satisfy the requirements of
Policy R15 of the Saved Policies UDP and is acceptable in principle.

Residential density is not relevant to the consideration of this application.

The application site is not located within a Conservation Area, Area of Special Local
Character or in proximity to any Listed Buildings.  Nor is the proposal considered likely to
result in any harm to remains of archaeological importance.

The proposal does not conflict with airport or aircraft safeguarding criteria.

The nearest area of land within the designated Green Belt is the privately owned open
land to the south east, which benefits from visual separation arising from landscaping and
Pield Heath Road itself.

The proposed single storey extension would be further from this area than the existing
built form and be substantially screened by the retained landscaping.  The proposal would
not harm the visual amenity of the Green Belt and accordingly complies with Policy OL5 of
the Saved Policies UDP.

Policy BE13 of the Saved Policies requires that developments harmonise with the
character and appearance of the surrounding area. Policy BE15 indicates that proposals
for alterations and extensions to existing buildings will be permitted where they harmonise
with the scale, form, architectural composition and proportions of the original building.

The proposed extension would be relatively large, approximately doubling the footprint of
the existing building, but is designed such that the scale, form, architectural features and
proportions are considered to harmonise with those of the existing building.

The side portion of the extension (forming the L) would protrude forward of the existing
facade facing Pield Heath Road, however due to the corner location of the plot the
extension would not substantially breach the primary building line along Pield Heath Road.
 The single storey extension would due to its limited height and the significant level of
landscaping in the vicinity be visible from only limited viewpoints close to the site in Pield
Heath Road.  It is worth noting that the building line in the sites immediate vicinity is
varied.  It is therefore not considered that the forward projection of the extension would be
harmful to the character or appearance of the street scene.

Overall, it is considered that the proposed extension would be appropriate in appearance
harmonising with both the existing building and character of the area.  The proposal is
therefore considered to comply with Policies BE13 and BE15 of the Saved Policies UDP.

Issues relating to noise and potential disturbance are addressed within the Noise/Air
Quality section of this report.

The closest neighbouring occupier is at no. 1 Pield Heath Avenue a single storey
bungalow located to the north of the application site.

Page 178



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09

7.10

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Policies BE20 and BE21 of the Saved Policies UDP require that buildings are laid out so
that adequate daylight and sunlight can penetrate into and between them and resists
permission for extensions which would by reason of their siting, bulk or proximity , would
result in a significant loss of residential amenity.

The proposed extension would be a single storey structure with a pitched roof.  The
extension would be set 3.4m off the boundary with the neighbouring property with a
maximum eaves height of 2.7m increasing to a ridge height of 6m at a distance of 7.5m
from the boundary.

Having regard to the single storey height of the building and its set back from the shared
boundary it is not considered that the proposal would be detrimental to the amenity of the
occupiers of no. 1 Pield Heath Road by way of loss of light or dominance.

Policy BE24 of the UDP and guidance within HDAS - Residential Layouts seeks to protect
the privacy of neighbouring residential occupiers.

The proposal is for a single storey extension to the building and would not introduce any
first floor windows.  Accordingly, it is not considered that it would result in a loss of privacy
for the neighbouring residential occupiers.

In summary, it is considered that the proposed development would have a satisfactory
relationship with, and maintain an appropriate level of residential amenity to, neighbouring
residential properties.

The application seeks a change of use to a GP surgery and extensions only, accordingly
there will be no future residential occupiers.

The proposed surgery would be served by two parking areas as follows:

* Staff Parking - This would provide 3 parking spaces for use by staff and would be
accessed via the existing vehicular crossover from Pield Heath Avenue.
* Patient/Visitor Parking - This space would provide 6 parking spaces (including 1 disabled
space) and would be access via the existing vehicular access from Pield Heath Road.

The Council's Parking Standards do not provide recommendations for GP surgery's but
indicate that parking levels should be determined on an individual basis. 

The applicant has provided a variety of information in order to support the parking
proposals including operating hours of the existing surgery on Harlington Road and of the
proposed surgery, existing and proposed staff numbers and a two day modal split travel
study carried out at the existing surgery.  The modal split travel study was undertaken on
the days with the longest operating hours (9.5 hours).  Given the proximity of the two sites
the study is considered a good indicator of likely demand as the existing patients are
unlikely to change their existing travel patterns.

The modal split travel study indicates that the significant majority of patients (60%) travel
to the surgery by foot, a number of patients also travel by public transport or are dropped
off as a passenger.

The study indicates that over the course of a 9.5 hour day there would be an average of
17 visitors requiring parking spaces (those driving themselves and passengers where the

Page 179



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.11

7.12

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

driver would wait in the vicinity).  The proposed GP surgery would operate in a traditional
fashion with patients being provided with short appointments and alloted time slots
meaning that patient visits would be spread throughout the day.  The Council's Highways
Officer has considered the submission in detail and is of the opinion that the level of
patient parking proposed is adequate to meet the needs of the facility.  It is also noted that
the proposed surgery is not intended to accommodate an increased patient list than is
currently served by the existing GP surgery on Harlington Road, which is under 200m
from the application site and benefits from no on site parking.

The study also indicates that the proposed level of staff parking would be adequate to
meet the needs of the proposed surgery and that a number of staff have the option to
travel by methods other than car, which could be encouraged by a condition requiring a
staff travel plan. 

The Council's Highways Engineer has considered the submission in detail and is of the
view that the 6 patient/visitor and 3 staff parking spaces would accommodate the needs of
the GP surgery.

The Council's Highways Engineer has also considered the site layout and considers the
parking and access proposals to be acceptable in terms of vehicular and pedestrian
safety.

The proposal also demonstrates the provision of cycle parking in accordance with the
Council's adopted standards and details of the type of provision could be secured by
condition.

Overall, the proposal is considered to comply with Policies AM7, AM9, AM13, AM14 and
AM15 of the Saved Policies UDP.

Issues of design and accessibility are addressed elsewhere in this report.

It is not considered that the scheme would give rise to any significant concerns relating to
security.  No objection is raised subject to conditions to ensure appropriate security
measures and boundary treatments.

Policies R16 and AM13 of the Saved Policies UDP seek to ensure that developments of
this type incorporate inclusive design, as do Policies 4B.1 and 4B.5 of the London Plan.
Further detailed guidance is provided within the Accessible Hillingdon SPD.

Following receipt of initial comments from the Council's Access Officer the applicant has
submitted amended plans in order to increase the accessibility of the development.  The
layout as not proposed incorporates an acceptable number of disabled parking spaces,
direct access from the car park for disabled users, and acceptable corridor width and
acceptable widths for all internal doors.

The door to one of the consulting and the staff entrance would need to be hung or sited
slightly differently in order to attain a 300mm unobstructed space adjacent to the leading
edge, and despite being of an appropriate size the internal layout of the disabled W.C.
would require some amendments.  However, these alterations could be easily
accommodated within the built form proposed and could be appropriately secured by
condition.

Page 180



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Subject to an appropriate condition it is considered that the proposal would provide an
inclusive environment for future users in accordance with Policies R16 and AM13 of the
Saved Policies UDP and Policies 4B.1 and 4B.5 of the London Plan.

The application seeks planning permission for the extension of an existing building and its
change of use to a GP surgery.  Considerations of affordable or special needs housing
are therefore not relevant to the proposal.

Saved Policy BE38 of the Saved Policies UDP seeks the retention and utilisation of
topographical and landscape features of merit and the provision of new planting  and
landscaping wherever appropriate.

The existing property is set within well established gardens and is well screened by
ornamental shrubs and hedging along Pield Heath Road and wrapping around the corner
into Pield Heath Avenue.  An internal hedge is also present dividing the site into two.

The proposal will necessitate the loss of vegetation, including the internal hedge and at
least one tree.  It would also result in a reduction in the level of soft landscaping to the
north and west of the building in order to provide car parking. However, the proposal
would enable retention of the substantial soft landscaping along Pield Heath Road which
contributes positively to the character of the area and would also retain significant areas of
soft landscaping within the site.

The Council's Trees & Landscape Officer considers that the proposal would achieve an
appropriate landscape quality and comply with Policy BE38 of the Saved Policies UDP.

Subject to conditions to agree a final planting scheme and its ongoing maintenance for a
period of 5 years the proposal is considered to provide an appropriate landscape setting.

Policy 4A.22 of the London Plan requires that all new developments provide adequate
space for the storage of waste and recycling.

The submitted site plan demonstrates a location where 2 refuse and or recycling
receptacles could be provided. An internal area is also shown to accommodate clinical
waste.  Given that the proposal is for a commercial use it is ultimately for the applicant to
determine there required level of waste storage.  However, there is a significant amount of
space within the application site where additional capacity could be discreetly situated
should this be required.

Subject to a condition requiring approval of waste and recycling storage proposals it is
considered that the proposed development is capable of providing adequate facilities and
would comply with Policy 4A.22 of the London Plan.

Policies 4A.3 and 4A.7 of the London Plan require that all new developments incorporate
sustainable design and seek to minimise their carbon dioxide emissions, including through
the use of renewable technology.

The scale of the proposed development does not necessitate the provision of an energy
assessment at application stage and it is considered that an adequate level of energy
efficiency could be achieved within the development.

Page 181



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Subject to a condition ensuring this consideration is addressed during implementation of
the development the proposal is considered to comply with Policies 4A.3 and 4A.7 of the
London Plan.

The application is not located within an area identified as being at risk of flooding.
However, policy OE8 of the Saved Policies UDP and Policies 4A.3 and 4A.14 of the
London Plan require that where possible surface water run off be reduced through
sustainable drainage techniques.

The proposal would result in some increase in the level of hardstanding on site, but it is
considered any increase in surface water run off could be mitigated by way of sustainable
drainage solutions within the application site.

Implementation of sustainable drainage could be appropriately secured by way of a
planning condition and accordingly no objection is raised in relation to flooding or
drainage.

NOISE
Policy OE1 of the Saved Policies UDP seeks to resist developments which are, or are
likely to become detrimental to the amenity of surrounding properties or the area due to
environmental impacts, including traffic generation or noise.  Policy OE3 states that
buildings or uses which have the potential to cause noise annoyance will only be permitted
if the impact is mitigated within acceptable levels by engineering, lay-out or administrative
measures.

The original submission included a one-way system which ran along the boundary with
no.1 Pield Heath Avenue, this has been removed by way of amended plans and no longer
forms part of the proposal.

The proposed use as a GP surgery is likely to result in a higher level of activity  than the
existing use as  a residential property and yard, accordingly consideration of the proposals
impact in terms of noise requires consideration.

The Council's Environmental Protection Unit has considered the amended proposal in
detail and consider that any noise impact could be adequately mitigated by way of a suite
of physical and administrative measures including:
Installation of an acoustic fence on the boundary with 1 Pield Heath Avenue;
A condition restricting the hours of use of the GP surgery; and
A condition ensuring that any noise arising from plant falls below an appropriate level.

These measures can be secured by way of planning conditions and accordingly it is not
considered that noise arising from the development would result in an unacceptable
impact on the amenity of neighbouring residential occupiers.

AIR QUALITY
It is not considered that the level of additional vehicular movements generated by the
proposal would have a significant detrimental impact on local air quality.

All issues raised through the public consultation are addressed within the body of the
report.

Page 182



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.21

7.22

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

The scheme is not of a scale or type which would necessitate the provision of planning
obligations.

Not applicable.

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need to be aware
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The application seeks the change of use of the an existing residential property (Use Class
C1) to a GP surgery (Use Class D1) in addition to a single storey side/rear extension.  The
applicant has formally requested that should planning permission be granted the Use
Class of the site be limited specifically to a GP Surgery within Use Class D1 and the
application should be considered on this basis.

The policy matters in this case are finely balanced, however having regard to all relevant
material matters it is considered that the principle of the development is acceptable in
accordance with Policy R15 of the Saved Policies UDP.

The proposed extensions would maintain an acceptable relationship with the neighbouring

Page 183



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

residential property and subject to conditions it is not considered that the proposed use
would have an unacceptable impact on the amenity of the neighbouring residential
occupiers.

The extensions would also attain an appropriate appearance harmonising with the existing
building and street scene and the proposal would retain the important landscaping along
the site frontage.

Subject to conditions the proposal would achieve an appropriate level of inclusive and
sustainable design.

The Council's Highways Officer is satisfied that the level of parking proposed for the
medical centre is adequate and that the layout is acceptable in terms of pedestrian and
highways safety.

Overall, the application is considered acceptable and recommended for approval subject
to conditions.

11. Reference Documents

(a) The London Plan
(b) Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development 
(c) Planning Policy Statement: Planning and Climate Change - Supplement to Planning
Policy Statement 1 
(d) Planning Policy Statement 3: Housing 
(e) Planning Policy Guidance 13: Transport

Adrien Waite 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 184



E
R

R
R R

L

RR R R

E

RR

R

R

A

A

10
1

44

Works

68

42

74

33

31

PW

48

1

18

16

73

59

9
34

37

40.5m
26

El S
ub S

t

G
R

E
ATFIE

LD
S

 D
R

I

32

49

11

38 to 41

43 to 46

20

41.1m

11

Sta

20
2

1

10

29

13

24

25

CR

6
PIE

LD
 H

E
A

TH
 A

VE
N

U
E

2

2

Surgery

67

Issues
60

54

78

8

30
35

32

N
E

W
LY

N
 C

LO
S

E

47

3
5

GP

El

PIE
LD

19

10

19
8a

ROAD

6

77

53

GREATFIELDS DRIVE

El Sub Sta

Ward Bdy

9

21

1
2

10

Posts

16

8

Sub

El Sub Sta

G
R

E
A

T
F

IE
L

D
S

D
R

IV
E

36

10a

17

26 to 28

22

4

7

TCB

´

January
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283  2011

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

20 Pield Heath Road
Hillingdon

21661/APP/2010/1716

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Page 185



Page 186

This page is intentionally left blank



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

103 PARK ROAD UXBRIDGE

Change of use from Class A1 (Shops) to Class A5 (Hot food takeaway) and
installation of extraction flue to rear.

16/06/2010

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 32648/APP/2010/1408

Drawing Nos: Design & Access Statement
1:500 Block Plan
1:1250 Location Plan
776/bat/2

Date Plans Received: 16/06/2010
09/07/2010
28/10/2010

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

Planning permission is sought for the change of use from a shop to a take-away and the
installation of a flue to the rear of the premises. 

There are sufficient shops in the nearby Uxbridge Town centre that would cater for the
shopping needs of nearby residents. The proposed flue would not harm the residential
amenities of nearby residents and subject to a condition restricting the hours of
operation, the proposal would not result in an increase on on-street demand for parking.

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

T8

N13

N14

Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

Sound insulation of commercial/entertainment premises

Control of amplified music

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development shall not begin until a sound insulation scheme for the control of noise
transmission to the adjoining dwellings/premises has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be fully implemented before
the development is occupied/use commences and thereafter shall be retained and
maintained in good working order for so long as the building remains in use.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with
Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and Policy  4A.20 of the London Plan (February 2008).

The development shall not begin until a scheme for the control of amplified music

1

2

3

2. RECOMMENDATION

09/07/2010Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 14

Page 187



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

N12

HLC4

NONSC

Air extraction system - noise and odour

Hot Food Takeaways

Non Standard Condition

emanating from the site has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.  The scheme shall include such combination of physical,
administrative measures and noise limits and other measures as may be approved by the
Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be fully implemented before the development
is occupied/use commences and thereafter shall be retained and maintained in good
working order for so long as the building remains in use.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with
Policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and Policy  4A.20 of the London Plan (February 2008).

No development shall take place until details of the height, position, design and materials
of any chimney or extraction ventilation system, to extract kitchen fumes and odours, to
be provided in connection with the development have been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall not be carried out until the
vent/chimney has been installed in accordance with the approved details. Thereafter the
vent/chimney shall be permanently retained and maintained in good working order for so
long as the use continues. 

REASON
In order to safeguard the amenities of adjoining properties in accordance with Policy OE1
of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and
London Plan (February 2008) Policies 4B.1 and 4A.19.

The premises shall not be used for the preparation or sale of food between the hours of
1800 hours and 0800 hours.

REASON
To prevent and increase in on-street demand for parking to the detriment of highway and
pedestrian safety and to safeguard the residential amenity of the occupiers of adjoining
and nearby properties in accordance with Policies AM2, AM7 and OE3 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

No development shall take place until a scheme detailing the method of disposal, storage
and collection of litter and waste materials, generated by the business and/or discarded
by patrons, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority.  The details shall include a description of the facilities to be provided and the
methods for collection of litter within and in the vicinity of the premises.  The approved
scheme shall be implemented in full thereafter.

REASON
To ensure that adequate provision is made for the disposal of litter and waste, in the
interests of maintaining a satisfactory standard of amenity in the locality, in accordance
with policy S1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

4

5

6

Page 188



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

OM17

DIS2

HLC3

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

Litter Bin Required

Access to Buildings for People with Disabilities

Hours of Use

A notice shall be displayed permanently and prominently within the premises requesting
that customers dispose of their litter responsibly.

REASON
To ensure the satisfactory disposal of litter in the interests of maintaining a satisfactory
standard of amenity in the locality, in accordance with policy S1 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan.

The premises shall not be used for delivery and the loading or unloading of goods
outside the hours of 08:00 and 18:00 Monday to Friday and outside the hours of 08:00
and 13:00 hours on Saturdays. There shall be no deliveries or loading or unloading of
goods on Sundays

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding area, in accordance with policies OE1 and OE3
of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007)

The use hereby permitted shall not commence until the owner has made arrangements,
to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, for the
provision of a litter bins within and in the vicinity of the site.

REASON
To ensure that adequate provision is made for the disposal of litter likely to be generated
by the proposed development, in the interests of maintaining a satisfactory standard of
amenity in the locality, in accordance with policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Development shall not commence until details of access to building entrances (to include
ramped/level approaches, signposting, types and dimensions of door width and lobby
openings) to meet the needs of people with disabilities have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved facilities should be
provided prior to the occupation of the development and shall be permanently retained
thereafter.

REASON
To ensure that people with disabilities have adequate access to the development in
accordance with Policies AM13 and R16 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007) and London Plan Policies (February 2008) Policies
3A.13, 3A.17 and 4B.5.

No persons other than staff shall be permitted to be on the premises between the hours
of 18.00 hours and 08.00 hours.

7

8

9

10

11

Page 189



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC Non Standard Condition

REASON
To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining or nearby properties is not
adversely affected in accordance with Policy OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

The external portions of flue/pipe associated with the use hereby approved shall be
painted black, and shall be removed and the external fabric of the building made good
within 1 month upon the use of the premises hereby approved ceasing.

REASON
To ensure that the appearance of the external portions of the Flue do not unnecessarily
detract from the external appearance of the building and to safeguard the special
architectural and/or historic interest of the building in accordance with Policy BE8 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

12

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

BE5
BE13
BE15
BE19

OE1

S7
AM2

AM7
AM9

AM14
S6

New development within areas of special local character
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Change of use of shops in Parades
Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking
facilities
New development and car parking standards.
Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping

Page 190



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I1

I3

I6

I15

I18

Building to Approved Drawing

Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Property Rights/Rights of Light

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Storage and Collection of Refuse

3

4

5

6

7

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not
empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the
owner. If you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with: -

A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of 08.00 hours
and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays, Bank and
Public Holidays.

B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public health
nuisance.

D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02, Civic
Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying
out construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

The Council's Waste Service should be consulted about refuse storage and collection

areas

Page 191



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I25

I27

I19

Consent for the Display of Adverts and Illuminated Signs

Hot Food Takeaways/restaurants - late night opening

Sewerage Connections, Water Pollution etc.

8

9

10

11

12

arrangements. Details of proposals should be included on submitted plans.
For further information and advice, contact - the Waste Service Manager, Central Depot -
Block A, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon, Middlesex, UB8 3EU
(Tel. 01895 277505 / 506).

This permission does not authorise the display of advertisements or signs, separate
consent for which may be required under the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) Regulations 1992. [To display an advertisement without the necessary
consent is an offence that can lead to prosecution]. For further information and advice,
contact - Planning & Community Services, 3N/04, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge,
UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250574).

If the premises are to be open after midnight on any night (for which an application for
planning permission is required), registration with the Council is required pursuant to the
Night Cafes Act. For further advice and information contact:- Commercial Premises
Section, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250190).

You should contact Thames Water Utilities and the Council's Building Control Service
regarding any proposed connection to a public sewer or any other possible impact that
the development could have on local foul or surface water sewers, including building over
a public sewer. Contact: - The Waste Water Business Manager, Thames Water Utilities
plc, Kew Business Centre, Kew Bridge Road, Brentford, Middlesex, TW8 0EE.
Building Control Service - 3N/01, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (tel.
01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

You are advised that Thames Water recommends the installation of a properly
maintained fat trap on all careering establishment. They further recommend, in line with
best practice for the disposal of Fats, Oil and Grease, the collection of waste oil by a
contractor, particularly to recycle for the production of bio diesel. Failure to implement
these recommendations may result in this and other properties suffering blocked drains,
sewage flooding and pollution to local watercourses. You are advised to consult Thames
Water on 0208 507 4321.

With regards to condition 6, you are advised to include details demonstrating that the
proposed bin stores meet the following guidance:

Bin Size - 1,100 litre Eurobin; Height - 1,370mm; Depth - 990mm; Width -1,260mm

Additional bins should be considered for recycling.

You are also advises that:

(i) The material used for the floor / surface of where the bulk bin is stored should be 100
mm thick to withstand the weight of the bin. It should be made from a smooth surface
that can be washed down with water and disinfectant, and the run off from this should
flow to a proper drain.

Page 192



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the north west side of Park Road and comprises the
ground floor of a two storey terraced property with a two storey rear outrigger and a part
single storey rear extension. It also incorporates an archway, which provides vehicular
access to lock-up garages to the rear of a yard and pedestrian access to 103A Park
Road, which has its entrance door within the archway.

To the southwest lies 101 Park Road, a ground floor retail unit with residential
accommodation above, assessed from within the archway. To the northeast lies 105 Park
Road, a two storey end of terrace property. The street scene is residential in character
and appearance, comprising a mix of detached, semi-detached and terraced properties
and the application site lies within the North Uxbridge Area of Special Local Character, as
identified in the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September
2007).

Nos. 101, 103 & 105 Park Road are locally listed buildings.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application site is currently in use as a retail unit as a sandwich shop. Planning
permission is sought for the change of use from Class A1 (shop) to Class A5 (Hot Food
Take-Away).

No external alterations are proposed at the front. An external extract flue is proposed
above the roof of the part single storey rear extension attached to the rear wall of the
building. It would measures 0.2m by 0.2m and would project some 1m above the eaves of
the main roof.

It is also proposed to install bin stores along the rear section of the flank wall of the
premises.

(ii) The collectors should not have to cart a bulk bin more than 10 metres from the point
of storage to the collection vehicle (BS 5906 standard). This would only work if the
occupier of 101 Park Road allowed the joint access to be used for moving waste
containers from the proposed development.
(iii) The gradient of any path that the bulk bins have to be moved on should ideally be no
more than 1:20, with a width of at least 2 metres. The surface should be smooth. If the
path is raised above the area where the collection vehicle parks, then a dropped kerb is
needed to safely move the bin to level of the collection vehicle.
(iv) The client for the building work should ensure that the contractor complies with the
Duty of Care requirements, created by Section 33 and 34 of the Environmental
Protection Act.

32648/82/1493 103 Park Road Uxbridge

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Page 193



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Planning permission ref: 32648/APP/2008/1092 for the change of use from Class A2
(Financial and Professional Services) to Class A5 (Takeaways) and erection of an
external extractor flue to rear/side, was refused in July 2008 for the following reasons:

1. Given the expected level of vehicle movements associated with the proposed use, and
the lack of off street parking and limited access to available on street parking, it is likely
that the proposal would give rise to vehicular and parking conflict prejudicial to highway
and pedestrian safety. As such, the proposal would be detrimental to highway and
pedestrian safety, contrary to Policies AM7 (ii) and AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007) and the Council's Parking Standards
(Annex 1, adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan, Saved Policies, September
2007).

2. The proposal fails to provide sufficient off-street parking for the proposed use in
accordance with the Council's adopted Parking Standards (Annex 1, adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007). As such, the proposal would
give rise to additional on-street parking demand in the surrounding streets, which is
detrimental to highway and pedestrian safety contrary to policies AM7(ii) and AM14 of the
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007) and the
Council's Parking Standards (Annex 1, adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan,
Saved Policies, September 2007).

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE5

BE13

BE15

BE19

OE1

New development within areas of special local character

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local

Part 2 Policies:

32648/G/94/1070 103 Park Road Uxbridge

Change of use to Retail use 62sq.m.(P)

Change of use from Class A1 (Retail) to Class A2 (Financial and Professional Services) and
erection of a single storey side extension

27-01-1983

14-12-1994

Decision:

Decision:

Refused

Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 194



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

S7

AM2

AM7

AM9

AM14

S6

area

Change of use of shops in Parades

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking facilities

New development and car parking standards.

Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping areas

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

45 adjoining owner/occupiers and the North Uxbridge Residents' Association have been consulted.
16 letters of objection have been received making the following comments:

(i) The proposal would be out of character with the local character of the area;
(ii) Insufficient parking has been provided;
(iii) The proposal would crate additional litter
(iv) The proposal would increase parking and congestion on the road;
(v) There is no need for a take away in this location as there are other similar outlets within walking
distance of the site;
(vi) The proposal would lead to an increase in noise and disturbance; 
(vii) The proposal would harm the residential amenities of the occupiers of 58 and 62 Montague
Road through noise and smells;

North Uxbridge Residents' Association:

"North Uxbridge Residents Association wrote in May 08 opposing an application to use the above
premises for a take-away premises, principally on the grounds of the detrimental impact on nearby
residential properties, notably 105 which has a party wall with 103, but generally on other properties
in Montagu Road.  Other residents living nearby expressed concerns about this proposal for the
reasons of noise, smell and litter.  This was duly refused permission and the shop has been used
since then largely for the sale of cold snack food although microwave reheated foods and hot
drinks have been available.

It is believed that in this location, hot food take-away would rely mostly on passing trade, with
customers using cars, or Uxbridge College students.  The passing trade would probably create far
worse parking/traffic hazards than the current operation.  There would be an excessive pressure on
the limited parking outside the former Post Office/convenience store which offers a valid local
convenience to nearby residents.  Given the intended hours of trading of 8 am to 6 pm every day of
the week as stated on the application forms, the parking conflict would be at its greatest during the
working week.

A hot food establishment would generate excessive noise and fumes from both car born customers

Page 195



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

Thames Water:

Thames Water recommends the installation of a properly maintained fat trap on all catering
establishments. We further recommend, in line with best practice for the disposal of Fats, Oils and
Grease, the collection of waste oil by a contractor, particularly to recycle for the production of bio
diesel. Failure to implement these recommendations may result in this and other properties
suffering blocked drains, sewage flooding and pollution to local watercourses. Further information
on the above is available in a leaflet, 'Best Management Practices for Catering Establishments'
which can be requested by telephoning 020 8507 4321.

Waste Management:

a) I would recommend allowing space for 1 x 1,100 litre bulk bin to safely and hygienically contain
the waste arising from the food takeaway. Additional bins should be considered for recycling.
b) The material used for the floor / surface of where the bulk bin is stored should be 100 mm thick
to withstand the weight of the bin. It should be made from a smooth surface that can be washed
down with water and disinfectant, and the run off from this should flow to a proper drain.
c) The collectors should not have to cart a bulk bin more than 10 metres from the point of storage
to the collection vehicle (BS 5906 standard). This would only work if the occupier of 101 Park Road
allowed the joint access to be used for moving waste containers from the proposed development.
d) The gradient of any path that the bulk bins have to be moved on should ideally be no more than
1:20, with a width of at least 2 metres. The surface should be smooth. If the path is raised above
the area where the collection vehicle parks, then a dropped kerb is needed to safely move the bin
to level of the collection vehicle.
e) The client for the building work should ensure that the contractor complies with the Duty of Care
requirements, created by Section 33 and 34 of the Environmental Protection Act.

Environmental Protection Unit:

The Environmental Protection Unit recommend conditions are attached to control odour and noise
from the air extraction flue. We should ensure adequate litter bins are provided.

With regards to the opening hours, being 8am - 6pm Monday - Sunday, this does not seem
unreasonable. It is noted from the plans that sound insulation via the ceiling is being provided,
which would be required.

There is no history of complaints on the current premises.

Highways:

The Council's cycle parking standards stipulate a minimum requirement of 3 cycle parking spaces
for the proposed A5 use. The applicant has not proposed any cycle parking, however there
appears to be adequate space to the rear for cycle parking. This should therefore be covered

and from the cooking facilities and smell extraction.  The visual intrusion of the extract trunking
would be an inevitable visual blight and fumes and smells would pervade the amenity of nearby
residential properties.

NURA does not believe a take-away facility is needed in this location, there are plenty in the town
already.  Accordingly NURA request that this Application be refused."

MOD Safeguarding: No safeguarding objections.

Page 196



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

The application site falls within the definition of a 'corner shop' as set out in Table 8.1,
which defines such shops as:

'Isolated shops or pairs (not necessarily at street corners) which primarily provide
essential local shop services for people living or working within walking distance of up to
800m.'

The proposal involves the change of use of a local shop which has the potential to provide
top-up shopping trips for local residents. Paragraph 8.12 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007) advises that "There is considerable
pressure for service uses in these areas and the continued loss of shops could seriously
limit residents' accessibility to local shops. A walking distance to local shops of 800m, i.e.
about a 10 minute walk, is generally considered acceptable. Any alternative shops
available to residents within 800m will therefore be taken into account by the Local
Planning Authority in considering applications for a change from retail use. It will take
particular account of the availability of the following shop uses which are important at the
local level: chemist, Post Office counter, grocer, baker, butcher, greengrocer, newsagent."

The application site is within 200m of Uxbridge Town Centre, a major, strategic town
centre. As such, the loss of the retail unit would not harm shopping provision for local
residential, in accordance with policy S7 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

This is not applicable to this application.

This is not applicable to this application.

This is not applicable to this application.

This is not applicable to this application.

No external alterations are proposed at front. The proposed flue would be located to the
rear of the application property and therefore, would not be visible from the street scene.

through a suitable planning condition. 

One off-street car parking space is proposed, which would be suitable for staff and small deliveries.
The site is located close to public transport links. 

There is restricted parking available in the lay-by fronting the site. Given the takeaway is not
proposed to be opened after 6pm the parking restrictions within the lay-by and in the surrounding
areas are self-enforcing. 

Consequently, no objection is raised on the highways aspect of the proposals subject to the car
parking and cycle parking being covered through suitable planning conditions.

Heritage Conservation Officer
Acceptable, subject to the imposition of an condition on any consent requiring the flue to be painted
a dark colour and removed when the use ceases.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 197



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

The proposed flue is considered to relate satisfactorily with the appearance of the property
and is not considered to harm the character and appearance of the surrounding area. 

As such, the proposal would not harm the character and visual amenities of the North
Uxbridge Area of Special Local Character, in accordance with policies BE5, BE13 and
BE19 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September
2007).

The surrounding area is residential in character and appearance. There are residential
properties above and adjacent to the application property. The proposed flue would be
located to the rear and would be of a modest size. Due to its siting, projecting above the
eaves of the roof and expelling cooking fumes away from the residential properties, and
subject to a planning condition requiring sufficient details relating to the external flue is
submitted before prior occupation to protect the residential amenities of nearby residents
from odour nuisance and noise vibration, it is considered that the proposed flue is unlikely
to harm the living condition of nearby residential properties.

Further conditions relating to hours of operation, the prevention of a delivery service and
the display of an external bin to protect against late night noise and disturbance and litter
are also recommended to protect the residential amenities of adjoining occupiers, should
planning permission be granted. The proposal is considered to comply with Policies S6 (iii)
and OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

This is not applicable to this application.

Park Road is a classified B Road, and the site lies close to traffic lights. Parking is
normally free flowing and relatively fast in the vicinity of the site. The proposed use would
generate additional traffic over and above the existing use. However, on street parking in
the area is controlled during daytime hours, and a number of private crossovers exist in
the immediate vicinity of the site. As the applicant has stated on the application form that
the premises will only operate between 0800 and 1800 hours, the existing parking
restrictions within the layby and in surrounding streets are self-enforcing. 

The Council's Parking Standards (Annex 1, adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan,
Saved Policies September 2007) requires 1 space per 50m2 of floorspace. The proposal
incorporates 1 parking space to the rear of the site an this would be suitable for staff and
deliveries. As such, the proposal would not give rise to vehicular and parking conflict or
result in additional on-street demand for car parking, which would be detrimental to
highway and pedestrian safety, in accordance with Policies AM2, AM7 (ii), AM9 and AM14
of the of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September
2007) and the Council's Parking Standards (Annex 1, adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan, Saved Policies September 2007). The proposal would overcome the
reasons for refusal of the previous scheme. 

A condition is recommended requiring cycle parking provision should planning permission
be granted.

The applicant has confirmed that there is a right of way over the driveway access for
vehicles. This is shown on the submitted amended plans. As such, the parking space and
access to the rear would be availabe for sevicing vehicles through use the existing access
for waste collection.

Page 198



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

With regards to disabled access, the applicant has confirmed that the front entrance will
be compliant with disabled access standards. The ground floor WC would be for staff
only. These are identified on the submitted amended plans.

This is not applicable to this application.

This is not applicable to this application.

The application proposes two waste storage bays along the rear section of the flank wall
facing the access way and adjacent to the proposed parking space.  A standard Council
refuse vehicle would not be able to access within 10m of the refuse stores due to the
limited clearance.  However, the Council's Waste Strategy Team has confirmed that as
the proposed use would be commercial the occupier would be able to arrange for private
refuse collection.  A private refuse collection would have a wider range of collection
options, including the option of using smaller collection vehciles which could access the
alley. It is also noted that the existing A1 unit sells cold food and and does not appear to
suffer difficulties with regard to refuse storage.

The proposal is therefore considered acceptable in principle however a condition is
recommended requiring details to be submitted to ensure that bin stores are of an
appropriate appearance and design.

This is not applicable to this application.

This is not applicable to this application.

As stated at paragraph 07.8, the proposed flue would be located to the rear and would be
of a modest size. Due to its siting, projecting above the eaves of the roof, it is considered
to be sufficiently located as to expel cooking fumes away from the residential properties.
The Environmental Health Officer raises no objections to the proposed location of the flue
and recommends conditions to control odour and noise. 

Subject to these conditions, it is considered that the proposal would not harm the
residential amenities of nearby residential by reason of noise and odour.

With regards to third party comments, the fact that similar uses may be nearby is not a
material planning condition. The remaining points are addressed in the report.

This is not applicable to this application.

This is not applicable to this application.

There are no other relevant issues.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to

Page 199



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need to be aware
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

This is not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

For the reasons outlined above, and that the development complies with the
aforementioned policies of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved
Policies September 2007), this application is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007)

Sonia Bowen 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 200



R

R

E

E

E

R R

R

E

R

R

R

E

R

R

R

E

_

__ _

_

_

_ _

_ _ _

_

_ _

_
_

_
A

41
41

a

52.7m

52

93

SL

Red Leys

1

2

2a
Stone

Sand Drag

32

El Sub Sta

54.9m

El Sub Sta

14

52.7m

52.4m

N
ut

ki
n 

W
al

k
6

2a
2b

3b

SL

14

39a

ue P
assage

43
2

The Old Coach House

1

63

62

76

1

10
7

PH

Stone

TCB

11

GRO
VE

G
RO

VE RO
AD

73

Passage

M
ontague

55
.5

m

8

GROVE ROAD

81

6

E

11
9

PA
R

K
R

O
A

D

Stone

40

W
A

Y

1

51

7

79

1a

53.6m

Stone

SL

4

24

Sloping masonry
SL

12

59

6

67

3a

LB

Stone

16

1b

MONTAGUE ROAD

2b

8

´

December
2010

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283  2010

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

103 Park Road
Uxbridge

32648/APP/2010/1408

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Page 201



Page 202

This page is intentionally left blank



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

GRASS VERGE REAR OF 109 AND 111 SWEETCROFT LANE HERCIES
ROAD (CLOSE TO BUS STOP) HILLINGDON 

Installation of 12.5m high imitation telegraph pole mobile phone mast and
ancillary equipment cabinet (Consultation under Schedule 2, Part 24 of the
Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995).

14/12/2010

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 67517/APP/2010/2930

Drawing Nos: 100
200
300 REV A
400 REV A
Antenna/Equipment Schedule (500 REV A)
General background Information on Radio Network Development for
Planning Applications
Site Specific Supplementary Information
Cornerstone: Supporting Technical Information for Vodafone
Agent's Letter Accompanying Application - 14/12/2010
Tyco Electronics Letter to RAF Northolt - 14/12/2010
Vodafone Letter to Chief Planning Officer - 14/12/2010
Tyco Electronics Letter to Highways Department - 14/12/2010

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

It is proposed to erect a telecommunications mast on the grass verge fronting Hercies
Road, to the rear of 109 and 111 Sweetcroft Lane. 

The proposed telecommunications mast by virtue of its size and location would detract
from the street scene, because it would be a readily apparent, incongruous element. The
mast would not harmonise with the existing street scene and as such is contrary to
Policies BE13, BE37 and OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Polices
(September 2007).

REFUSAL   for the following reasons:

NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development would result in an incongruous and visually obtrusive form of
development which would be out of keeping with the visual character of the surrounding
street scene.  Furthermore, other potential solutions have not been fully investigated.
The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies pt.1.8, pt1.11, BE13, BE37 and OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

1

INFORMATIVES

2. RECOMMENDATION

14/12/2010Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 15

Page 203



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

3.1 Site and Locality

The site comprises the grass verge fronting Hercies Road, to the rear of 109 and 111
Sweetcroft Lane. The proposed installation would be situated behind an existing bus
shelter and near to the Hercies Road/Sweetcroft Lane intersection. A row of trees and
vegetation, measuring approximately between 8m and 16m high, are located on the grass
verge and provide a boundary between the application sie and the back gardens of
Sweetcroft Lane. Extensive areas of open space, including playing fields, are located to
the north west and fall within the Green Belt. The site falls within the developed area, as
shown in the Unitary Development Plan Proposals Map.

There is no planning history on the site. 

3.2 Proposed Scheme

It is proposed to install a 12.5m high replica telegraph pole with 3 integral antennas and
an ancillary equipment cabinet. The equipment cabinet would measure 1.58m by 0.38m
by 0.4m high and would be located adjacent to the mast. The mast would be coloured
brown and the cabinet would be coloured green. The cabinet would set back from 0.35m
from the edge of the bus shelter and the mid-point of the mast would be set back 0.5m
from the edge of the bus shelter.

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First
Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

BE13
BE37
OE1

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Telecommunications developments - siting and design
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area

Page 204



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE13

BE37

OE1

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Telecommunications developments - siting and design

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Part 2 Policies:

Not applicable25th January 2011

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

7.01

7.02

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

The proposed installation does not exceed the limits set out in Part 24 of Schedule 2 of
the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) Order 1995 (as
amended).  It would not be located in an environmentally sensitive area, such as a
conservation area, where more restrictive criteria are applicable.  Accordingly, the
proposal constitutes permitted development.

In accordance with Part 24 of the Town and Country planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (as amended) Vodafone is required to apply to the Local
Planning Authority for a determination as to whether prior approval of the details of siting
and design is required and, if so, for the Local Planning Authority to either approve or
refuse those details.

Internal Consultees

Highways
No objection. It should also be noted that no Highways objections were raised at pre-application
stage.

External Consultees

Consultation letters were sent to 85 local owner/occupiers, Hercies Road resident Association and
the North Uxbridge Resident Association and a site notice was posted.  To date three letters of
objection have been received.  The following concerns are raised:

i) Health risks.
ii) Visual impact.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 205



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Not applicable to this type of development.

The site is located approximately 80m south of the green belt. Between the site and the
green belt is Sweetcroft Lane with relatively large rear gardens. 

The site is not in a Conservation Area or Area of Special Character. 

The proposed mast will have no impact on airport safeguarding.

The proposed mast is not located within and will not be visible from the Green Belt.

The proposed mast has been designed to have the appearance of a telegraph pole,
however it is to be approximately 50cm in diameter and 12.5m in height. The closest
telegraph pole is set further back on the grass verge, closer to the trees and bushes that
line the back of the properties on Sweetcroft Lane and is much narrower and only
approximately 8m in height. The most prominent street furniture forming the setting, albeit
that these are on the opposite side of the road, of the mast are lamposts. These are
relatively thin metal columns approximately 9m in height. 

The mast would be located in a highly prominent position that would be visible from long
views down Hercies Road as well as Sweetcroft Lane. It is therefore considered that the
proposal would detract from the street scene, because it would be a readily apparent,
incongruous element. The mast would not harmonise with the existing street scene and is
as such contrary to Policy BE13, BE37 and OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Polices (September 2007). 

Residents express concerns about the possible health risks from the development. PPG8
indicates that the planning system is not the place for determining health safeguards. It
goes on to state that if a proposed mobile phone base station meets the ICNIRP
guidelines, it should not be necessary to consider further the health aspects of the
development and concerns about them. The applicant has confirmed that the proposed
equipment would comply with ICNIRP guidelines. There is nothing to indicate that there is
a risk to health, nor is there evidence to outweigh advice in PPG8 on health
considerations. As such it is considered that the health fears of residents do not weigh
significantly against the development. As such a reason for refusal on health grounds
cannot be substantiated. 

Not applicable to this type of application. 

Not applicable to this type of application.

Not applicable.

Page 206



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

Not applicable to this type of application. 

Not applicable to this type of application. 

The proposed mast is to be located on a road side grass verge, away from trees and as
such would have no impact on surrounding trees. 

Not applicable to this type of application.

Not applicable to this type of application.

Not applicable to this type of application.

Not applicable to this type of application.

Concerns raised by residents have been addressed within the report. 

None.

None.

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need to be aware
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol

Page 207



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The proposed telecommunications mast would detract from the street scene, because it
would be a readily apparent, incongruous element. The mast would not harmonise with
the existing street scene and as such is contrary to Policy BE13, BE37 and OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Polices (September 2007).

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).
PPG 8

Matt Kolaszewski 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 208



E

R

E

E

H
E

R
C

IE
S

R
O

A
D

C
LO

S

3

SW
EETCROFT

137

TCB

135a

131

38.1m

C
R

O
FT

12
8

84a

91

1

BLOSSO

11

107
3

86

14
2

36.6m

SW
EETCROFT

LANE

2

135

131

ERCIES ROAD

CHAPTER
CLOSE

84

11
6

80

121

1

14

111

118

97

82

LANE

141

10
5

36.6m

35

121

´

January
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2011

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Grass verge rear of 109 and 111
Sweetcroft Lane, Hercies Road
(close to bus stop), Hillingdon

67517/APP/2010/2930

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

THE SITE

Page 209



Page 210

This page is intentionally left blank



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

1 DERBY ROAD UXBRIDGE MIDDLESEX 

Alterations and extension to existing roof to create habitable roofspace to
include 2 gable end windows and 4 side rooflights.

24/11/2010

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 60777/APP/2010/2713

Drawing Nos: H.08/01 As existing
LOCATION PLAN
BLOCK PLAN
H.08/02 PROPOSED ALTERATIONS
H.08/03 PROPOSED ALTERATIONS

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1 Derby Road is a detached bungalow located on the southern side of Derby Road within
a residential area of Uxbridge. Along the western side boundary of the application site
runs a rear access lane serving the parade of retail properties fronting Cowley Road, with
residential properties to the west and south. Derby Road rises from east to west.

The bungalow itself has a fully hipped red tiled roof approximately 5.6m high with a 1.4
lower roof projecting out 4.4m from the eastern half of the rear elevation. A flat roof
extension has been constructed across the remaining rear elevation that measures 7m
deep (2.6m further than the pitched roof element) and 3.1m high. A single storey lean-to
store is located along the majority of the western boundary with no. 3 Derby Road that
measures 2.4m at its maximum height.

There is no car parking provision provided to the front of the application site although an
access has been created using shuttered concrete from the access road that runs along
the side boundary.

The application site forms part of a row of 5 bungalows within the street that alternate in
design with no's 5 and 9 repeating the design of no. 1 and no's 3 and 7 with differing
frontages and no rear elements.

Planning permission is sought to alter and extend the existing roof to form two bedrooms

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1 Site and Locality

1.2 Proposed Scheme

24/11/2010Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 16

Page 211



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

None.

and a shower room within the roof space. This is proposed by raising the height of the
main roof by approximately 0.8m to approximately 6.4m, converting the hip to a gable and
extending at this height for 4.4m (the depth of the existing pitched roof element) with the
2.6m deep single storey extension remaining on the western half of the rear elevation.

A window is proposed in each gable with 3 no. roof lights within the eastern elevation,
facing no. 3 Derby Road, to serve the bedrooms and the central shower room and 1 no.
roof light within the west elevation to serve the stairwell.

The proposed materials are plain farmhouse red tiles with rendered walls to match
existing.

Not applicable 

Advertisement and Site Notice2.

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

19 neighbouring properties have been consulted and one letter of representation has
been received from the neighbouring property (no. 3).  The comments are as follows:

'We live at no. 3 Derby Road and we are very concerned that the height of the roof of the
proposed alterations will impose on the natural light and sunlight to the rear of our
property. You will see from the plans that the existing rear section of the roof to the east
elevation is considerably lower than the actual roof at no.1.

You will also see from the street plan of Derby Road that No. 3 is a different shaped
bungalow to No.1. No. 3 does not have the lower roof and finishes in line with the main
roof of no. 1.

We are also concerned over the proposed velux window that will be placed overlooking
our garden at the rear of the east elevation. It is our view that by just having a window
placed in this way we will feel overlooked regardless of whether someone can actually see
out of it. We do not understand why this window cannot be re-sited in the west elevation
which currently only has one planned velux roof window. This would then mean two on
each side.

We do hope that you will take our comments into consideration as we feel that we should
be entitled to both direct light and privacy in a property where we have enjoyed both for
over 8 years since moving to No.3 in 2002.'

A ward Councillor has requested that this application be determined by Committee. 

1.3 Relevant Planning History
Comment on Planning History

3. Comments on Public Consultations

Page 212



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE23

BE24

HDAS

LPP 4A.3

**

AM14

BE22

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

'Residential Extensions'

London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.

Pt 1.10 To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the
amenity and the character of the area 
Pt 1.16 To seek to ensure enough of new residential units are designed to
wheelchair and mobility standards
Pt 1.17 To seek to ensure the highest acceptable number of new
dwellings are provided in the form of affordable housing
Pt 1.26 To encourage economic and urban regeneration in the
Hayes/West Drayton Corridor, designated Industrial and Business Areas
(IBA's) and other appropriate locations
Pt 1.39 To seek where appropriate planning obligations to achieve
benefits to the community related to the scale and type of development
proposed.

New development and car parking standards.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Part 2 Policies:

4.

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES 

The main considerations are visual impact, the affect on the amenities currently enjoyed
by neighbouring occupiers, adequacy of retained amenity space and car parking
considerations.

Visual Amenity

Policy BE13 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007) requires that the layout and
appearance must harmonise with the existing street scene, policy BE15 goes on to state
that extensions must be in keeping with the scale, form and architectural composition of
the original building. Policy BE19 seeks to ensure that new development within residential
areas complements or improves the amenity or character of the surrounding area. The
Councils adopted Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) HDAS: Residential
Extensions provides guidance on the design of different forms of householder
development.

Page 213



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Section 7 of the SPD refers specifically to loft conversions and roof alterations and states
that any assessment will have due regard for the impact of the extension upon the street
scene and character of the property.

Although there are different styles of dwellings along Derby Road, this section of Derby
Road consists of a row of attractive bungalows, none of which have been altered in
respect of their view from the street and none have altered their roofs. It is considered that
the proposed enlargement of the roof by increasing its main height by 0.9m, rear element
roof by 2.3m and changing the hip to gable would result in eaves to ridge height that
would not appear proportionate to the overall scale of the bungalow. Additionally, the
visual impact of the added height and bulk of the gable roof would be considered
detrimental within the street scene and the appearance of the surrounding area.

The proposed alteration and extension to the existing roof by reason of its height, and
alteration from hip to gable would result in a visually incongruous and overdominant form
of development that fails to harmonise with the established character of the street scene
and surrounding North Uxbridge Area of Special Local Character. As such, the proposal is
contrary to policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
(Saved Policies September 2007) and the guidance contained within the HDAS
Supplementary Planning Document, Residential Extensions (December 2008).

Residential Amenity

Policy BE20 of the UDP (saved policies 2007) requires adequate daylight and sunlight to
penetrate into and between buildings to safeguard amenities. Policies BE 21 and BE22
require development to be appropriate siting, bulk, proximity and that first floor extensions
are set back a minimum 1m from the boundary.

Section 6.0 of the HDAS SPD sets out guidance in respect of first floor rear extensions
with the general principles that such extensions will only be allowed where there is no
significant over-dominance, overshadowing, loss of outlook and daylight. At first floor
level, extensions should not extend beyond a 45 degree line of sight taken from the
nearest first floor window of any room of a neighbouring property. Full width extensions at
first floor will only be considered on detached properties subject to meeting the 45 degree
rule. Paragraph 6.4 of the HDAS SPD advises that a maximum depth of 4m for rear
extensions to detached houses should be applied.

The proposed raising of the roof by 0.9m and extension at the rear would result in
approximately an additional 8m depth of roof 2.3m higher than that existing. Although set
2m from the boundary with no. 3 Derby Road, as a bungalow with no rear extensions the
proposed roof height would just bisect a 45 degree line taken from the closest opening to
the boundary and it is considered that this in combination with the increased bulk would
result in an over-dominant feature that would reduce the light and outlook received to the
rear of no. 3 Derby Road.

The proposed roof extension by reason of its height and depth would be overly dominant
and visually obtrusive form of development that would constitute an un-neighbourly form
of development, resulting in a material loss of daylight and outlook to no. 3 Derby Road,
contrary to policies BE20 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved
Policies September 2007) and the HDAS Supplementary Planning Document: Residential
Extensions (December 2008).

Page 214



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

It is also necessary to consider the impact upon no's 98, 100 and 102 Cowley Road that
have rear elevations facing the western side of the application site. In order to protect
outlook a minimum separation distance between the window to a habitable room and a
facing blank wall to a two-storey dwelling should be within the range of 12m to 15m. In this
instance, the proposal is extending and raising the roof by 0.9m rather than a standard
two storey dwelling and at a closest distance of 13m, it is considered that the proposed
extension would not overdominate or have an overbearing impact upon the residents of
no's 98, 100 and 102 Cowley Road.

As such, whilst the proposal would not result in a significant effect upon the rear of the
properties fronting Cowley Road, it is considered that the proposal would result in a
significant loss of amenity currently enjoyed by the residents of adjacent property (no. 3
Derby Road) contrary to policies BE20, BE21 and BE22 of the UDP (saved policies 2007).

Policy BE24 of the UDP (saved policies 2007) seeks to protect privacy. The southernmost
roof light in the western elevation to serve a bedroom is proposed to be at high level, 1.8m
above floor level. The roof light within the eastern elevation would also be high level and
serve the stairwell whilst the central roof light would serve a bathroom and the
northernmost roof light within the western elevation would be alongside the roof of no. 3.
Provided the southernmost roof light and central bathroom roof light were obscure glazed
and non-opening, it is considered that these roof lights would be acceptable. This could be
ensured via condition should the proposal be approved. 

In terms of impact upon privacy to the front and rear of the property, the house faces a
gap within the properties on the opposite side of the road and a distance of some 29m
separates the rear elevation of no. 1 Derby Road with the rear of no. 2 Walford Road, also
a bungalow. This relationship and the adequate distances involved, is considered to meet
the requirements of policy BE24 of the UDP (saved policies 2007).

It is considered that all the proposed habitable rooms, and those altered by the
development will maintain an adequate outlook and source of natural light, therefore
complying with Policy 4A.3 of the London Plan (2008).

Over 100m2 of private amenity space would be retained in compliance with paragraph
5.13 of the HDAS: Residential Extensions and policy BE23 of the saved UDP (Saved
Policies September 2007). 

The application proposal will provide an additional two bedrooms within the property,
creating a four bedroom dwelling and it has not been demonstrated that sufficient off
street parking for 2 cars can be provided. As such, the development is considered to
result in substandard parking provision to the Councils approved car parking standards,
leading to possible on-street parking to the detriment of public and highway safety and
contrary to AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies
September 2007).

Conclusion

The proposed roof extension and alterations will significantly enlarge the roof of the house
and this is considered to be out of proportion with the existing bungalow and this
enlargement would fail to harmonise with the surrounding area. As a result of the
proposed height and depth of the alterations to the roof, it is also considered that the
proposal would appear over-dominant and un-neighbourly to the residents of no. 3 Derby

Page 215



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

REFUSAL   for the following reasons:

NON2

NON2

NON2

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed alteration and extension to the existing roof by reason of its height, and
alteration from hip to gable would result in a visually incongruous and over dominant form
of development that fails to harmonise with the established character of the street scene.
As such, the proposal is contrary to policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007) and the guidance contained
within the HDAS Supplementary Planning Document, Residential Extensions (December
2008).

The proposed roof extension by reason of its height and depth would be overly dominant
and visually obtrusive form of development that would constitute an un-neighbourly form
of development, resulting in a material loss of daylight and outlook to no. 3 Derby Road,
contrary to policies BE20 and BE21 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved
Policies September 2007) and the HDAS Supplementary Planning Document:
Residential Extensions (December 2008).

The proposal has not demonstrated that sufficient off street parking would be provided,
therefore the development is considered to result in substandard parking provision to the
Councils approved car parking standards, leading to possible on-street parking to the
detriment of public and highway safety and contrary to AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

1

2

3

INFORMATIVES

RECOMMENDATION6.

Road. In addition, the application has failed to demonstrate that adequate off street
parking cane be provided for the property and it is therefore recommended that the
proposal be refused. 

Standard Informatives 

1           The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to 
             all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
             policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
             unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
             Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
             life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
             (prohibition of discrimination).

Page 216



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Ceri Porter 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to
the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) set out below, and to all relevant material
considerations, including Supplementary Planning Guidance:
 Policy No.

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE23

BE24

HDAS

LPP 4A.3

**

AM14

BE22

New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.

'Residential Extensions'

London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.

Pt 1.10 To seek to ensure that development does not adversely
affect the amenity and the character of the area 
Pt 1.16 To seek to ensure enough of new residential units are
designed to wheelchair and mobility standards
Pt 1.17 To seek to ensure the highest acceptable number of
new dwellings are provided in the form of affordable housing
Pt 1.26 To encourage economic and urban regeneration in the
Hayes/West Drayton Corridor, designated Industrial and
Business Areas (IBA's) and other appropriate locations
Pt 1.39 To seek where appropriate planning obligations to
achieve benefits to the community related to the scale and type
of development proposed.

New development and car parking standards.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

2

Page 217



R

L

L

L

L

E

R

E

L

L

L

L

L

R

R

L

L

L

A

A

G

81
76

Posts

52

75a

F
ra

y'
s 

R
iv

er

134

Shelter

1
120

2

Whitehall Junior School

WALFORD ROAD

DERBY ROAD

8a

Rabbs Mill House

30

S
TA

N
L

E
Y

 C
L

O
S

E

70

h
el

te
r

122

92

PW

14

71

Works

1

2

10

18

1

69

Post

31.7m

3

11

11a

61

8

14

14

El Sub Sta

68

Y
 R

O
A

D

31.4m

9

Infant School

19

20

75
54 Shelter

TCB

98

Whitehall

15

35

Rabbs Mill House

48

11
0

94

23

2

´

January
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283  2011

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

1 Derby Road
Uxbridge

60777/APP/2010/2713

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Page 218



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

TESCO STORES LTD  GLENCOE ROAD HAYES 

Rear extension to bulk storage area.

27/10/2010

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 36999/APP/2010/2512

Drawing Nos: 3470 PL (20) 200 - Proposed Ground Floor and Mezzanine Plan
Design and Access Statement
3470 PL (90) 100 - Existing Site Plan
3470 PL (20) 102 - Existing Roof Plan
3470 PL (20) 204 - Proposed Elevations
3470 PL (20) 100 - Existing Ground Floor and Mezzanine Plan
3470 PL (20) 102 - Proposed Roof Plan
3470 PL (90) 200 - Proposed Site Plan
3470 PL (20) 104 - Existing Elevations
3470 PL (90) 001 - Location Plan
3470 PL (20) 200 - Proposed Floor Plans Rev B
3470 PL (20) 201- Proposed Ground Floor and Mezzanine Plan - coloured
layout

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a rear extension to the existing bulk
storage facility of the existing superstore. Due to its proximity, it would be difficult to see
from the wider street scene, although the development would be visible from within the
car park and first floor windows of adjacent properties. 

The site is located within the Willow Tree Lane Local Centre as identified in the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007). The proposed extension is
considered to be in-keeping with the architectural style of this building and result in a well
integrated addition to the site, thereby not resulting in visual harm.

Whilst it is noted, initially there may be an increase in deliveries to the site (while the new
bulk storage area is stocked), as the retail floor area is not to be increased, it is
considered the deliveries will resume back to the existing levels. 19 parking spaces would
be lost to the proposal, however, these would be to the rear of the site mainly used by
staff and the loss of these spaces is not considered to result in a material decrease in on-
site parking provision, with adequate provision remaining, therefore no objection would
be raised on existing highway safety or parking grounds. 

With regard to noise and disturbance, after the initial period of additional deliveries to the
site, it is expected these would return to the existing site circumstances. It has been
confirmed that the operations relating to the deliveries/unloading of stock will remain as
existing, with deliveries continuing to use the existing internal service corridor at the back
of the store. As such, the application is not considered to have a detrimental impact on
the amenities of neighbouring properties.

The application is recommended for APPROVAL subject to appropriate conditions.

27/10/2010Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 17

Page 219



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

T8

OM1

M2

NONSC

HLC3

Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

Development in accordance with Approved Plans

External surfaces to match existing building

Retail sales floor area

Mean of escape doors

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building.

REASON
To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed
development does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing
building in accordance with Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

The retail sales floor area as shown on drawing 3470 PL (20) 201 and entitled `Proposed
Ground Floor and Mezzanine Plan - coloured layout' received by the Local Planning
Authority on the 5th January 2011, shall not be increased without further written consent
of the Local Planning Authority. 

REASON
To safeguard the amenities of the neighbourhood and the neighbouring properties in
compliance with polices BE19, OE1, OE3 and AM7 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Policy (Saved Policies September 2007).

The proposed `means of escape doors' (one double set and one single door) provided
for the new bulk storage area hereby approved shall only be used in the event of an
emergency and as such shall  be alarmed and fitted with a break glass bolt or other
device for as long as the development remains in existence.  Full details of these doors
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the
commencement of development.

REASON
To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining or nearby properties is not

1

2

3

4

5

2. RECOMMENDATION

Page 220



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Goods moved via the internal route

Hours of operation

Construction environmental management plan

Landfill gas protection

adversely affected in accordance with Policy OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

The goods delivered to the store and to be stored within the new bulk storage area
hereby approved shall only be moved to this area via the internal route shown on drawing
3470 PL (20) 201 and 3470 PL (20) 200 Rev B as indicated by arrow, received by the
Local Planning Authority on the 5th January 2011, shall not be moved externally without
further written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To safeguard the amenities of the neighbourhood and the neighbouring properties in
compliance with polices BE19, OE1, OE3 and AM7 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Policy (Saved Policies September 2007).

The new bulk store extension area hereby approved shall not be operated outside the
store's existing trading hours of 0800 hours to 2100 hours Mondays to Saturdays, 1000
hours to 1600 hours on Sundays and Bank Holidays, and not at all on Christmas day. No
deliveries shall take place on Sundays or Bank/Public Holidays. No forklift trucks are
permitted at any time in this area. 

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with policy OE5 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

Development shall not begin until, a Construction Environmental Management Plan
(CEMP) has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority.
The CEMP shall comprise such combination of measures for controlling the effects of
any demolition, construction and enabling works associated with the development as may
be approved by the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP shall address issues including
the phasing of the works, hours of work (particular attention should be given to the
informative), noise and vibration impact, air quality, waste management, use of plant and
equipment, site transportation and traffic management including routing, signage,
permitted hours for construction traffic and construction materials deliveries. It will ensure
appropriate communication with, the distribution of information to the local residents and
the Local Planning Authority relating to relevant aspects of construction. Appropriate
arrangement should be made for monitoring and responding to complaints relating to
construction phases. All construction and enabling works at the development shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved CEMP unless otherwise agreed in writing by
the LPA.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with policy OE5 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

The details of suitable landfill gas protection measures for the extension shall be
submitted to and agreed with the LPA.  The agreed measures shall be implemented at
the new extension to the satisfaction of the LPA. 

6

7

8

9

Page 221



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

TL1

TL2

Existing Trees - Survey

Trees to be retained

REASON
The supermarket is near to a landfill site and was built on land reclaimed from a landfill
site.  Following investigations of the soil below the supermarket, gas protection measures
were installed in 1991 on the new Tesco Store.  Therefore for consistency and as a
precaution gas protection measures should also be applied to the new extension. Advice
on this condition can be obtained from the Environmental Protection Unit on 01895
277440.

Prior to any work commencing on site, an accurate survey plan at a scale of not less than
1:200 shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
plan must show:-
 (i) Species, position, height, condition, vigour, age-class, branch spread and stem
diameter of all existing trees, shrubs and hedges on and immediately adjoining the site.
 (ii) A clear indication of trees, hedges and shrubs to be retained and removed.
 (iii) Existing and proposed site levels.
 (iv) Routes of any existing or proposed underground works and overhead lines including
their manner of construction.
 (v) Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees and other vegetation to be retained during construction
work.

REASON
To enable the Local Planning Authority to assess the amenity value of existing trees,
hedges and shrubs and the impact of the proposed development on them and to ensure
that the development conforms with Policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority. 

If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely damaged during construction,
or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree, hedge or shrub shall be
planted at the same place and shall be of a size and species to be agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority and shall be planted in the first planting season following the
completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the
earlier.

Where damage is less severe, a schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the
effect of damage by tree surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with
the Local Planning Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery
Stock, Part 1, Specification for Trees and Shrubs'. Remedial work should be carried out
to BS 3998 (1989)  'Recommendations for Tree Work' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of
Practice for General Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work
shall be completed in the first planting season following the completion of the
development or the occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier.

REASON
To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary

10

11

Page 222



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

TL3

TL21

NONSC

H1

Protection of trees during site clearance and development

Tree Protection, Building & Demolition Method Statement

BREEAM

Traffic Arrangements - submission of details

Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and to comply with Section 197 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Prior to the commencement of any site clearance or construction work, detailed drawings
showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root areas/crown spread of
trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or development shall be
commenced until these drawings have been approved and the fencing has been erected
in accordance with the details approved.  Unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum height of 1.5 metres. The fencing
shall be retained in position until development is completed. The area within the
approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the course of the works and
in particular in these areas: 
1. There shall be no changes in ground levels; 
2. No materials or plant shall be stored; 
3. No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed. 
4. No materials or waste shall be burnt; and. 
5. No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority. 

REASON
To ensure that trees and other vegetation to be retained are not damaged during
construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with policy BE38 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Prior to development commencing on site, a method statement outlining the sequence of
development on the site including demolition, building works and tree protection shall be
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, and the scheme thereafter
implemented in accordance with the approved method statement.

REASON
To ensure that trees can be satisfactorily retained on the site in accordance with Policy
BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Prior to commencement of development, a statement demonstrating that the proposed
extension will achieve a BREEAM rating of excellent shall be submitted for approval in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Thereafter and prior to occupation of the extension, the scheme shall be completed in
strict accordance with the relevant approved details and be thereafter maintained for the
life of the development.

REASON
To ensure that the development is designed to incorporate energy efficiency and
sustainability principles in compliance with the requirements of Policy 4A.7 of the London
Plan (February 2008).

12

13

14

15

Page 223



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

OM2

DIS2

NONSC

Levels

Access to Buildings for People with Disabilities

Sale of food

Development shall not begin until details of all traffic arrangements (including where
appropriate carriageways, footways, turning space, safety strips, sight lines at road
junctions, kerb radii, car parking areas and marking out of spaces, loading facilities,
closure of existing access and means of surfacing) have been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved development shall not be
occupied until all such works have been constructed in accordance with the approved
details.  Thereafter, the parking areas, sight lines and loading areas must be
permanently retained and used for no other purpose at any time.

REASON
To ensure pedestrian and vehicular safety and convenience and to ensure adequate off-
street parking, and loading facilities in compliance with Policies AM7 and AM14 of the
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and
Chapter 3C of the London Plan (February 2008).

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be
shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in
accordance with policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

Development shall not commence until details of access to building entrances (to include
ramped/level approaches, signposting, types and dimensions of door width and lobby
openings) to meet the needs of people with disabilities have been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The approved facilities should be
provided prior to the occupation of the development and shall be permanently retained
thereafter.

REASON
To ensure that people with disabilities have adequate access to the development in
accordance with Policy AM13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) and London Plan Policies (February 2008) Policies 3A.13, 3A.17 and
4B.5.

A minimum of 1,800 square metres of the net sale area within the superstore shall be
devoted to the sale of food for so long as the development hereby permitted remains in
use.

REASON
To enable the Local Planning Authority to retain adequate control over the proposed use
in accordance with guidance within Planning Policy Statement 4: Planning for
Sustainable Economic Growth, and policies 3D.1 and 3D.3 of the London Plan (2008).

16

17

18

Page 224



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Restriction on opening hours

Access to car park

Service deliveries

Use of machines on Sundays & Bank Holidays

Compliance with original conditions

The food superstore shall not open for the sale of goods on Christmas Day, before 0800
hours and after 2100 on Mondays to Saturdays, and before 1000 hours and after 1600
hours on Sundays and bank holidays.

REASON
In the interests of residential amenity in accordance with policies BE19, OE1 and OE3 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

On Sundays and bank holidays access to the customer car park shall be taken from the
internal circulation roundabout only and the service barriers on the service road shall be
kept closed.

REASON
In the interests of residential amenity in accordance with policies BE19, OE1 and OE3 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

On Sundays and bank holidays there shall be no service deliveries to the superstore
save for newspaper deliveries.

REASON
In the interests of residential amenity in accordance with policies BE19, OE1 and OE3 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

On Sundays and bank holidays the machines used for cleaning the car park and
collecting trolleys shall not be used outside the buildings.

REASON
In the interests of residential amenity in accordance with policies BE19, OE1 and OE3 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

This permission does not override any of the original conditions attached to the existing
building (planning permission ref: 36999E/89/1214 and appeal ref:
T/APP/R5510/A/94/236865/P2) or its use and, as such, unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority, all conditions still apply.

REASON
To ensure an appropriate form of development is provided and to safeguard the
amenities of neighbouring properties and the surrounding area in compliance with
policies BE13, BE15, BE19, BE20, BE21, BE24, OE1, OE3 and AM14 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

19

20

21

22

23

INFORMATIVES

Page 225



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I52

I53

I1

I2

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

Building to Approved Drawing

Encroachment

1

2

3

4

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (February 2008) and national
guidance.

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by
either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will
have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results
in any form of encroachment.

BE13
BE15
BE20
BE21
OE1

OE3

OE5
OE11

AM7
AM8

AM11

AM14
LPP 3D.3

LPP 4A.3

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
Daylight and sunlight considerations.
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures
Siting of noise-sensitive developments
Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated
land - requirement for ameliorative measures
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and
implementation of road construction and traffic management
schemes
Improvement in facilities and promotion of safety and security at bus
and rail interchanges; use of planning agreements to secure
improvement in public transport services
New development and car parking standards.
London Plan Policy 3D.3 - Maintaining and Improving Retail
Facilities.
London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.

Page 226



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I3

I6

I34

Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Property Rights/Rights of Light

Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings'

5

6

7

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not
empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the
owner. If you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

Compliance with Building Regulations 'Access to and use of buildings' and Disability
Discrimination Act 1995 for commercial and residential development. 

You are advised that the scheme is required to comply with either:-

· The Building Regulations 2000 Approved Document Part M 'Access to and use of
buildings', or with
· BS 8300:2001 Design of buildings and their approaches to meet the needs of disabled
people - Code of practice.  AMD 15617 2005, AMD 15982 2005. 

These documents (which are for guidance) set minimum standards to allow residents,
workers and visitors, regardless of disability, age or gender, to gain access to and within
buildings, and to use their facilities and sanitary conveniences.

You may also be required make provisions to comply with the Disability Discrimination
Act 1995.  The Act gives disabled people various rights. Under the Act it is unlawful for
employers and persons who provide services to members of the public to discriminate
against disabled people by treating them less favourably for any reason related to their
disability, or by failing to comply with a duty to provide reasonable adjustments.  This
duty can require the removal or modification of physical features of buildings provided it
is reasonable.

The duty to make reasonable adjustments can be effected by the Building Regulation
compliance.  For compliance with the DDA please refer to the following guidance: -

· The Disability Discrimination Act 1995.  Available to download from www.opsi.gov.uk

· Disability Rights Commission (DRC) Access statements.  Achieving an inclusive
environment by ensuring continuity throughout the planning, design and management of
building and spaces, 2004.  Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

· Code of practice.  Rights of access.  Goods, facilities, services and premises.  Disability
discrimination act 1995, 2002.  ISBN 0 11702 860 6.  Available to download from

Page 227



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

8

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the northern side of Glencoe Road, Yeading, and falls
within the Willow Tree Lane Local Centre as designated by the Unitary Development Plan
(UDP) (Saved Policies September 2007).  The site is occupied by a part one, part two
storey Tesco superstore located in the north-east portion of the site, and a complementary
petrol filling station, which is located in the southern corner of the site.  An internal service
road runs along the sites eastern and southern boundaries.  The remainder of the site is
occupied by a 600-space car park for customer use.

The surrounding area is predominantly residential, characterised by terraced houses.

www.drc-gb.org.

· Creating an inclusive environment, 2003 & 2004 - What it means to you.  A guide for
service providers, 2003.  Available to download from www.drc-gb.org.

This is not a comprehensive list of Building Regulations legislation.  For further
information you should contact Building Control on 01895 250804/5/6.

Nuisance from demolition and construction work is subject to control under the Control of
Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Act 1993 and the Environmental Protection Act 1990.
You should ensure that the following are complied with:

(i) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of
0800 and 1800 on Monday to Friday and between the hours of 0800 and 1300 on
Saturday.  No works should be carried out on Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays;

(ii) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British
Standard 5228, and use 'best practicable means' as defined in section 72 of the Control
of Pollution Act 1974;

(iii) Measures should be taken to eliminate the release of dust, odours and other
emissions caused by the works that may create a public health nuisance.  Guidance on
control measures is given in 'The control of dust and emissions from construction and
demolition: best practice guidelines', Greater London Authority, November 2006; and

(iv) No bonfires that create dark smoke or cause nuisance to local residents should be
allowed at any time.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit to seek prior
approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974 if you anticipate any
difficulty in carrying out the works other than within the normal working hours set out
above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.  For further
information and advice, contact the Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02 Civic Centre,
High Street, Uxbridge, Middlesex UB8 1UW (tel. 01895 250155).

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 228



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

There are 8 retail units with flats above (4-34 Jollys Lane) located immediately to the north
of the application site. A number of gardens directly abut the site boundaries.  Previously,
the Willow Tree public house abutted part of the site  s western boundary, but this has
now been demolished and the site is currently undeveloped. A heavy vehicle testing
station and a B&Q superstore are located to the south of Glencoe Road.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The application seeks consent for an extension to the rear of the existing bulk storage
area, to provide a larger bulk storage area for the store. 

The extension would be sited to the rear of the building and would be 26.8m wide by
17.7m deep, and 6.6m high, finished with a flat roof, tying in with the existing roof in this
position.

19 car parking spaces would be lost by the proposal. 

The agent has provided the following clarification - 
 · The additional area is required as currently, there is no definitive split between non food
storage and food storage within the existing bulk store facility. The area of bulk storage
towards the rear right hand side of the store is used as a non food storage warehouse.
But due to the shortage of storage space within this area and the need for secure areas of
storage currently located elsewhere within the store, this makes the operation of the bulk
store and the merchandising of the sales floor area more difficult. By having a specific non
food bulk store on the right hand side of the store the sales floor can be merchandised
more effectively and with the minimal amount of disruption to the customer and would
enable Tesco to reorganize their existing bulk store warehouse areas and operations. The
new storage area will be served via the existing service corridor at the back of the store
and this will alleviate the need for items within the secure areas being transported from
one side of the store to the other. 
 · The existing bulk store is serviced via the service corridor along the back of the store. It
is the intention to utilise this same service corridor to stock the new bulk store area. There
will be openings within the existing bulk store wall to access this new area. Enabling total
flexibility and use of both these areas. 
 · Currently, all racking within secure non food storage areas are either 2.5m or 3.5m high.
It is proposed that the same size racking be used within the new bulk store area.
Therefore, there is no need for the use of forklifts within this area 
 · There will be openings within the existing bulk store wall to access the new bulk store
area. This would enable Tesco to reorganize all their existing bulk storage warehouse
areas and operations. The existing bulk store will form part of the new storage area. It is
not the intention to use these areas other than for storage. 
 · Due to the additional area of bulk storage there could initially be an increase in
deliveries. But, once the operational procedures of this area are resolved, together with a
more efficient merchandising of stock to the sales floor then this initial increase should
resolve itself back to current numbers. Any increase in turnover following the
reorganisation of this area would be dependent upon the efficiency and demand of the
merchandising. This will not be known until the bulk store is in operation.
 · The proposed hours of operation for this new bulk storage area would be exactly the
same as the existing stores operating hours. 
 · The relationship between the new bulk store operation and the existing delivery area will
not change. All deliveries will continue to use the existing facility with the trucking route
unchanged. This being along the service corridor at the back of the store. 
 · The area of staff car parking around the new storage area that has been reconfigured at
a loss of 19no spaces. Currently, these spaces cannot be relocated around the site

Page 229



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

without looking at significant car park alterations. Information received from Tesco is that
there is an excess of car parking of some 40no spaces.

36999/A/85/2071

36999/ADV/2008/50

36999/ADV/2010/71

36999/AE/96/1310

36999/APP/2001/1147

36999/APP/2001/814

36999/APP/2002/2613

36999/APP/2004/2154

Tesco Superstore & Petrol Station        Glencoe Road Hayes 

Tesco Store Glencoe Road Hayes 

Tesco Store Glencoe Road Hayes 

Tesco Store     Glencoe Road Hayes 

Tesco Superstore & Petrol Station Glencoe Road Hayes 

Tesco Store Glencoe Road Hayes 

Tesco Superstore,  Glencoe Road Hayes 

Tesco Superstore Glencoe Road Hayes 

Mixed dev. on    47.5000 hectares  (outline)(P)

INSTALLATION OF VARIOUS INTERNALLY,  EXTERNALLY AND NON-ILLUMINATED
FASCIA, FREE-STANDING AND WINDOW SIGNS (PART RETROSPECTIVE APPLICATION).

Installation of 8 x non-illuminated fascia signs, 2 x internally illuminated fascia signs, 1 x
externally illuminated fascia sign, 12 x non-illuminated flag pole signs, 4 x non-illuminated free
standing directional signs, 5 x internally illuminated free standing signs and 4 x non-illuminated
free standing signs (Retrospective Application)

Alterations to site layout to provide new delivery route, erection of twelve trolley bay shelters

ERECTION OF AN EXTENSION TO THE SALE AND STORAGE AREAS

INSTALLATION OF A CASH DISPENSING MACHINE

ALTERATIONS AND ADDITIONS TO PLANNING PERMISSION REF.36999/APP/2001/1147
DATED 14/12/2001 INCORPORATING CHANGES TO THE BULK STORE AND CAGE
MARSHALLING AREAS, CAR PARK AND EXTERNAL ELEVATIONS

09-06-1986

04-06-2008

20-11-1996

14-12-2001

09-05-2001

09-07-2003

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Approved

SD

Approved

Approved

Approved

Approved

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Page 230



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

36999/APP/2006/659

36999/APP/2007/2494

36999/APP/2007/803

36999/APP/2007/829

36999/APP/2008/1173

36999/APP/2008/1458

Tesco Superstore Glencoe Road Hayes 

Tesco Store Glencoe Road Hayes 

Tesco Store Glencoe Road Hayes 

Tesco Store Glencoe Road Hayes 

Tesco Store Glencoe Road Hayes 

Tesco Store Glencoe Road Hayes 

ERECTION OF A CANOPY AND INSTALLATION OF TWO ROLLER SHUTTERS TO
PROVIDE A HOME DELIVERY SERVICE

VARIATION OF CONDITION 1 (TO ALLOW THE FOODSTORE AND ASSOCIATED FILLING
STATION TO TRADE 24 HOURS, 7 DAYS A WEEK SUBJECT TO SUNDAY TRADING
RESTRICTIONS ON THE FOODSTORE) OF PLANNING APPEAL REF.T/APP/R5510/A/94/
236865/P2 DATED 10/01/1995 (PLANNING APPLICATION REF.36999/T/93/878).

REPLACEMENT OF EXISTING RECYCLING UNITS WITH A SINGLE TOMRA RECYCLING
UNIT TOGETHER WITH ASSOCIATED ENABLING WORKS

VARIATION OF CONDITION 1 (TO EXTEND TRADING HOURS OF THE TESCO STORE
AND PETROL FILLING STATION FROM 0800 - 21:00 HOURS BY 1:45 HOURS TO 0800 -
22:45 HOURS MONDAY TO SATURDAY EXCEPTING BANK HOLIDAYS) OF APPEAL
DECISION REFERENCE: T/APP/R5510/A/94/230865/P2 DATED 10 JANUARY 1995.
(PLANNING APPLICATION REF: 36999T/93/878 DATED MARCH 1994)

INSTALLATION OF EXTERNAL ATM AND ANTI-RAM RAID BOLLARDS.

CONSTRUCTION OF GLAZED LOBBY TO MAIN ENTRANCE AND ERECTION OF A SINGLE
STOREY FRONT ADDITION UNDER EXISTING CANOPY ADJACENT TO THE CAFE AREA.

VARIOUS CHANGES TO CAR PARK TO INCLUDE THE RELOCATION OF RECYCLING
FACILITIES, INCREASE OF RADII ON THE END OF AISLES AND INTRODUCTION OF
SPEED REDUCTION ROUNDALS

31-03-2005

12-07-2006

22-05-2008

11-01-2008

27-02-2008

03-06-2008

28-08-2008

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Approved

Refused

Approved

Refused

Refused

Approved

Refused

DismissedAppeal: 12-09-2008

Page 231



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

36999/APP/2009/1959

36999/APP/2009/2371

36999/APP/2010/1361

36999/APP/2010/2526

36999/APP/2010/2527

36999/B/87/1204

36999/C/87/1732

36999/D/87/1936

36999/E/89/1214

Tesco Store Glencoe Road Hayes 

Tesco Stores Ltd  Glencoe Road Hayes 

Tesco Store Glencoe Road Hayes 

Tesco Stores Ltd  Glencoe Road Hayes 

Tesco Stores Ltd  Glencoe Road Hayes 

Willow Tree Lane, Jollys Lane & Glencoe Road Hayes 

Tesco Superstore & Petrol Station        Glencoe Road Hayes 

Tesco Superstore & Petrol Station        Glencoe Road Hayes 

Willow Tree Ln/ Glencoe Rd               Jollys Lane Hayes 

Installation of new doors to existing entrance lobby.

Installation of a combined cooling, heating and power (C/CHP) unit and relocation of existing
generator, compactor and container.

Variation of condition 1 (hours of opening) of the Secretary of State's Appeal Decision ref:
T/APP/R5510/A/94/236865/P2 (LBH ref: 36999/T/93/0878) dated 10/01/1995, to extend the
opening hours of the food superstore from 07.00 hours to 22.30 hours on Mondays to
Saturdays.

Installation of new external car park lighting (Retrospective application.)

Installation of replacement covered trolley bays within car park (Retrospective application.)

App of reserved matters persuant to Outline P/P ref:36999A/85/2071 dated 9.6.86

Erection of retail superstore,ancillary carparking & petrol filling station

Erection of a retail superstore, ancillary car park, & petrol filling station (outline)

13-11-2009

22-12-2009

15-09-2010

30-12-2010

30-12-2010

09-08-1990

15-06-1990

03-07-1990

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Approved

Approved

Refused

Approved

Approved

Withdrawn

Withdrawn

Withdrawn

Page 232



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

36999/F/90/1427

36999/G/90/1842

36999/J/91/1379

36999/M/91/1868

36999/N/91/3620

36999/P/92/0596

Willow Tree Ln/ Glencoe Rd               Jollys Lane Hayes 

Willow Tree Ln/ Glencoe Rd               Jollys Lane Hayes 

Willow Tree Ln/ Glencoe Rd               Jollys Lane Hayes 

Willow Tree Ln/ Glencoe Rd               Jollys Lane Hayes 

Willow Tree Ln/ Glencoe Rd               Jollys Lane Hayes 

Willow Tree Ln/ Glencoe Rd               Jollys Lane Hayes 

Erection of retail store, 12 shop units, with residential accommodation over, surgery, public
house/restaurant, public conveniences, petrol filling station, community facilities, car parking
and landscaping

Erection of district shopping centre incorporating 993 sq metres retail shops, 500 sq metres
financial and professional services, public house, cafeteria/restaurant, 2500 sq metres craft
studio/ workshop/retail/offices, 2000 sq metres offices with associated car parking and
landscaping

Erection of a district shopping centre incorporating 993m2 retail shops, 500m2 financial and
professional services, doctors surgery, public house/wine bar, cafe/restaurant, 2506m2 craft
studios/workshops/retail/offices, 2011m2 offices, community centre plus associated car parking
and landscaping

Reserved matters (details of siting, design, external appearance, landscaping and means of
access) in compliance with condition 1 and details in compliance with condition 6 (finished
levels), condition 7 (access to buildings) and condition 11 (disposal of surface water and
drainage) of outline planning permission ref. 36999E/89/1214 dated 1.5.90; Erection of retail
store, 12 shop units with residential accommodation over, surgery , public house/restaurant,
public conveniences, petrol filling station, community facilities, car parking and landscaping

Details of traffic arrangements, materials, land- scaping, means of enclosure, finished levels,
disabled access and site survey for contamination levels in compliance with conditions
2,3,4,5,6,7 and 14 of outline planning permission ref. 36999E/ 89/1214 dated 1.5.90; Erection of
a district shopping centre

Installation of free standing 'V' sign

Variation of condition 12 of planning permission ref:36999E/89/1214 to allow opening of the

01-05-1990

02-11-1990

08-12-1992

13-12-1991

09-12-1992

31-01-1992

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Approved

NFA

Approved

Approved

Approved

ALT

Page 233



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

None which specifically relates to this application

4. Planning Policies and Standards

The following Planning Policy Guidance Notes are applicable to the application.

Planning Policy Guidance 24 - Planning and Noise 
Planning Policy Statement 4: Planning for Sustainable Economic Growth

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE13 New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Part 2 Policies:

36999/R/92/0748

36999/T/93/0878

36999/W/93/1785

36999/X/93/1951

Willow Tree Ln/ Glencoe Rd               Jollys Lane Hayes 

Tesco Superstore & Petrol Station        Glencoe Road Hayes 

East Of    Jollys Lane Hayes 

Willow Tree Ln/ Glencoe Rd               Jollys Lane Hayes 

store on Sundays between 10.00am and 6.00pm

Amended design of superstore approved under planning permission ref. 36999J/91/1379 dated
13.12.91 to include extension to the store and enclosure of the loading dock

Variation of condition 12 of planning permission ref. 36999E/89/1214 dated 1.5.90 to allow
trading on Sundays between 1000 and 1800 hours

Erection of a two storey block comprising 8 x 1-bed flats above 4 retail (A1) units, two office
(A2) units and two takeaway (A3) units, plus associated parking and landscaping and erection
of a separate doctor's surgery

Variation of condition 1 of planning permission reference 36999E/89/1214 dated 11.5.90 for
mixed development to allow a further two years for submission of details of reserved matters in
respect of the District Centre

12-06-1992

06-07-1992

08-03-1994

01-06-1994

06-04-1994

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Refused

Approved

Refused

Approved

Approved

Comment on Relevant Planning History

AllowedAppeal: 10-01-1995

Page 234



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

BE15

BE20

BE21

OE1

OE3

OE5

OE11

AM7

AM8

AM11

AM14

LPP 3D.3

LPP 4A.3

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

Siting of noise-sensitive developments

Development involving hazardous substances and contaminated land -
requirement for ameliorative measures

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Priority consideration to pedestrians in the design and implementation of road
construction and traffic management schemes

Improvement in facilities and promotion of safety and security at bus and rail
interchanges; use of planning agreements to secure improvement in public
transport services

New development and car parking standards.

London Plan Policy 3D.3 - Maintaining and Improving Retail Facilities.

London Plan Policy 4A.3 - Sustainable Design and Construction.

Not applicable30th November 2010

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

Cllr Allam requested that the application be presented to the Central and South Planning
Committee

5 Site Notices were displayed around the site, 1 on Jollys Lane, 2 on the Glencoe Road, 1 at the
junction which joins Glencoe Road to the entrance of Kennet Drive/Sharpness Close and Telford
Way, and 1 opposite the junction of Telford Way and Marsworth Close.

45 neighbours and interested parties have been consulted and two letters of representation have
been received which make the following comments - 

1. The rear extension will be close to the back of my house. My bedroom and living room face the
service road which provides access to delivery lorries loading bays. The increased storage area will
have more impact us - more lorry noise, more refridgeration noise, deliveries through the night, and
more pollution. 
2. If they need more storage perhaps they should look elsewhere, where there is enough land for
their requirements 
3. I have not received a letter informing me of this application.
4. Having looked at the paperwork I have concerns regarding the operation of this storage area.
The loading bay and store are not directly connected, so how can goods get from one to another.
5. I am concerned too many car parking spaces are being lost, these are mainly used by staff and
official visitors. Where will these be integrated when the store already suffers from parking and

Page 235



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

Environmental Protection Unit - Further to your memo dated 3rd November 2010 in respect of the
above consultation, relating to the introduction of a new bulk store to the right hand side of the
store. My comments are highlighted below.

The proposal seeks that the extension to provide addition to the existing bulk storage area, which
will be operational within the existing store operation hours and used for storage only to be
operational within the existing trading hours and no use of noise equipment such forklift will be
used given the size of the raking.

The design and access statement accompanied with supporting email sent from hln architects
clarifies the position, stating that existing operations will not be intensified by the proposed new bulk
store, which may result in increased deliveries to the site. This information suggests that there will
not be significant increases in capacity of the store or increased traffic generation other than during
the construction phases. In view of this, any EPU objection on noise grounds cannot be justified at
the present stage unless refusal is recommended on other overriding planning issues. However,
prior to any approval granted, the following condition is recommended in light with ongoing
complaint of noise emanating from the site premises. 

Condition 1 
The new bulk store extension area hereby approved shall not be operated outside the store  s
existing trading hours. No forklift trucks are permitted at any time in this area. 

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with policy OE5 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

Condition 2
C5 Construction environmental management plan
Development shall not begin until, a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) has
been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. The CEMP shall
comprise such combination of measures for controlling the effects of any demolition, construction
and enabling works associated with the development as may be approved by the Local Planning
Authority. The CEMP shall address issues including the phasing of the works, hours of work
(particular attention should be given to the informative), noise and vibration impact, air quality,
waste management, use of plant and equipment, site transportation and traffic management
including routing, signage, permitted hours for construction traffic and construction materials
deliveries. It will ensure appropriate communication with, the distribution of information to the local
residents and the Local Planning Authority relating to relevant aspects of construction. Appropriate
arrangement should be made for monitoring and responding to complaints relating to construction
phases. All construction and enabling works at the development shall be carried out in accordance
with the approved CEMP unless otherwise agreed in writing by the LPA.

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with policy OE5 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

Informative

traffic issues at the weekends.
6. The storage is clearly for operational purposes, but the store although recently showed more
retail floor space after removing an internal wall. 
7. The store does not have extended hours, it is not 24hr operation, would the storage be for fewer
deliveries?
8. I am against the application, until I have been fully consulted and we all have our rightful say.

Page 236



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

INF 20 Control of environmental nuisance from construction work 
Nuisance from demolition and construction work is subject to control under the Control of Pollution
Act 1974, the Clean Air Act 1993 and the Environmental Protection Act 1990.  You should ensure
that the following are complied with:

(i) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the hours of 0800 and
1800 on Monday to Friday and between the hours of 0800 and 1300 on Saturday.  No works should
be carried out on Sundays, Public or Bank Holidays;

(ii) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with British Standard
5228, and use   best practicable means   as defined in section 72 of the Control of Pollution Act
1974;

(iii) Measures should be taken to eliminate the release of dust, odours and other emissions caused
by the works that may create a public health nuisance.  Guidance on control measures is given in
The control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition: best practice guidelines  ,
Greater London Authority, November 2006; and

(iv) No bonfires that create dark smoke or cause nuisance to local residents should be allowed at
any time.

You are advised to consult the Council  s Environmental Protection Unit to seek prior approval
under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974 if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out
the works other than within the normal working hours set out above, and by means that would
minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.  For further information and advice, contact the
Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02 Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, Middlesex UB8 1UW (tel.
01895 250155).

I refer to your recent consultation to the EPU regarding the above application. I can provide the
comments below and I recommend a condition with regard to the installation of gas protection
measures.

The site was originally on part of a wider landfill site and is next to the landfilled park. In the area of
the Tesco development the landfill was removed and replaced with a   clean   clay fill. This work
was carried out in the 1980s. Before the store was built in 1991 a landfill gas survey was carried out
at the site to assess gas levels in the ground. Gas was found in the clay fill below the Tesco site.
Gas protection measures were designed into the Tesco building by the developer and a plan was
provided showing the proposed work. The works involved gas venting and a gas membrane. The
measures appear to have been installed according to Building Control records. 

To ensure a consistent level of gas protection at the building some gas protection measures should
be built into the new extension. The developer  s consultant would 
need to assess the risk and design an appropriate level of protection most likely similar to the rest
of the store. I would recommend the condition below. Please contact me if you want to discuss this
application.

Condition
The details of suitable landfill gas protection measures for the extension shall be submitted to and
agreed with the LPA.  The agreed measures shall be implemented at the new extension to the
satisfaction of the LPA. 

Reason
The supermarket is near to a landfill site and was built on land reclaimed from a landfill site.
Following investigations of the soil below the supermarket, gas protection measures were  installed

Page 237



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

The application relates to an existing superstore site and it is therefore considered the
principle for the use on the site has been established. 

Policy BE13 of the Adopted Hillingdon UDP (Saved Policies, September 2007) states that
development will not be permitted if the layout and appearance fail to harmonise with the
existing street scene, and BE15 states alterations and extensions to existing buildings will
be permitted where they harmonise with the scale, form, architectural composition and
proportions of the original building.

The proposal relates to the erection of a rear extension to the existing bulk storage facility
of the existing superstore. Due to its proximity, only limited vantage would be gained from
the wider street scene, although the development would be visible from within the car park
and first floor windows of adjacent properties. 

The extension is considered inkeeping with the existing building to which it would be
applied and would satisfactorily integrate with existing site characteristics. As such, the
principle of the development is considered acceptable.

Not applicable to this application

Not applicable to this application

in 1991 on the new Tesco Store.  Therefore for consistency and as a precaution gas protection
measures should also be applied to the new extension. Advice on this condition can be obtained
from the Environmental Protection Unit on 01895  277440. 

Highway Engineer - The application is acceptable

Trees and Landscape Officer - The site is occupied by a Tesco superstore, within an established
landscaped car park.  The tree and other planting on the site has been implemented in accordance
with planning conditions attached to the original (and subsequent) planning consents for the store.
There are no Tree Preservation Orders on, or close to, the site, nor does it fall within a designated
Conservation Area.

The proposal is to build a single-storey rear extension on the north-east corner of the site / south-
east elevation of the existing building.  The extension will occupy an area currently used for car
parking at what is perceived to be the rear of the site, close to the service yard.

LANDSCAPE CONSIDERATIONS: Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of
topographical and landscape features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping
wherever it is appropriate.
 · In this case, the proposal has little impact on the current landscape setting with trees to be
retained in the nearby car park and on the eastern boundary.  There will be little space or
opportunity to secure additional tree planting.  The boundary screen planting on the east boundary
is well-established and 
 · Operational space for the contractor will be required to build the extension.  This needs to
specified in a method statement which should also safeguard and, if necessary, replace trees
which may be affected by the work.

RECOMMENDATIONS: No objection in principle subject to conditions TL1, TL2, TL3 and TL21.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 238



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.05

7.07

7.08

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, Car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Not applicable to this application

Not applicable to this application

The proposal relates to the erection of a rear extension to the existing bulk storage facility
of the existing superstore. Due to its proximity, only limited vantage would be gained from
the wider street scene, although the development would be visible from within the car park
and first floor windows of adjacent properties. 

The extension would be finished with a flat roof, matching that of the existing section of
building to which it would be applied, thereby resulting in a fully integrated addition. As
such, the design of the extension is considered to be appropriate to the building and the
site to which they relate, and therefore would not appear as an obtrusive feature or result
in a material harm to the character and appearance of the existing site or the wider area.
Thereby, complying with policies BE13 and BE15 of the UDP (Saved Policies September
2007).

With regard to the proposed impact of the proposal in relation to the amenities of any
nearby properties. It is considered the main properties to be affected would be those who
share their residential boundaries with the internal service road to the site. 

The proposed extension would be sited over 13m away from these shared boundaries and
therefore it is not considered a material loss of amenity would arise to these adjacent
properties by reason of loss of outlook, sunlight or overshadowing. Furthermore, no
adverse privacy impacts are anticipated given the distance to the nearest residential
property. As such, the proposal is in accordance with Policies BE20, BE21 and BE24 of
the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007).

With regard to noise and disturbance, these issues are dealt with below.

Not applicable to this application

The site is directly accessible from the Hayes By-pass.  The local road layout is such that
the majority of vehicles accessing the site come from the Hayes By-pass, without passing
through surrounding residential areas.

The proposal would not result in an increase in retail floor space at this site and whilst
there would initially be an increase in deliveries to the site (to stock this additional area),
then the delivery numbers should resolve themselves back to the existing situation. 

The proposal would result in the loss of 19 parking spaces to the rear of the site. This
area is mainly used by staff. It is considered adequate provision still remains on the site.

This proposal is not considered to result in a material increase in traffic
movement/deliveries to warrant the refusal of planning permission on these grounds
alone, as such, it is considered to comply with Policy AM7 of the UDP (Saved Policies
September 2007).

See above

Page 239



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

The proposed extension to the existing building appears to comply with Part M Building
Regulations and therefore would also comply with the intensions of Policy 3A.4 and 3A.5
of the London Plan and the Council  s Accessible Hillingdon SPD January 2010. As such it
is recommended any approval issued has an informative added reminding the applicant of
the need to comply with these regulations.

Not applicable to this application

The Trees and Landscape Officer has commented that the site is within an established
landscaped car park.  The tree and other planting on the site has been implemented in
accordance with planning conditions attached to the original (and subsequent) planning
consents for the store. There are no Tree Preservation Orders on, or close to, the site, nor
does it fall within a designated Conservation Area.  The extension will occupy an area
currently used for car parking at what is perceived to be the rear of the site, close to the
service yard.  Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of topographical and
landscape features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping wherever it
is appropriate. 

In this case, the proposal has little impact on the current landscape setting with trees to be
retained in the nearby car park and on the eastern boundary.  There will be little space or
opportunity to secure additional tree planting.  The boundary screen planting on the east
boundary is well-established and operational space for the contractor will be required to
build the extension.  This should be specified in a method statement which should also
safeguard and, if necessary, replace trees which may be affected by the work. Therefore
subject to appropriate conditions the proposal is considered to comply with Policy BE38 of
the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007)

Not applicable to this application

In order to ensure a sustainable form of development is provided, a condition requiring the
applicant to achieve a BREEAM rating of excellent is proposed.

Not applicable to this application

Objectors have also raised concerns regarding noise and disturbance and additional
pollution created as a result of the proposal.  The site is located within an Air Quality
Management Area. The Environmental Protection Officer has stated that there would not
be a significant increase in capacity of the store or increased traffic generation, other than
in the construction phases, and therefore subject to safeguarding conditions relating to;
hours of operation; no forklifts to be used; and the submission of a construction
environmental management plan to be submitted to and approved in writing before the
development commences, no objection would be raised. It is therefore considered that the
proposal would not materially impact on residential amenity and as such, this aspect of
the proposal would comply with Policies OE1 and OE3 of the UDP (Saved Policies
September 2007).

With regard to points 3 and 8, new letters were sent out to a wider consultation list on the
2nd December 2010, which included this writer's address

Point 6, it is noted an additional 41m2 has already been given over to retail sales since the

Page 240



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.20

7.21

7.22

Planning obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

application for the alterations of the erection of an extension to the sales and bulk storage
areas, approved by application 36999/APP/2002/2613  dated 24/10/2002. As such, it is
recommended any permission issued has a condition applied relating to the maximum
amount of retail floor space allowed.

Not applicable to this application

Not applicable to this application

None

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies.  This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights.  Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998.  Therefore, Members need to be aware
of the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales.  The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness.  If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law.  However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

Not applicable to this application

10. CONCLUSION

In summary, it is considered the proposal would not result in a material loss of amenity to
the surrounding area or neighboring properties, thereby complying with the relevant
policies contained in the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007) and the London Plan and
as such, the proposal is recommended for Approval subject to suitable safeguarding
conditions.

11. Reference Documents

Page 241



Central & South Planning Committee - 25th January 2011
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

(a) The Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007)
(b) The London Plan 2008 
(c) Planning Policy Guidance Note No.24 - Planning and Noise
(d) SPD: Noise
(e) letters of representation received

Catherine Hems 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 242



41to6
3

27

1

5

6

Sub

FOSSDYKE

91

CLOSE

4

2

37

15

51

127

1

8

16

1

65
2

35

El

24

PO

ACER AVENUE

18

113

K
E

N
N

E
T D

R
IV

E

GLENCOE ROAD

49

14

4

34

20

Sta

33

Superstore

23

SHARPNESS CLOSE

1

11
9

T
E

L
F

O
R

D
 W

A
Y

1

32

28 12

5

5
6

43

29

79

22

12

101

17

11

21

12

´

January
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved. 
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283  2011

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

Tesco Stores Ltd.
Glencoe Road

Yeading

36999/APP/2010/2512

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Page 243



Page 244

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 18

Page 245

By virtue of paragraph(s) 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 252

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 19

Page 253

By virtue of paragraph(s) 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 260

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 20

Page 261

By virtue of paragraph(s) 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 272

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 21

Page 273

By virtue of paragraph(s) 6 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 as amended.

Document is Restricted



Page 284

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Annex

Page 285



Page 286



Page 287



Page 288



L

L

L

L

E

LL

L

E

³

L
L

L

L L

L

L

L

L

L

L

R

R

R

L

L

³
³

L

³

R

L

E

L

L

L
R

L

L

L

L

L LL L

L

C

C

L

L

L
L

L

L

E

LL
L

L

L

E

C

L

L

L

L

L

³
L

L
L

C

L

L

L L L
L

L

L

L

R

L

L

L
L

L

L

L
L

E

L

E

LL

L

L

³

L
L ³

L

L

L

L

C

L
E

_

G

G

_

_G

A

A

A

_

_
_

A

_

Sports Ground

23

Lighting Towers

15
4

1

5

Playground

9

9

12

Constantine Place

8

B
IR

C
H

C
R

E
S

C
E

N
T

BAND

Weir

8

7

4

13

10

Leigh Mallory Bridge

17
8

House

44.8m

43.0m

294

The Cottage

16

LB

88

4

54.3m

CLOSE

6

Y
E

W
T

R
E

E
R

O
A

D

1

1

96b
94a

BIRCH CRESCENT

5

48.5m

Ameri

16
4

15
2

Playground

FB

45.4m

2
4

8

96a

53.9m

7

F Station

Sports Ground

16
6

FB

Path

Monument

5

8

P
A

T
C

H
C

L
O

S
E

3

1

11

94

4

18
8

17
6

Drain

Hillingdon

Pa
th

46.0m

290

VINCENT DRIVE

RAF Station

4

1

B
O

Y
L

E
C

L
O

S
E

3

2

5

76

15

R
iv

er
P

in
n

Drain

Path

44.5m

7

B
O

W
L

IN
G

RAF Station

8

2

96

15

VIN
E

LA
N

E

PIK
E

CLO
SE

1

6

´

January
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2011

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Underground Operations Room
RAF Uxbridge, Hillingdon Road

Uxbridge

585/APP/2010/2902

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:2,500

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Page 289



Page 290



Page 291



Page 292



Page 293



Page 294



Page 295



R

RR

E

E

E

A

6

hurch

1

CL
OS
E

1

Orc
ha
rd
Ho
us
e

1 to 5

13 to 17

20

El

56

115

53

119

25
121

2c

5

1

12

3

47

6

CLASSON CLOSE

10

22
20

Works

Car Park

1

N
E
W

D
R
IV
E

4

19

1

4

52

Long Drive

57

17

2

51
34

54

G
A
R
D
E
N

to
6

52

7

2e

24
42

44

2

2a

30

GP

2

7 to 11

52

54

71

18

91

8

29.0m

47

28

53

3

5

28

55

21
123

2b

yton

AINS
CLO

SE

2 to
6

to 10

RO
AD

Telephone

TCBs

1

42

Bank

8
12

CHERRY ORCHARD

15

42

57

55

2

13

15
22

46

2

50

37

10

63

Sub Sta

73 to 89

DRAYTON G
ARDENS

55
53

1

45

107

3

48

1

STATION

51
16

17

SW
AN

7

43

28.7m

2
4

D
R
A
Y
T
O
N
G
A
R
D
E
N
S

70

37

El Sub Sta

43

49

5

8

40

14

15

29.3m

23

20
B
R
A
N
D
V
ILL

7

Exchange
dw
ay
Parade

TH
ATC

HE
R

45

19 to 23

10

Garage

35

50

46

Ro
ok
s T
err
ace

12 9
57

R
O
A
D

2d

´

January
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2011

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

70 Station Road
West Drayton

2954/APP/2010/1810

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Page 296



Page 297



Page 298



Page 299



Page 300



Page 301



Page 302



Page 303



Page 304



Page 305



Page 306



Page 307



Page 308



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

RR
R

R

E

E

E

A

24

2
4 Posts

13

50

34
32

El

14

26

2

1

11

48

25
22

a

40

16

Posts

YE
AD
IN
G
LA
NE

127

2

2

Sub Sta

56

Surgery

10

32.6m

Library

24

24

1

28
Fo
rs
te
rs
W
ay

BE
DF
O
RD
AV
EN
UE

1

82

31

1

10 12

1

31.7m

YEADING
GARDENS

61

23

3

13
9

7

15

12

17

19

4

16

43

36

64

´

August 2010

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

43 - 47 and rear of
35 - 43 Yeading Lane

Hayes

34799/APP/2009/2800

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

Page 309



Page 310



Page 311



Page 312



Page 313



Page 314



Page 315



Page 316



Page 317



Page 318



Page 319



Page 320



Page 321



Page 322



Page 323



Page 324



Page 325



E

R

E

E

E

U

U

U

U

U

A

UU

U

50

66

127
W
H
ITE

H
A
LL
R
O
A
D

51

78a

76
74

C
R

El

167

55

67

77

S
t
A
u
stell

73

62
a

70

75b

52

Sub
Sta

19

181

Rosevic House

CHILTERN VIEW
ROAD

25

67

48

62
64

W
o
o
d
le
ig
h

El S
ub S

ta

77

W
ard

B
dy

49

78

76b

89

153

195

91

O
R
C
H
A
R
D
W
A
Y
E

44

36.9m

15

69

66

60

CW

78b

THE GREENWAY

74
c

17

97
12

A
ttad

ale

57

W
ad
h
u
rst 49b 49a

76c

6

1

36.6m

54

62

11

36.9m

68
BUR

NES
S C

LOS
E

74

84

121 74
b

W
ard

B
d
y

RH

37

37.2m

44

26

45

71
2

LB

129

139

151

86

76a

CF

72

24

16

39

65

7

65

14

16

13 1

64
a

75

72

82

PH

80a

80

18

11

´

January
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2011

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

51 Chiltern View Road
Uxbridge

64176/APP/2010/2097

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Page 326



Page 327



Page 328



Page 329



Page 330



LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON
Planning &

Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

RRR

RR

U

UU

A

U

A

12

18

2

1t
o1
5

74

70

ST ANSELMS ROAD

38
40

53

22
13

6

50

54

14

4

32
to
3
6

10

C
P
re
ci
n
ct

CROWN CLOSE

El

28

El
S

39
40

45

25

1

6

13

62

75

52
16

14

TCBs

Aquis House

14
29

5

36

25
24 50

11
6

Towing Path

Grand Union Canal

WALTERS CLOSE

The Parish Church

50

1

38

37

13
4

55

37

72

of St Anselm

C
R

12

S
TA
T
IO
N
R
O
A
D

39

23

El Sub Sta

1

34 35

29

12
9

59

20
19

13
5

am Court

11

3

Bank

22

(PH)

42

Old Crown

61

Pl
ay
A
re
a

15b

11
7

14

2

Roof Car Park

3

28

63

TCP

57

25

11

WESTERN VIEW

Sub

45

12
8

21

49
12
4

15

MS ROAD

15

1

56

42
a

The

10
a

W
ar
d
B
d
y

15

Sta

46

Posts

44

30

51

Skeffington Court

60

´

January 2010

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2009

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

52 Station Road
Hayes

35807/APP/2009/2363

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

Page 331



Page 332



Page 333



Page 334



Page 335



Pond

RO
AD Lake

Sub Sta

BENN
ETSF

IELD
ROAD

1

Lake

El Sub Sta

2

Club House

BE
NN
ET
SF
IEL
D

El

Lake

´

November
2010

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2010

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

The Arena, Stockley Park
Stockley Road
West Drayton

37800/APP/2010/1669

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Page 336



Page 337



Page 338



Page 339



Page 340



L

L

L

R

L

R

L

L

L

L

R

L

L

L

L

L

L

L

E

R

L

E

L

L

L L

R L
L

L

L

L
R

L

L

R

Pond

UniversityBrunel

34.4m

D
is
m
an
tled

R
ailw

ay

Cooling Tower

rd
B
d
y

sm
an
tle
d
R
ai
lw
ay

TCBs

Bank

Posts

E
L
A
N
D
R
O
A
D

Brunel University

´

January
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2011

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Brunel University
Kingston Lane
Hillingdon

532/APP/2010/1964

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Page 341



Page 342



Page 343



Page 344



Page 345



Page 346



Page 347



E
R

R
R R

L

RR R R

E

RR

R

R

A

A

10
1

44

Works

68

42

74

33

31

PW

48

1

18

16

73

59

9
34

37

40.5m
26

El
Su
b S
t

G
R
E
ATFIE

LD
S
D
R
I

32

49

11

38 to 41

43 to 46

20

41.1m

11

Sta

20
2

1

10

29

13

24

25

CR

6
PIE
LD
H
E
A
TH
A
VE
N
U
E

2

2

Surgery

67

Issues
60

54

78

8

30
35

32

N
E
W
LY
N
C
LO
S
E

47

3
5

GP

El

PI
EL
D
H

19

10

19
8a

ROAD

6

77

53

GREAT
FIELDS

DRIVE

El Sub
Sta

War
d B

dy

9

21

1
2

10

Posts

16

8

Sub

El Sub Sta

G
R
E
A
T
F
IE
L
D
S

D
R
IV
E

36

10a

17

26 to 28

22

4

7

TC
B

´

January
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2011

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

20 Pield Heath Road
Hillingdon

21661/APP/2010/1716

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Page 348



Page 349



Page 350



Page 351



R

R

E

E

E

R R

R

E

R

E

R

R

E

R

R

R

E

_

__ _

_

_

_ _

_ _ _

_

_ _

_
_

_
A

41
41
a

52.7m

52

93

SL

Red Leys

1

2

2a
Stone

Sand
Drag

32

El Sub Sta

54.9m

El Sub Sta

14

52.7m

52.4m

N
ut
ki
n
W
al
k

6

2a
2b

3b

SL

14

39
a

ue
Pa
ss
ag
e

43
2

The Old Coach House

1

63

62

76

1

10
7

PH

Stone

TCB

11

GR
O
VE

G
RO
VE
RO
AD

73

Passage

M
ontague

55
.5
m

8

GROVE ROAD

81

6

EL

11
9

PA
R
K
R
O
A
D

Stone

40

W
A
Y

1

51

7

79

1a

53.6m

Stone

SL

4

24

Sloping
mason

ry
SL

12

59

6

67

3a

LB

Stone

16

1b

MONTAGUE RO
AD

2b

8

´

December
2010

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2010

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

103 Park Road
Uxbridge

32648/APP/2010/1408

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Page 352



Page 353



Page 354



Page 355



Page 356



Page 357



E

R

E

E

H
E
R
C
IE
S
R
O
A
D

C
LO
S

3

SW
EE
TC
RO
FT

137

TCB

135a

131

38.1m

C
R
O
FT

12
8

84a

91

1

BL
OS
SO

11

107
3

86

14
2

36.6m

SW
EETCROFT

LANE

2

135

131

ERCIE
S ROA

D

CHAPTER
CLOSE

84

11
6

80

121

1

14

111

118

97

82

LANE

141

10
5

36.6m

35

121

´

January
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2011

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Grass verge rear of 109 and 111
Sweetcroft Lane, Hercies Road
(close to bus stop), Hillingdon

67517/APP/2010/2930

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

THE SITE

Page 358



Page 359



Page 360



Page 361



Page 362



Page 363



R

L

L

L

L

E

R

E

L

R

L

L

L

L

R

R

L

L

L

A

A

G

81
76

Posts

52

75a

F
ra
y'
s
R
iv
er

134

Shelter

1
120

2

Whitehall Junior School

WALFOR
D ROAD

DERBY R
OAD

8a

Rabbs Mill House

30

S
TA
N
L
E
Y
C
L
O
S
E

70

S
h
el
te
r

122

92

PW

14

71

Works

1

2

10

18

1

69

Post

31.7m

3

11

11a

61

8

14

14

El Sub Sta

68

L
E
Y
R
O
A
D

31.4m

9

Infant School

19

20

75
54 Shelter

TCB

98

Whitehall

15

35

Rabbs Mill House

48

11
0

94

23

2

´

January
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2011

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

1 Derby Road
Uxbridge

60777/APP/2010/2713

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Page 364



Page 365



Page 366



Page 367



Page 368



Page 369



Page 370



Page 371



Page 372



Page 373



Page 374



41to6
3

27

1

5

6

Sub

FOSSDYKE

91

CLOSE

4

2

37

15

51

127

1

8

16

1

65
2

35

El

24

PO

ACE
R A

VEN
UE

18

113

K
E
N
N
E
T
D
R
IV
E

GLENCOE ROAD

49

14

4

34

20

Sta

33

Superstore

23

SHA
RPN

ESS
CLO

SE

1

11
9

T
E
L
F
O
R
D
W
A
Y

1

32

28 12

5

5
6

43

29

79

22

12

101

17

11

21

12

´

January
2011

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

© Crown Copyright. All rights reserved.
London Borough of Hillingdon
100019283 2011

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Tesco Stores Ltd.
Glencoe Road
Yeading

36999/APP/2010/2512

Central and South

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, Environment
& Community Services
Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW

Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

Page 375



Page 376

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To sign and receive the minutes of the meeting held on 6 January 2011
	6 Underground Operations Room, RAF Uxbridge, Hillingdon Road, Uxbridge - 585/APP/2010/2902
	7 70 Station Road, West Drayton - 2954/APP/2010/1810
	8 43 - 47 and rear of 35 - 43 Yeading Lane, Hayes - 34799/APP/2009/2800
	9 51 Chiltern View Road, Uxbridge - 64176/APP/2010/2097
	10 Ground floor, Old Post Office, Station Road, Hayes - 35807/APP/2009/2363
	11 The Arena, Stockley Park, Stockley Road, West Drayton - 37800/APP/2010/1669
	12 Brunel University, Kingston Lane, Hillingdon - 532/APP/2010/1964
	13 20 Pield Heath Road, Hillingdon - 21661/APP/2010/1716
	14 103 Park Road, Uxbridge - 32648/APP/2010/1408
	15 Grass Verge rear of 109 and 111 Sweetcroft Lane, Hercies Road (close to Bus Stop), Hillingdon - 67517/APP/2010/2930
	16 1 Derby Road, Uxbridge - 60777/APP/2010/2713
	17 Tesco Stores Ltd, Glencoe Road, Yeading - 36999/APP/2010/2512
	18 Enforcement Report
	19 Enforcement Report
	20 Enforcement Report
	21 Enforcement Report
	Plans for Central and South Planning Committee

